Public Document Pack

AGENDA FOR
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE co u@w

Contact: Michael Cunliffe

Direct Line: 0161 253 5399

E-mail: m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk

Website: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Planning Control Committee

Councillors : G McGill (Chair), S Arif, C Boles, D Duncalfe,
D Green, J Harris, M Hayes, D Quinn, S Thorpe, D Vernon
and M Walsh

Dear Member/Colleague

Planning Control Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control Committee
which will be held as follows:-

Date: Tuesday, 21 February 2023

Place: Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require

o briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the
Facilities: appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the related
report should be contacted.

Notes: https://councilstream.com/burycouncil/2173




AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider whether they
have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if so, to formally declare
that interest.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 24TH JANUARY 2023 (Pages
3-4)

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday the 24th January 2023 are attached.
PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 5 - 108)

Reports attached.

DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 109 - 118)

A report from the Head of Development Management on all delegated planning
decisions since the last meeting of the planning control committee is attached.

PLANNING APPEALS (Pages 119 - 124)

A report from the Head of Development Management on all planning appeal
decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee is attached.

APPEAL AGAINST NON-DETERMINATION (Pages 125 - 152)
Report attached.
URGENT BUSINESS

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair agrees may
be considered as a matter of urgency.



Agenda Item 3

Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting: 24 January 2023
Present: Councillor G McGill (in the Chair)
Councillors S Arif, C Boles, D Duncalfe, D Green, J Harris,

M Hayes, D Quinn, S Thorpe, M Walsh and L McBriar

Also in attendance: Councillor C Morris, Councillor A Quinn and Councillor
J Rydeheard

Public Attendance: 5 members of the public were present at the meeting.

PCCA1

PCC.2

PCC.3

PCC4

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillor D Vernon.
Councillor L McBriar acted as a substitute representative for Councillor Vernon.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor M Hayes declared an interest in planning application 68878, 78
Trimmingham Drive, Bury, BL8 1EL as he was the local ward Councillor for the Elton
area.

He and another local ward Councillor had circulated a letter and short survey to the
surrounding properties which contained facts about the application and referred
residents to the Council’'s website to provide any comments. Councillor Hayes had not
pre-determined the application and would continue to approach it with an open mind
and without prejudice.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 13TH DECEMBER 2022
Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 13t December 2022 be approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chair.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted in relation to
applications for planning permission.

There was supplementary information to add in respect of application numbers 68647
and 68878. The supplementary information also detailed that the application which
was deferred at the last planning control committee on the 13t December 2022 for a
site visit had been withdrawn by the applicant on the 11™ January 2023.

The Committee heard representations from applicants, objectors and Ward Councillors
in respect of applications submitted. This was limited to three minutes for the speaker.

Pagel3



Planning Control Committee, 24 January 2023

PCC.5

PCC.6

PCC.7

Delegated decisions:

1. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in
accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the
report and subject to the conditions included: -

78 Trimingham Drive, Bury, BL8 1EL

Change of use from dwellinghouse (Class C3) to children's residential care home
(Class C2) (maximum 4 no. children and 3 no. members of staff) including conversion
of integral garage to additional living space and associated external alterations

2. That the Committee be Approve with Conditions the following application in
accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the
report and subject to the conditions included: -

Red Bank Playing Fields, Unsworth Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 ORN
Creation of 3G Artificial Grass Pitch (AGP) with perimeter fencing, new macadam
hardstanding areas, floodlights, storage container, single storey pavilion and 83 space
car park with associated lighting and landscaping

DELEGATED DECISIONS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent
planning application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers since the last
meeting of the Planning Control Committee.

Delegated decision:

That the report and appendices be noted.

PLANNING APPEALS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent
planning and enforcement appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning
Control Committee.

Delegated decision:

That the report and appendices be noted.

URGENT BUSINESS

No urgent business was reported.

COUNCILLOR G MCGILL

Chair

(Note: The meeting started at 7.00pm and ended at 8.18pm)

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

Title Planning Applications

To: Planning Control Committee
On: 21 February 2023
By: Development Manager

Status: For Publication

Executive Summary

The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved.

My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports.

This report has the following implications

Township Forum/ Ward: l|dentified in each case.
Policy: Identified in each case.
Resources: Not generally applicable.

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for:
The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;

The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it;

The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.

Human Rights: All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human
Rights Act 1998.

Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments.

Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could
include a person's home, and other land and business assets.

In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and
all material planning considerations, | have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based

Page 5



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council
under the Town & Country Planning Acts.

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on
it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and
disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions under the Town and Country
Planning Acts, the Planning Control Committee shall have due regard to the provisions of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the exercise of its functions.

Development Manager

Background Documents

The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith.
Certificates relating to the ownership.

Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties.
Responses from Consultees.

POON =

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE.

Page 6



01

02

03

04

Township Forum - Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth App No. 68530

Location:

Proposal:

Land at the junction of Hollins Brook Way and Pilsworth Road, Bury, BL9
8RR

Hybrid application - Full application: Zone 1 development of Commercial
building No1 (Creche, Use Class E), car parking and internal site roads, a
new site access junction to Pilsworth Road, highway improvements to
Hollins Brook Way and Pilsworth Road, use of an existing car park exit to
Aviation Road for emergency purposes only.

Outline application: Zone 2 development of Commercial building No.2
(Hub building, Use Class E) car parking and internal site roads and a
multi-purpose all-weather sports pitch (Including reserved matters of

means of access and scale included for determination).

Recommendation: Minded to Approve Site Visit: N

Township Forum - Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - App No. 68983
Ramsbottom

Location: Peel Tower, Holcombe Hill, Holcombe, BL8 4NR

Proposal: Camera on top of a flag pole at the top of Peel Tower

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site Visit: N

Township Forum - Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - App No. 68985
Ramsbottom

Location: Peel Tower, Holcombe Hill, Holcombe, BL8 4NR

Proposal: Listed building consent for a camera on top of a flag pole at the top of

Peel Tower

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site Visit: N
Township Forum - Ward: Bury East - Redvales App No. 69093
Location: 17 Pembroke Drive, Bury, BL9 9LF

Proposal: Part single/Part two storey rear extension

Recommendation:

Approve with Conditions Site Visit: N

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth Item O0O1

Applicant: JD Sports Fashion plc
Location: Land at the junction of Hollins Brook Way and Pilsworth Road, Bury, BL9 8RR

Proposal: Hybrid application - Full application: Zone 1 development of Commercial building No1
(Creche, Use Class E), car parking and internal site roads, a new site access junction
to Pilsworth Road, highway improvements to Hollins Brook Way and Pilsworth Road,
use of an existing car park exit to Aviation Road for emergency purposes only.

Outline application: Zone 2 development of Commercial building No.2 (Hub building,
Use Class E) car parking and internal site roads and a multi-purpose all-weather
sports pitch (Including reserved matters of means of access and scale included for
determination).

Application Ref: 68530/Full Target Date: 05/09/2022
Recommendation: Minded to Approve

It is recommended that this application is Minded to Approve subject to the signing
and completion of a Section 106 agreement for a contribution towards highway
improvement works in accordance with Chapter 9 of the NPPF and adopted Unitary
Development Plan Policies EN1/7, HT1 and HT2.

The Development Manager has recommended a site visit be carried out prior to the
Planning Committee meeting.

Description

The application site comprises a vacant piece of land circa 1.7 hectares which is located in

the Pilsworth Industrial Estate Employment Generating Area under UDP Policy EC2/1. The

site is associated with the JD Group campus where the main headquarters for the company
are established.

The site is located at the junction of Hollins Brook Way and Pilsworth Road, directly
adjacent to the existing JD offices and car parks with the surrounding area predominantly
characterised by commercial and industrial uses. There is an established residential
development to the west of the site comprising Beechwood apartments and dwellings on
The Croft separated from the site by trees. To the south is open land which is allocated as
a Wildlife Corridor, River Valley and land which forms Hollins Local Nature Reserve.

There is a Public Right of Way (PRoW) which runs down the eastern pavement of Hollins
Brook Road to the south of the site and connects to the Local Nature Reserve.

A High Pressure (HP) gas pipeline crosses the north east corner of the site and Hollins
Brook Way.

The site was formally occupied as a plant hire depot operated by A-Plant which was

acquired by the applicant in 2017 with the building demolished in 2019. The site has since
remained vacant.

Page 9



The application proposes a complete redevelopment of the site to provide additional
facilities and functions to support the existing campus and needs of its employees.

The new facilities would provide a creche building, hub building for offices, training, amenity
areas and staff facilities, multi purpose all weather pitch and parking with associated
landscaping and highway works.

It is proposed to deliver the development in two phases phases and the application has
been submitted as a hybrid application as follows:

Full application - Zone 1

Creche - New creche building with outdoor terraces and play areas.

The creche would be positioned in the south western corner of the site with the main
entrance facing eastwards towards the main campus area. The build would comprise 2
storey with plant equipment located on the roof and would form a stepped arrangement, the
higher part of the building close to the southern boundary.

Parking would be arranged to the front and side of the building to provide 80 no. spaces
including EV chargepoints and accessible spaces and 26 no. spaces for the creche
employees. To the western side adjacent to the boundary would be landscaped external
play areas enclosed by a 2.5m high close boarded timber fence.

The creche would be of a contemporary modern design built on a dark grey brick plinth with
elevations a mix of grey tiled and metal cladding, natural toned metal cladding, louvred
screens and glazed entrance and feature windows.

It is anticipated the creche would provide for between 90 and 120 children and would be
provided to meet the childcare needs of the JD employees only.

Landscaping
There would be some tree removal along the south and western boundary with proposals

for replacement and additional planting and along part of the site frontage.

New access and highway infrastructure works - It is also proposed to create a new access
from Pilsworth Road to lead directly to the creche with an internal circular road linking to the
existing access at Hollins Brook Way. This access would be widened to provide a second
lane and enable a dedicated left and right turn out of the site. Works to the highway to
widen Pilsworth Road to provide dedicated right turns into the site would be carried out.
The access from Aviation Road would be used for emergency purposes only.

Parking
Proposed as follows -

26no. creche staff spaces
20no. Parent & Child spaces
5no. Parent & Child EV spaces
12no. standard EV spaces
38no. standard spaces

5no. accessible spaces

Total = 106 spaces

Outline application to include matters of access and scale for determination (layout
appearance and landscaping are reserved matters) - Zone 2

Page 10



Whilst layout does not form part of the details, the scheme had been significantly advanced
in terms of design and the layout shown on the Masterplan would unlikely alter to a
significant degree.

A reserved matters application would consider the details for the final layout, appearance
and landscaping elements of the scheme, with scale and access being considered as part
of the application.

New Hub building - New 4 storey multi function Hub to provide a focal building incorporating
offices, gym, restaurant and cafe, meeting rooms, training facilities, mock shop,
presentation theatre with outdoor terraces.

The proposed masterplan shows this building located in the eastern part of the site with
associated parking between the building and Pilsworth Road.

Details of the design would be applied for under a reserved matters application but
indicative plans show a mix of glazing and cladding and a featured entrance in a
landscaped surrounding.

Sports pitch - A multi purpose all weather pitch is proposed to be located towards the centre
of the site between the creche and Hub building. The pitch would be provided as a leisure
facility for JD employees.

A running track would also be provided as a circular route round the pitch and the creche.
Changing facilities for the leisure uses would be located in the creche building.

A detailed landscaping plan would be submitted as part of reserved matters.

Parking
Whilst not forming part of the details of the application, the masterplan indicates that the

parking would be located to the front of the site and would provide circa 20 no visitor spaces
and 51 no staff spaces for the Hub building.

Zone 3

Zone 3 shown on the 'Zoning Plan' is not within the application red edge plan and does not
form part of this planning application. It is anticipated that future works in this part of the
applicant's site would involve reconfiguration of existing internal roads and car park. This
may not require planning permission.

Community consultation
The applicant carried out community consultation by meeting with local residents.
This is dicussed in the report below.

Relevant Planning History

02227/E - Change of use to offices, staff training accommodation, including mock shop;
staff gym, multi-storey car park and surface level car park, re-cladding existing external with
upgraded materials and external works to facilitate the proposed use - Enquiry completed
18/02/2019

02716/E - Construction of buildings, a multi-purpose all-weather sports pitch, fitness trail,
car parking and highway works to create a new business hub and childcare facilities at JD
Campus - Enquiry completed 05/07/2022

54670 - Replacement boundary fence (Pilsworth Road/ Hollins Brook Way) - Approve with
Conditions 02/02/2012

60525 - Retention of existing car park and re-location of car park gate onto Aviation Road
for egress only; alterations and improvements to the junction of Aviation Road and Pilsworth
Road, including repositioning of existing gate on Aviation Road to improve pedestrian

Page 11



access (north side) and provision of a horse stile (south side) and associated signage -
Approve with Conditions 21/02/2018

63159 - Variation of condition 1 following grant of planning permission 60525 to allow an
additional 6 months for commencement of the junction improvement works - Approve with
Conditions 04/10/2018

63998 - Variation of condition 1 following grant of planning permission 63159 to allow an
additional 6 months for commencement of the junction improvement works - Approve with
Conditions 23/05/2019

64607 - Prior notification for proposed demolition of single storey steel framed
workshop/works depot and single storey garage - Prior Approval Required and Granted
24/10/2019

68605 - Installation of a temporary two storey Portakabin modular building to provide a
decant office facility, whilst refurbishment works are carried out across the site. The building
will be vinyl wrapped as per the attached design. This application sees temporary planning
permission of 3 years. - Approved 20/9/22

20/0101 - Breach of conditions of demolition determination application 64607 - 08/06/2020

Publicity

Letters sent on 7/7/22 and 19/8/22 to 72 properties.
Site notice posted 15/7/22

Press advert 14/7/22

e This development appears not to have considered that people will need to arrive by
means other than car, at a time when we are in a climate emergency and energy cost
crisis. There is no sign of a protected cycleway or of a continuous footway.

e There is no plan for controlled pedestrian crossings anywhere on Pilsworth Road - this
again seems at odds with the need to encourage travel by means other than private car.

e Also it's a bit odd that the running track stops at roads - surely this and the footway
should continue across the carriageway (using Dutch-style ramped entrance kerbs) with
cars expected to give way?

e Purely on the basis of a lack of consideration for anyone not arriving at this facility by
car, | object.

e The application proposes a widening of the carriageway to facilitate a turning pocket, but
offers nothing for people cycling. No protected facility or anything, on a road that is
deeply uncomfortable, even dangerous, to cycle on due to the amount of traffic travelling
to and from the M66, Asda and the A56. Considering the size of the grass verges
running along the highway at this point, it is unforgivable not to provide for active travel.

e There are no controlled pedestrian crossings anywhere on Pilsworth Road. Not one.
How are people supposed to cross in safety and comfort?

¢ And why is there only a single cycle store?

e Croft Lane is an extremely busy tight road already and it is close to the motorway which
means there is plenty of traffic all day long. As well as this, the current office contributes
to a lot of the congestion, so by making an extension will only mean more congestion,
pollution and disruption. In addition to this, a big project like this is going to be extremely
noisy and has the potential to go on for a long extended period of time causing
disturbances and noise pollution to the people that live here. Also it will cause a lot of
vibration to the Houses as we have already felt them when the last works were carried
out. | am worried that the vibrations may weaken the foundations of my Home bearing in
mind this is an ex coal mining area. These are some of the concerns | have regarding
this situation

e The construction is going to take an estimated 2 years. This is such a long period of
time to be living next to an active construction site, it will be noisy, dusty and most likely
cause some sort of structural damage to the surrounding properties.

Page 12



e The creche appears to be backing onto the croft houses, this means that the noise from
people attending the creche is going to be heard all day long by these residents who
currently live in an extremely quiet neighbourhood.

¢ The improvements they are making to the main road will not ease the traffic in anyway,
this is due to the traffic being exacerbated by people coming out of JD and turning right
towards the motorway NOT people turning INTO the JD site.

e The football pitch is said to close at 9pm when it is in use, this will create further noise,
litter and pollution for residents, many of which who are elderly.

e Overall, 2 years of inconvenience when only JD are benefiting.

Comment

The purpose of this comment is to ask Bury planning to note that many will not comment on
the proposals until th ID/neighbours meeting has been held and to extend the consultation
period if necessary to allow residents to make comments following the meeting.

Those who have made representations have been informed of the Planning Control
Committee meeting.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations

Traffic Section - No objection subject to conditions

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objection subject to conditions
Environmental Health - Pollution Control - No objection subject to conditions
Waste Management - No response received.

Public Rights of Way Officer - No objection

United Utilities (Water and waste) - Flood risk assessment proposals acceptable in
principle. Recommend a drainage scheme to be submitted.

The Coal Authority - No objection

Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objection subject to conditions
Transport for Greater Manchester - No objection.

Cadent - No objection

Health and Safety Executive - No objection

Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
EC2/1 Employment Generating Areas
EC6/1 New Business, Industrial and Commercial

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN1/3 Landscaping Provision

EN1/11  Public Utility Infrastructure

EN4/1 Renewable Energy

EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk
ENG6/2 Sites of Nature Conservation Interest LNR's
ENG6/3 Features of Ecological Value

EN7/2 Noise Pollution

RT3/5 Noisy Sport

HT2 Highway Network

HT2/1 The Strategic Route Network

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs
HT6/1 Pedestrian and Cyclist Movement
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict

SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury

Page 13



Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Policy Principle - The site is in an identified Employment Generating Area under UDP
Policy EC2/1 and is part of the Pilsworth Industrial Estate.

The applicant, JD Group has established headquarters at Pilsworth and now seeks to
consolidate and reinforce the facilities and functions of the campus, by providing additional
facilities to serve the needs of the whole campus and strengthen its role as a major
employer in Bury and continue the company's growth within the global market.

In principle, the proposed development would be acceptable and would comply with the
principles of the NPPF and UDP Policies EC2/1 and EC6/1.

Layout and siting - The development site would be split into two areas, with zone 1
comprising the creche building, running track, new access and associated parking and
landscaping, followed by zone 2 for the hub, sports pitch and parking.

Zone 1

The zone 1 works are proposed in full detail, comprising the creche building with a footprint
of circa 627sgm. The build would be located close to the south western corner of the site
and orientated with the longer length running north to south. The main outdoor play space
would be located to the western side of the building and enclosed by a 2.4m high acoustic
fence.

Parking for 80 no cars would be arranged to the front and side of the building to include 26
no. spaces for creche staff, EV chargepoint spaces and accessible spaces. A new access to
this part of the site would lead directly to the creche which would aide vehicle traffic flows
through the site. The creche would be approx 11m at the closest point to the western
boundary and separated by the running track and existing trees and vegetation which would
provide a degree of relief from residential properties beyond this boundary.

There would be some tree removal along the west and southern boundaries required to
facilitate the zone 1 development and it is proposed to mitigate this by supplementing and
strengthening the planting along these boundaries which would not only provide additional
screening to the neighbours but would soften the built development and car park areas.

A number of factors have driven the position, design and orientation of the creche building,
largely in the applicant's consideration of the proximity to the boundary and by positioning
the highest part of the building further from neighbours. It was also important to the
applicant that the building provide a connectivity and overlooking of the sports pitch and rest
of the campus site. The position of the build away from Pilsworth Road and the new access
would also minimise noise and pollution from the main road and improve safety at this new
access point.

In consideration of these factors, the proposed siting of this building and associated parking
and access would be considered to be acceptable.

Page 14



Zone 2

Whilst not applied for in detail, indicative layout plans have been submitted to show
approximate positions of the Hub, playing pitch and parking areas. The position of these
elements on site have largely been driven by the applicant's desire for the hub to be the
focal point of the development whilst providing good connectivity to the other areas of the
site, providing green spaces and retaining trees where possible and utilising the existing
access . The development is also constrained by the main gas pipe to the north east and
the PRoW which connects the main road to the LNR.

It is therefore unlikely that the proposed layout would change to a significant degree once a
reserved matters application comes forward.

The Hub would be the pivotal element of the development and would be located towards the
eastern part of the application site and central part of the site set back from the frontage by
approximately 30m. Visitor parking would be provided in the area infront of the Hub. The
front of the site would be landscaped which would soften and enhance the frontage.

The playing pitch would be located between the creche and Hub, the size of which would
facilitate football games of circa 5-a-side and which is considered to be commensurate
within the campus development.

The remaining part of the site would provide parking for staff and internal vehicular links
would connect the site to the wider campus, with refuse facilities and cycle parking located
near to each building. Landscaping of the whole site would be incorporated into the
development with details to be secured by condition.

The proposed scheme has been designed to provide a comprehensive development which
would integrate within the existing campus in response to business needs.

Delivered as the first phase, the position of the creche building is considered the most
appropriate location within the site acknowledging the proximity of the residential properties
yet linking to the wider facilities both visually and practically.

The remaining part of the site would accommodate the more ‘commercial' Hub for the
development for offices, training and employee facilities and it is considered the position of
these elements would integrate and relate well to the existing campus.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would be acceptable and comply
with UDP Policies EC2/1, EC6/1 and EN1/2

Design and scale

Chapter 12 of the NPPF - Achieving well-designed places advocates the creation of high
quality and sustainable buildings to provide better places for people to live and work.
Design quality should be considered throughout the evolution and assessment of individual
proposals.

Zone 1l

In terms of design, the creche build would be 2 storey in height with a 1st floor terrace and
1.8m metal louvred screen to enclose plant equipment on the roof. The build would be
formed in a 'tiered' arrangement and in terms of its scale and mass is considered to be an
appropriate solution when considering its position on site in relation to the residential
properties to the west. A clearly defined main entrance would be located on the eastern
elevation to front the wider site and enable a safe and clear pedestrian connection to the
other facilities and whole campus.

Page 15



The design approach proposes a contemporary and modern solution, comprising dark grey
metal cladding, dark grey tiled shingles, louvred plant screen, and buff coloured cladding
interjected with elements of metallic green vertical strips. Full height glazing would signify
the main entrance and access points and provide light openings to the upper floor. The
stepped design and recessed areas set within the elevations would incorporate elements of
interest and contrasts to the build.

The building would be softened by tree planting and vegetation with the potential to provide
a green roof and photovoltaic panels. Native hedge and woodland planting would be
incorporated around the boundary of the zone 1 site area.

It is considered that the design and appearance of the proposed creche building would
present a high quality yet practical approach to a childcare facility, incorporating elements to
promote sustainable development. As such, the proposed development is considered
acceptable and would comply with EN1/2 and the principles of the NPPF.

Zone 2

In terms of scale, the main hub building would be 4 storey and the parameters plan states
the maximum height would be a maximum of 21m which would require further approval if
this were to alter. The section plan D-D shows the top of the parapet wall at 17.740m and
plant screen at 20.24m . The design is at a relatively advanced stage so it is unlikely the
reserved matters plan would deviate from that submitted but dimensions could change if the
plant screen needed to be a slightly higher or lower.

The site section plans shows the Hub building within the context of the existing built
development on site and in relation to Edinburgh House to the rear of the site at the end of
Hollins Brook Way and Balmoral House to the east fronting Pilsworth Way. The Hub
building would not be significantly different to the height of these buildings and would be
positioned in a broadly central position when viewed within the context of the whole JD
campus. It is therefore considered the scale and massing would be an appropriate addition
and would assimilate within the development and its surrounds.

Whilst approval for appearance is not sought for zone 2 proposals, the applicant has
provided indicative images and drawings of the design concept which have been developed
for the Hub building.

The Hub is intended to be the 'feature’ building on site and orientated such that the longer of
the elevation would front Pilsworth Road which would present a strong and important
frontage to address the streetscene. The footprint of the building would comprise 3 sections,
with the middle element in a recessed position where it is proposed to provide an outside
courtyard area which would be flanked by the two outer sections. At first floor it is also
intended to provide an external terraced space which would overlook the sports pitch.
lllustrative images show elevations would comprise grey cladding and glazing with
intermittent coloured panels for contrast.

Within the setting of the existing campus and wider industrial estate, it is considered this
approach would be acceptable and would comply with EN1/2 and the principles of the
NPPF.

The overall development proposes to incorporate sustainable design features with a 'fabric
first' approach to ensure good standards of energy efficiency are achieved and maximising
planting to external spaces to encourage biodiversity and ecological gains. Where possible
rainwater harvesting and SuDs would be implemented and 34 no. EV chargepoints provided
across the site.

Page 16



It is therefore considered that the proposed development would deliver a high quality
specification of buildings in terms of the design approach and one which would be
appropriate in scale not only to the direct setting but within the industrial estate as a whole.

Highways issues

Access

The site is currently served from Hollins Brook Way and this would be retained as the
primary access for the established JD offices. An additional exit lane to provide dedicated
left and right hand turns out of the site would improve traffic flows within the site itself and
help regulate traffic movement onto Pilsworth Road.

A right turn lane would also be provided on Pilsworth Road into the site at the Hollins Brook
Way junction bettering the existing access arrangements to this part of the site.

The development also proposes to create a new access into the site from Pilsworth Road
which would serve as the primary access for the creche and into the new development .
This would be formed at the western part of the site frontage and a dedicated right turn lane
would be formed from Pilsworth Road into the site which would enable traffic to continue to
flow freely past the site.

The applicant also proposes to provide a right turn lane into Pilsworth Way opposite the site
which would improve access to this part of the industrial estate.

With the proposed new access, there would be no need to continue use of Aviation Road on
a daily basis and this would revert to use for emergency purposes only, which would be a
condition of any approval.

Traffic

In terms of traffic generation for the creche, this facility would be provided solely for JD
employees and for staff who already work at the campus and as such these journeys would
not be new to the highway network. However, there would be a degree of additional traffic
by employees who are not currently based at the campus, enticed back to being office
based by the convenience of the creche facility.

There would also be traffic generated by 26 staff employed at the creche.

The Hub would offer a range of amenity and recreational facilities, elements of which would
be shared across the existing JD campus but would also provide additional office
accommaodation plus training and lecture/theatre facilities which would generate additional
trips by employees, visitors and when events are hosted, for example.

The traffic at Pilsworth Industrial Estate is already problematic, particularly at peak morning
and evening times and as one of the main employers in the area, JD's existing operation is
a contributing factor to the traffic which builds up around these junctions and the local
highway network. The proposed development would bring an uplift in traffic to the site and
area in general.

The site and industrial estate are not particularly well served by links to public transport and
whilst there is the opportunity for cycle travel, the location of the site makes this mode of
transport more difficult. It is also highly probable that the majority of JD employees, existing
and future, would not live within such proximity to benefit from sustainable transportation
modes, although this is/should be encouraged. Reliance on a vehicle therefore remains the
primary mode of travel.

Page 17



A Transport Assessment (TA) has been submitted with the application which provides an
analysis of existing flows and predicted increase to the level of trip generation as a result of
the proposed development.

TfGM have been consulted on the proposals and have reviewed the Transport Assessment
which has submitted with the application. It was identified that road junction usages in the
localised area already function at capacity at peak periods and would operate at worse
levels with the additional development traffic.

TfGM are currently working up a number of vehicle, cycle and pedestrian improvement
schemes around the A56/Hollins/Pilsworth corridor and it has been recommended that the
applicant provides a contribution towards one such improvement scheme in the locality.

The applicant has agreed to make a contribution of £100,000 which would be secured by
way of a S106 legal obligation.

Other improvements would come forward as part of the s278 Highways process including
improved pedestrian crossing facilities, speed announcement signage amongst other
highways requirements. These would not necessarily be shown within a planning
application but would be required by the Highway Authority.

Parking
In terms of parking for the creche, the proposed site plan show there would be an additional
106 spaces provided for this facility, broken down as follows -

26no0. creche staff spaces
20no. Parent & Child spaces
5no. Parent & Child EV spaces
12no. standard EV spaces
38no. standard spaces

5no. accessible spaces

The applicant anticipates that some parents will use the creche parking and walk to the
main campus, whilst others will park on the main campus and walk to the creche. The
balance of parking across the masterplan has been designed to allow for this, as well as the
future development of the hub building.

The parking for the hub development has not been 'set' as such but indicative plans show
circa 51 no staff spaces and 20 no visitor spaces (including EV charge points and
accessible spaces) would be provided and this is considered to be proportionate to the
scale of development and needs of the business.

Conclusion

Whilst the development would be of a sizeable scale, the proposals to create dedicated
turns into the site and the widening of the existing site access would help in filtering traffic
more safely on and off the new and existing JD Campus and improve Pilsworth Road flows.
The parking which has been proposed for the creche would be directly accessible from the
new access point and the provision would facilitate employees to park and walk to other
areas of the campus rather than driving a convoluted route to the main campus car parks.
The provision of the EV charge point spaces would contribute to the sustainability of the site
and are welcomed.

The Highway Authority and TfGM have raised no objections to the proposed development
subject to conditions and completion of the S106 agreement for the highway contribution.

Page 18



As such, the proposed development is considered to be acceptable and comply with UDP
Policies and the principles of the NPPF.

Impact on residential amenity

Creche - The creche would be located to the east of the residential dwellings on The Croft
and at the closest point would be approx 20m away from the nearest property.

The building would be orientated such that the main entrance would be located on the
eastern elevation and as such activity of comings and goings to the creche would be
directed towards the main site and away from the houses.

Part of the 1st floor would be used as an outdoor space but given this would be
approximately 20m to the nearest property the relationship is considered not to be
significantly detrimental to residential amenity.

The main outdoor play areas would be located to the western side of the building and
enclosed by a 2.5m acoustic type fence and as such it is considered that noise emanating
from this part of the site would not be so significant as to be of detrimental harm to
residential amenity.

It is also proposed to retain the majority of the trees to the western boundary and with
additional tree planting, there would be a relatively dense buffer and screening of the creche
from neighbouring properties.

Hub - The hub would be the main focal point of the development, providing office space,
training areas and staff welfare and leisure facilities and has illustratively been positioned in
the eastern part of the site, 75m from the houses to the west and further away from these
properties than the 'A’ plant building which previously accommodated site.

Given the distance away and screening provided along the western boundary, it is
considered the use and position of the building would not directly affect the nearest
residents.

Parking - It is proposed to provide a parking area which would be close to the boundary with
Beechwood apartments. This area of the site was previously used as a hardstanding area
for servicing and parking for the previous 'A' plant site and as such the use of this area
would be no different. However, the arrangement would be more formalised and the
boundary treatment with additional landscaping and 1.8m fence would aide the screening
and separation of this area of the site and as such is considered to be acceptable.

Siting of the all weather pitch - The pitch would be positioned towards the centre of the site,
60m from the nearest house and would be comparable to the size of a 5-a-side pitch. The
pitch would provide a private sporting facility primarily for the JD employees. It is intended
that there will be occasional use for JD privately hosted events, such as those involving the
community and charity partners but there would not be general access for the public, or hire
out of the pitch.

Whilst in outline only and details not finally secure at this stage, the use of the pitch would
be available until 9pm which is considered to be a reasonable time and not an excessively
late into the night to have a significant effect on the amenity of nearest neighbours.

It is proposed to provide floodlights around the pitch to facilitate its usage after 'office hours'

which would be switched off at 9pm to align with the use of the pitch and also in
consideration of the neighbours.

Page 19



A lighting strategy and light pollution assessment has been submitted and lighting has been
designed in accordance with current good practice Society of Lighting and Lighting (SLL)
guidelines and the Institution of Lighting Professionals (ILP).

The lighting strategy categorises the area within an E3 Environmental Zone, which is a
small town centre or urban location and as such a degree of lighting would be expected
within an industrial estate.

The luminaires would be designed so as to direct light downwards and would be fitted with
cowls / baffles/ louvers to prevent unwanted light spill. Time-based lighting controls would
ensure the lights were extinguished at a time of 9pm. Details of the height of the lighting
columns would be determined in a reserved matters application and would be included as a
condition.

Security lighting would be fitted around pedestrian, circulation and car park areas and again
so designed to avoid excessive light spillage and would be typical of lighting found in similar
commercial developments.

Pollution Control have been consulted on the proposals and with conditions to control the
hours of floodlighting to switch off at 9pm, luminaires directed downwards and fitted with
louvers/baffles to reduce spillage there are no objections in principle.

As the sports pitch and floodlighting submissions are indicative only at this stage, details of
the floodlighting specification, including design, light spillage controls and times of operation
and times of availability of the pitch would be secured by condition at a Reserved Matters
stage.

Conclusion - In terms of potential noise, activity and general disturbances which the scheme
could generate, the site could be used at any time for an industrial use and historically, one
which could function as a 24/7 operation. Comparatively, it is considered the proposed
development with controls to condition elements of the development in the future would be
acceptable with causing significant detriment to residential amenity.

The applicant has carried out their own community consultation with the local residents
which involved a meeting and following feedback from neighbours, resulted in some
adjustments to the scheme which involved creche height reduction and revised landscaping
to the shared boundary. There is also the commitment to engage with the community
throughout the construction phase.

This approach is welcomed to enable a good relationship with neighbours going forward.
Drainage - The application is accompanied by a Flood Risk Strategy. United Utilities have
been consulted on the proposals and are satisfied with the details for the scheme to be

implemented and which would be conditioned as part of an approval.

It is therefore considered the proposed development would be acceptable and comply with
the principles of sustainable development in accordance with the NPPF.

Cadent - A main gas pipe runs across the north east section of the site. The site plan
shows an easement of 9.2m either side of the gas pipe with the hub building set outside the
easement.

Cadent have been notified of the proposals and have raised no objection. The Health and
Safety Executive have been consulted and do not advise against the development.

Page 20



The applicant is aware of the location of the gas pipeline and an advisory would be included
to contact Cadent prior to the commencement of any works.

Coal Authority - The application site falls within the defined Development High Risk Area;
therefore within the site and surrounding area there are coal mining features and hazards
which need to be considered in relation to the determination of this planning application.

The planning application is accompanied by a Coal Mining Risk Assessment report
(January 2022, prepared by Groundtech Consulting). Based on a review of relevant sources
of coal mining and geological information, the report concludes that possible unrecorded
mine workings associated with a sub cropping coal seam pose a potential risk of
subsidence at the site. Accordingly, it goes on to recommend that an intrusive investigation
is undertaken to further assess the risk posed by any such workings.

In light of the above, the Coal Authority note that the applicant has also submitted a Geo-
Environmental Appraisal (31 March 2022, again prepared by Groundtech Consulting) in
support of their application.

The report concludes the risk to the stability of the surface of the site is very low and no
further action would be required.

The Coal Authority's Planning & Development Team considers the content and professional
opinions expressed within the Coal Mining Risk Assessment report and the subsequent
Geo-Environmental Appraisal to be sufficient for the purposes of the planning system, in
demonstrating that the application site is safe and stable for the proposed development. The
Coal Authority therefore wish to raise no objection to the proposed development.

Ecology

Summary

The developer's ecological consultant identified no significant ecological issues. Other
ecological issues relating to bats, nesting birds, amphibians, hedgehog, invasive species,
proximity to Hollins Vale LNR and biodiversity enhancement measures can be resolved via
condition and or informative.

Bats

The buildings and trees in the Phase 1 site were assessed for bat roosting potential. Both
buildings were assessed as negligible risk and trees assessed as low risk.

Trees to be retained can be protected by a condition.

Both buildings and a number of trees are located within zone 2 of the outline application are
negligible risk. It is however possible that the ecological report may no longer be valid by
the time a reserved matters application comes forward for zone 2.

GMEU therefore recommend a condition is applied to any outline permission for zone 2 that
as part of reserved matters relating to zone 2 an updated ecological report shall be
provided.

The ecologists have assessed the lines of trees as having low value for foraging and
commuting bats. GMEU would tend to agree with this assessment, the corridors not linking
significant habitats, with the Hollins Brook to the south a much high value habitat for bats,
linking the SBI to the River Roch. The line of trees along the southern boundary and
northern boundaries are to be primarily removed, with the western boundary primarily
retained.

Page 21



External lighting is also proposed including around the perimeter of the site along a running
track. This is to be set at 10 lux and only in use when the centre is in use. GMEU are
satisfied that the lighting levels would not have a significant impact on the retained trees.
No further information or measures are required at this stage.

Other Protected Species
All other species have been reasonably discounted. GMEU require no further information or
measures.

Nesting Birds
The development will result in the loss of trees and scrub, potential bird nesting habitat. All

British birds nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected by Section 1 of
the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, as amended. GMEU recommend a condition to restrict
the timing of removal of vegetation.

Amphibians and Small Mammals

Habitats on site are suitable for providing shelter for species such as common toad and
hedgehog, both UK Biodiversity Priority Species. The consultant has recommended
reasonable avoidance measures during site clearance. This would apply primarily to the full
permission, the outline area currently lacking much in the way of cover though this may
change by the time any reserved matters application comes forward. GMEU are satisfied
however that only the full application requires a condition at this time, that prior to any
earthworks a reasonable avoidance measures method statement for amphibians, hedgehog
and any other small mammals, will be provided to and agreed in writing by the LPA.

Invasive Species

Four species (including two different Cotoneaster) listed under schedule 9 part 2 of the
Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) were recorded across the site. All are
relatively easy species to deal with. Only two are present on the outline site. GMEU
recommend conditions are applied for the submission of method statements detailing
eradication and/or control and/or avoidance measures for identified invasive species.

Proximity to Hollins Vale Local Nature Reserve

The full application is immediately adjacent to Hollins Vale Local Nature Reserve along it
southern boundary. The outline permission will be buffered by the full application from the
LNR. Whilst the area of the LNR adjacent to the site is not a core habitat area ie less
sensitive, measures during construction are still justified as part of the Construction
environment management plan. The details can be conditioned as a bullet within any
proposed CEMP condition.

Contributing to and Enhancing the Natural Environment

Section 174 of the NPPF 2021 states that the planning policies and decisions should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. The site is primarily of
negligible ecological value with habitat losses restricted to lines of trees and scrub along
with associated bat and bird habitat.

A net gain assessment has been provided that states that there will be a significant gain.
Whilst the metric has not been provided and therefore it not possible to analyse how this is
being achieved, given the site is largely hardstanding and building, net gain would be
relatively simple to achieve. The net gain report also seems fair in terms of condition
assessments and net gain is also not as yet mandatory.

A revised landscaping scheme has been submitted and GMEU welcome the increased level

of tree planting along the southern boundary as part of the full application. This will buffer
the LNR and should consist of locally native species such as oak, silver birch, rowan,

Page 22



hawthorn, holly etc. It likely also increased the level of ecological mitigation that falls within
the full application, though without an amended net gain assessment this is difficult to
assess. GMEU do not however feel that it is necessary at this stage unless the applicant
wishes to amend the biodiversity net gain assessments in order to take account of these
amendments.

Therefore based on the landscape proposals GMEU are satisfied that section 174 can be
complied with.

The full and outline layouts should be conditioned with the requirement that 70% or more of
the urban trees are native in order to ensure compliance with the net gain assessment as
should all other planting schedules.

A condition should also be applied requiring provision of bird and bat boxes. This is more
applicable to the full application where the bat and bird habitat occurs. It is also more
straightforward to provide mitigation within this phase as some tree retention is proposed
within this section where bird and bat boxes could be mounted adjacent to the LNR.

GMEU therefore recommend a condition be applied to the full application that prior to
development a bird and bat box plan should be provided.

No condition is required for the outline application as adequate measures are provided
within the zone 1, but if the developer prefers to put some bird and bat boxes on the new
build GMEU would have no objection.

As such, it is considered the proposed development would be acceptable and comply with
the principles of the NPPF and policy EN6/3.

Community consultation

The applicant carried out their own community consultation with local residents on 1st
September 2022 where residents were able to view the proposals and raise any concerns
with JD directly. A follow up meeting was held on 13 October 2022 to provide an update on
the planning application progress and feedback on the issues raised during the first session.
JD took on board residents comments and amendments were made to the scheme,
comprising a reduction to the height of the creche, strengthening the landscaping along the
shared boundary, amending the route of the running track to avoid roads and managing and
communicating with residents during the construction phase. It was also explained that
there would be provision for a right lane turn into the site to ease traffic congestions.

No further representations have been received following these meeting.

Response to objectors

¢ As reported above, amendments have been made to the scheme to address the
concerns raised with regards to the height of the creche, running track, landscaping and
impacts of noise and pollution during construction.

e A cycle store for 66 cycles would be provided as part of the zone 1 phase for the creche.
As part of the zone 2 development for the Hub, this building would be designed to meet
British Counsel for Offices (BCO) standards, so will provide a good level of secure cycle
storage, together with shower and changing facilities in the building. This element would
be determined within a reserved matters application.

e A Construction Traffic Management Plan would be required by condition.

¢ Any damage caused to nearby properties as a result of the development would be a
private matter.

Page 23



o All other issues have been covered in the above report.

Recommendation: Minded to Approve

Conditions/ Reasons

1. CONDITIONS RELATING TO ALL PARTS OF THE PLANNING APPLICATION

2. This decision relates to drawings-
All plans ref: 11302-AEW-
XX-SI-DR-A-0500-S2-P03 Location Plan
XX-SI-DR-A-0501-S2-P05 Proposed Zoning Plan
XX-SI-DR-A-0502-S2-P02 Existing Site Plan
XX-SI-DR-A-0503-S2-P02 Constraints Plan
XX-SI-DR-A-0504-S2-P08 Proposed Site Plan
XX-SI-DR-A-0505-S2-P04 Proposed Boundary Treatment Plan
XX-SI-DR-A-0506-S2-P01 Proposed Site Sections
XX-SI-DR-A-0510-S2-P04 Proposed Parameters Plan
02-00-DR-A-0520-S2-P05 Creche - Proposed Ground Floor Plan
02-00-DR-A-0521-S2-P05 Creche - Proposed First Floor Plan
02-00-DR-A-0522-S2-P04 Creche - Proposed Roof Plan
02-00-DR-A-0530-S2-P05 Creche - Proposed North West Elevation
02-00-DR-A-0531-S2-P05 Creche - Proposed North East Elevation
02-00-DR-A-0532-S2-P05 Creche - Proposed South East Elevation
02-00-DR-A-0533-S2-P05 Creche - Proposed South West Elevation
02-00-DR-A-0540-S2-P04 Creche - Proposed Section AA
02-00-DR-A-0541-S2-P04 Creche - Proposed Section BB
XX-SI-DR-A-0511-S2-P07 Proposed Masterplan Plan (lllustrative)
XX-SI-DR-A-0512-S2-P01 Proposed Site Sections
01-00-DR-A-0570-S2-P01 Hub - Proposed Ground Floor Plan
01-00-DR-A-0571-S2-P01 Hub - Proposed First Floor Plan
01-00-DR-A-0572-S2-P01 Hub - Proposed Second Floor Plan
01-00-DR-A-0573-S2-P01 Hub - Proposed Third Floor Plan
01-00-DR-A-0574-S2-P01 Hub - Proposed Roof Plan
XX-SI-SK-A-0027-S2-P01 Proposed Site Section DD
01-XX-VF-A-0501-S2-P01 lllustrative 3D Views (Zone 1)
02-XX-VF-A-0502-S2-P01 lllustrative 3D Views (Zone 2)

2206-CWS-XX-GF-DR-L-101-P04 Landscape Proposals - Indicative Site Plan
2206-CWS-XX-GF-DR-L-102-P02 Landscape Proposals - Future Development -
Outline Plan

JDHQ-CDL-ZZ-XX-DR-E-39001 Light Pollution Assessment External Lighting

Arboricultural Impact Assessment - UG_1466_ARB_AIA Final REV_OO May
2022 Urban Green

Bat Survey Report UG_1466_ECO_BSR_01 September 2022 Urban Green
Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment UG_1466_ECO_BNG_01, May 2022 Urban
Green

Biodiversity Enhancement Management Plan UG_1466_ECO-BMP_01, May 2022
Urban Green

Coal Mining Risk Assessment GRO-21438-3119, January 2022 Groundtech
Crime Impact Statement Ref.2012/0008/C1S/01, May 2022 Design for Security

Page 24



Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage REP-JDS-FRDS-RK-001, May 2022 Kennedy
Redford

Lighting Strategy (External) 1022986 P02, May 2022 Cundall

Mechanical, Electrical and Public Health Planning Statement 1022986/SY002
rev.A, April 2022 Cundall

Noise Assessment 1022986-CDL-ZZ-XX-RP-AS-45220 P02, May 2022 Cundall
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal UG1466, April 2022 Urban Green

Site Investigation Report Phase 1 Risk Assessment GRO-21438-33118, February
2022 Groundtech

Site Investigation Report Phase 2 Geo-Environmental Appraisal GRO-21438-
3308, March 2022

Groundtech

Supplementary Geo-Environmental Appraisal, GRO-21438-3875, 20 September
2022 Groundtech

Sustainability Planning Statement 1022986/SY001, May 2022 Cundall

Transport Assessment 2561.02, May 2022 Eddisons

and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the
drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

No development shall commence unless and until:-

e an updated and detailed remediation strategy and validation plan has been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination and

subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory development

of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas and the wider

environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 15 -

Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

This can be satisfied in phases

Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each stage
of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development
being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

This can be satisfied in phases

The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried out in
accordance with principles set out in the submitted Flood Risk Assessment (Ref
No. REP-JDS-FRDS-RK-001-REV--, Dated 27.05.2022) which was prepared by
Kennedy Redford. No surface water will be permitted to drain directly or indirectly
into the public sewer. Prior to occupation of the proposed development, the
drainage schemes shall be completed in accordance with the approved details and
retained thereafter for the lifetime of the development.

Page 25



10.

11.

12.

13.

Reason. To promote sustainable development and reduce flood risk pursuant to
Unitary Development Plan Policies EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk ,
EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 - Waste Water Management and chapter 14 -
Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change of the
NPPF.

This condition can be satisfied in phases.

All trees to be retained on site shall be protected in accordance with BS 5837:2012
"Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction”. The development shall
not commence unless and until the measures required by the British Standard are
implemented and all measures required shall remain in situ until the development
has been completed.

Reason. To avoid the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area pursuant
to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 — Woodland and Tree
Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

No works to trees or shrubs shall occur between the 1st March and 31st August in
any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably experienced ecologist
has been carried out immediately prior to clearance and written confirmation
provided that no active bird nests are present which has been agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 -
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

No development shall commence unless and until a detailed Construction
Environment Management Plan, including measures to protect the Local Nature
Reserve from dust, debris, run-off and pollution, have been submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The approved measures only shall be
implemented prior to the commencement of development and retained throughout
the construction period.

Reason. To ensure the safe and secure development of the site in relation to the
nature conservation of particular ecological significance of the Local Nature
Reserve pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies EN6/2 - Sites of
Nature Conservation Interest Local Nature Reserves and Grade B and C Sites of
Biological Importance, EC6/3 - Features of ecological interest and chapter 15 -
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.

This can be satisfied in phases
CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THE FULL APPLICATION

The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.

Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the EV

chargepoints in association with the creche building on approved proposed site
plan 11302-AEW-XX-SI-DR-A-0504 P08.

Page 26



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Reason. In accordance with the principles of the NPPF, to encourage the uptake
of ultra-low emission vehicles and ensure the development is sustainable. To
safeguard residential amenity, public health and quality of life.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
Landscape Proposals site plan ref 2206-CWS-XX-GF-DR-L-101 P04 and trees,
vegetation, plants and hedges shall be of a native species.

The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented not later than 12 months
from the date of first use/first occupation of the development hereby approved or
within the first available tree planting season. Any trees or shrubs removed, dying
or becoming severely damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of
planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those
originally required to be planted.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and
chapter 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.

Prior to any earthworks or site clearance a reasonable avoidance measures
method statement during site clearance works or any construction works for
amphibians, hedgehog and any other small mammals, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any mitigation
measures/reasonable avoidance measures identified as a result of the method
statement shall be implemented in full prior to the commencement of the
development and thereafter maintained for the duration of the site
clearance/construction works.

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 -
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Prior to any earthworks a method statement detailing eradication and/or control
and/or avoidance measures for rhododendron, monbretia and Cotoneaster spp
should be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed
method statement shall be adhered to and implemented in full to an approved
timetable. Should a delay of more than one year occur between the date of
approval of the management scheme and either the date of implementation of the
management scheme or the date of development commencing, a further site
survey must be undertaken and submitted to the Local Planning Authority.
Reason. To ensure the safe and satisfactory development of the site in the
interest of UDP Policy EN9 - Landscape and pursuant to National Planning Policy
Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.
FULL

The creche hereby permitted shall be available for the use of employees of the
applicant only and shall not be used as a childcare facility for general members of
the public.

Reason. The proposed use and permission has only been granted given the

particular circumstances of the applicant pursuant to policies of the Unitary
Development Plan listed below.

Prior to the commencement of development a bird and bat box plan should be
provided to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan should
include the provision of bird/bat boxes in trees to be retained.

Page 27



19.

The plan shall thereafter be implemented prior to the first use/occupation of the
development hereby approved and be retained in situ thereafter.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, EN6/3 -
features of Ecological Value and EN8/2 - Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment of the NPPF.

Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plans, no development shall
commence unless and until full details of the following have been submitted on a
topographical based survey of the site and adjacent adopted highways (where
appropriate) to the Local Planning Authority:

¢ Dilapidation survey of the footways and carriageways leading to and abutting
the site in the event that subsequent remedial works are required following
construction of the development;

o Widening of Pilsworth Road to a scope and specification to be agreed,
incorporating the extension of the works to tie the scheme into the existing
approach alignments on Pilsworth Road, agreed running lane and right turn
widths, minimum 2.0m footway widths, provision of pedestrian refuges at
positions to be agreed in conjunction with the proposed ghost island markings
and right turn lanes, the demarcation of the limits of the adopted highway and
all associated road marking, signage and highway and highway drainage
remedial works;

e Formation of the new vehicular access to the site from Pilsworth Road to a
specification to be agreed, incorporating plotted visibility splays at the junction
with the adopted highway in accordance with the appropriate standards in
Manual for Streets, the provision of tactile paved pedestrians crossing points
within an appropriate extension of the limits of the adopted highway,
demarcation of the new limits of the adopted highway, gates set back a
minimum of 5.0m from the new limits of the adopted highway and/or method of
gate operation amended, measures to prevent the discharge of water from the
proposed private industrial estate road onto the adopted highway and all
associated road markings, signage and highway and highway drainage
remedial works;

e Formation of the widened (Hollins Brook Way) site access from Pilsworth Road
to a specification to be agreed, incorporating plotted visibility splays at the
junction with the adopted highway in accordance with the appropriate
standards in Manual for Streets, the provision of tactile paved pedestrians
crossing points within the limits of the future adopted highway, the demarcation
of the limits of the adopted highway, measures to prevent the discharge of
water from the existing private industrial estate road onto the adopted highway
and all associated road markings, signage and highway and highway drainage
remedial works;

e Provision of LED speed warning signage in a position(s) and of a
type/specification to be agreed;

e Provision of a street lighting assessment and scheme of improvements for the
junctions of the proposed vehicular access with Pilsworth Road, junction of
Hollins brook Way with Pilsworth Road and the length of Pilsworth Road
abutting the site;

¢ White lining scheme for Pilsworth Road and the proposed private industrial
estate roads, tying into existing lining on the adopted highway;

o Retention/replacement of the existing site boundary fencing and/or all
necessary measures required between the back of the new southerly footway

Page 28



20.

on Pilsworth Road in the event that embankment/batter gradients will exceed |
in3;

¢ Measures and appropriate signage to ensure that the existing access via
Aviation Road/Bridleway No. 81, Bury, shall be used for emergency purposes
only and shall not be used for daily use to enter/exit the site;

e Review of the Traffic Regulation Orders in the vicinity of the development, with
a view to introducing additional parking restrictions as appropriate including, if
required, all necessary road markings and signage, in addition to ensuring that
existing parking restrictions remain in place and are refreshed accordingly.

The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to an agreed programme

and to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. The visibility splays

shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority before the
development is first occupied and subsequently maintained free of obstruction
above the height of 0.6m.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway

safety, ensure good highway design, ensure the intervisibility of the users of the

site and the adjacent highways and maintain the integrity of the adopted highway,
all in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan

Policies EC6/1 - Assessing New Business, Industrial and Commercial

Development, HT2 - Highway Network and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority for each phase of the development and shall
confirm/provide the following:

e Access route for construction traffic from the highway network, restricted to a
route from Pilsworth Road/Junction 3 of the M66;

e Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements;

e Access point(s) for construction traffic from Pilsworth Road (to exclude the use
of Aviation Road/Public Right of Way [Bridleway] No. 79, Bury) and all
temporary works required to facilitate access for ground works/construction
vehicles,

o If proposed, details of site hoarding/gate positions clear of required visibility
splays onto Pilsworth Road/the private industrial estate roads;

e The provision, where necessary, of temporary pedestrian facilities/protection
measures on the highway and to maintain access for users of Public Right of
Way [Footpath] No. 81, Bury, that crosses the site;

e A scheme of appropriate warning/construction traffic warning signage in the
vicinity of the site and its access(es) onto Pilsworth Road;

e Confirmation of hours of operation and number of vehicle movements;

e Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage
of the site and/or measures to control/manage delivery vehicle manoeuvres;

e Parking on site or on land within the applicant's control of operatives' and
construction vehicles, together with storage on site of construction materials;

e Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not spread onto
the adjacent adopted highways as a result of the groundworks operations or
carried on the wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site and
measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the operations.

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and the

measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended purpose for the

duration of the construction period. The areas identified shall not be used for any
other purposes other than the turning/parking of vehicles and storage of
construction materials.

Page 29



21.

22.

23.

24.

Reason. Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of
the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and that
the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works
operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary
Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 -
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

No development shall commence unless and until a 'Framework Travel Plan' for
the provision of occupier travel measures has been submitted to and agreed in
writing with the Local Planning Authority for each phase of the development and
shall incorporate/confirm/provide the following:

o feature a range of measures promoting a choice of transport mode, and a clear
monitoring regime with agreed targets;

o atravel plan budget and resources for the implementation and day to day

management of travel plan measures;

appropriate management structures;

detailed time frames for the delivery;

a marketing and communication strategy;

handover arrangements for the travel plan or its components when the

developer's responsibility ceases;

e and initial targets before first surveys are conducted.

The 'Plan’ shall establish the developer and occupier travel plan objectives and
targets and include an implementation programme. The approved schemes shall
thereafter be implemented before the occupation of each phase hereby approved,
and thereafter maintained.

Reason. In order to deliver sustainable transport objectives in accordance with
chapter 9 of the NPPF - Promoting Sustainable Travel.

The vehicular and pedestrian access arrangements within the curtilage of the site
indicated on the approved plans shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the
Local Planning Authority before the development is brought into use.

Reason. To ensure good highway design in the interests of road safety pursuant to
Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies EC6/1 - Assessing New Business,
Industrial and Commercial Development, HT2 - Highway Network and HT6/2 -
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict. .

The turning facilities within the curtilage of the site indicated on the approved plans
shall be provided before the development is brought into use and the areas used
for the manoeuvring of vehicles shall subsequently be maintained free of
obstruction at all times.

Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan
Policies EC6/1 - Assessing New Business, Industrial and Commercial
Development and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced, demarcated
and made available for use prior to the first use/occupation of the development
hereby approved.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of
road safety pursuant to policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Page 30



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Details/Samples of the materials to be used in the external elevations, together
with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is
commenced. Only the approved materials shall be used for the construction of the
development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policies EC6/1 - Assessing New Business, Industrial and Commercial
Development and EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design.

CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE OUTLINE APPLICATION

Applications for approval of reserved matters must be made not later than:

e the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the grant of outline
planning permission; and

¢ that the development to which the permission relates must be begun not later
than the expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters
or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such
matter to be approved.

Reason. Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

Before the development is commenced, the applicant shall submit detailed plans
and particulars to the Local Planning Authority, and obtain their approval under the
Town and Country Planning Acts, of the following reserved matters; the layout,
appearance and the landscaping of the site.

Reason. To ensure the satisfactory development of the site and because this
application is in outline only.

As part of a Reserved matters application relating to appearance, details of the
materials to be used in the external elevations, together with details of their
manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority before the development is commenced. Only the
approved materials shall be used for the construction of the development.
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a high quality and
satisfactory development pursuant to UDP Policies EC6/1 - Assessing New
Business, Industrial and Commercial Development and EN1/2 - Townscape and
Built Design

The height of the hub building hereby approved shall not exceed 21m in height.
Reason. To ensure the appropriate scale of development within the context of the
site and surrounding area pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policy
EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design.

As part of a reserved matters application, details of the EV chargepoints shall be
provided.

Reason. In accordance with the principles of the NPPF, to encourage the uptake
of ultra-low emission vehicles and ensure the development is sustainable. To
safeguard residential amenity, public health and quality of life.

Page 31



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

As part of a reserved matters application, details of the proposed floodlighting to
the Multi Purpose All Weather Pitch, including the specification, height, lux level
and spillage controls shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented and thereafter
maintained.

Reason. In the interests of residential amenity pursuant to Bury Unitary
Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, EN7 - Pollution.

As part of a reserved matters application, a biodiversity net gain assessment and
plan shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The plan
should consist of native trees species and a bird and bat box strategy.

The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented not later than 12 months
from the date of first use/occupation of the development hereby approved or within
the first available tree planting season. Any trees or shrubs removed, dying or
becoming severely damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of
planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those
originally required to be planted.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and
chapter 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.

As part of reserved matters relating to zone 2 an updated ecological report shall
be provided to and agreed in writing by the LPA. All mitigation measures shall be
fully implemented prior to the commencement of works and remain in situ on the
site for an agreed period of time.

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 — Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 —
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

As part of reserved matters a method statement detailing eradication and/or
control and/or avoidance measures for Cotoneaster spp should be submitted to
and agreed in writing to the LPA.

The agreed method statement shall be adhered to and implemented in full to an
approved timetable. Should a delay of more than one year occur between the date
of approval of the management scheme and either the date of implementation of
the management scheme or the date of development commencing, a further site
survey must be undertaken and submitted to the Local Planning Authority.
Reason. To ensure the safe and satisfactory development of the site in the
interest of UDP Policy EN9 - Landscape and pursuant to National Planning Policy
Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plans, full details of the
following shall be submitted at first reserved matters stage:

e All proposed means of vehicular and pedestrian access to subsequent phases
of the development;

o Provision within the curtilage of each subsequent phase of the development for
the loading and unloading of vehicles and the parking of cars in accordance
with 'SPD 11 - Parking standards in Bury' which visit the site in connection with
the uses hereby approved;

¢ Provision within each subsequent phase of the development to the written
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority to enable vehicles to enter and
leave each site in forward gear, and shall subsequently be maintained free of
obstruction.

Page 32



The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to an agreed programme
and to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway
safety and ensure good highway design, all in the interests of road and pedestrian
safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies EC6/1 - Assessing
New Business, Industrial and Commercial Development, HT2 - Highway Network,

HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular
Conflict.

For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161 253-
5320

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



'£90€Z0001 SO £20Z Sl esegejeq pue JybBUADOD umolD © £202 itouno) Aing @
. 8 S . u I ASTARL IS ‘ WA O

#V Je pajuud usym GE8Z 9[eds
€20z 99490 :8)eQ uoidnpoid

1 v |
oot |

UOHYSY IN\AENG




=]
5
=2
o
g N
>
IS
3w
TN
=0
o
Q
Q
4
o)
)
3

00S0-V-Ha-IS-XX-M3V-20¢L L

€od

S}]08)IY2IE MOE \t

©on qor

Hed powooy0 005zL  bVDojeos
) umeip 220ZOIET aep

uejd uojjeas

) Bupmelp
(el weld-y Jewuod)
qnH sndwe9 suods ar
pojois
dnois ar
U

BUIUUEI  50y: bupmep

jerosddy J04 zs
anssi jo esoding smEis
=g peadayD - Aquneig Aeq AW
onss| eyl
Had Y ZZ0Zm0iT 0

POy UOEAY 2pNpuj o] pajepdn sauj anjq pue pay

o ay 20d /
Bujuueld Jo} penss| IS

Had oy £0d

dIYSIBUMO JUBIO LIYIM pue e
289G [ BYOE'Z - Alepunog uopeolddy  memm

Koy

¥V @ 00S2Z:L 8leas

[ I 1 I | ]
{ 1 | 1 | J

wooL 08 09 O¥ 02 0

N

Bupnesp oy uo powBidly
usaq oAy SpIEZEY LMo e 'Melaq PaJoU SSBIUN

‘P 8iBe3 "W piea uaubjsaq (edjoupd
2202110161 :800NP JO PafIou Jul)
$102 NAd

"SUOJIBPUBWILIOIS
SIINOBYIUGW OU) LA DIUBPIOTVE U AROMIS
pesn 2q o) aue sionpaid pue sepelel Aieishidoid Iy o

*SpIBPUEIS USAKG 1S1E] Ul puE SuafenBay Bulpling
M BOUBMLO00E Ul UBYELBPLN 6G O} BIE SHOMIY =

‘way o) pajiddns suejd aseq
Jo Aouedass|p ajeds Jo Aorinose ey 10j algjsucdsal aq
JouLEa M3y 'SIOAERPUS B|qEUOSEe; |fe Bulsn peanposd

ale sapepunaq diysieumo pue sBupelp Aepano ey

M3V woy uojssjuiad usypm
sseidxa oy paonpoides eq Jou Jleys Buimelp siy)

*Aju0 SuOISUBLP PasNBy O} HIOM “SuosuawIp
fue ufeLBOsE O} pafeos aq jou [lRYS BuMRIp SIYL =

Sa0UBWIWOD yiom Aue eiojeq
wayoIe 8y 0) peLodel g ) Ale sepuedaosip Auy e

“31IS UO PAHIIYO 8Q O BI8 SPAG] PUE SUDISUBLIP kY »

00£0d M3V S3LON

ragc—ovuo




H

0LEY PLZ 1910
S106)UIE OB

WOT"SIOBUYOIEMBE MM
1050 V-4 IS XX-MIV-20ELL

cod

Haa P oKL zvBeme
e zzeuwens o

urjd Supoz pasodasg
mbmas

{83§ Wimjg-y seiviiog)
AN sndwieg spods ar

-
BUKUT oy sun.
feroady Jog s
s sooing vy
Aqpaeeyg Aq g -9 A3¥
s fopu

_

(315 191H0 WAGUS WasR) IR SV ——

AN 1946 NG

snawes
Busxo 530108 uoyeaw SAoKk
@ v nied iea e akd ~ § ez
L

dipiouno P wi PeY e

ko

I8 SAUTDUNG AR LRD PUR SOLAEID B0 WL

MV oy uasaLG vetm
‘SFOXD [TONI PAANPOICe1 90 10U RS BUARR ML o

&0 SucisueuIp DIy o} yow ‘SuoSLRLID
Ao UIRLIOOSY 01 PORS 9Q 19U IBYS BUyABID SIUL

‘sosusuLe Yo Aus oiojeq
19114210 944 Cy pokodes 29 o) 210 3ok Aty &

93 U0 PSR 2001 818 SAS PUS SUOBLSP by @

2220diM3v S3LON

Ao saruaBialua Joy
PEDY UDHIENY 01 Gf W0Uj 357

-~ Page 37




2

0Lk PLT 1910
SI981I4QIE Mae

W09"S1081YDIEMOE MMM

POSO-V-4aIS-XX-MIAV-T0ELL

80d

Y

Hea  onene
ay ep

wse Tv@ers
Zowane el

uelg ays pasadoly
smen

(01s et~y suwiod)
anH sndwed suods ar

7 fem
1O 1UBIY DlldNd PUE BAIISIY
— 2injeN [EJ0T 0] UCHIBUUCDH

Spgy

iaid wvm
dnosg ar
e
BUU g puan
T 7 |
aisoning s
a— S ma A - =
P =
snsstmul \‘ | wv& =
Hed @ zzouve T vod i1 D7
1 0 1 ezeld Py gy ——— o T T {
st i poand ~ . padeospue L g e ™ e e |
o o ez wa -t — = 3
et ‘“& | - - = == |
Skt caganest o ol -
wad P i — r 1
— S N g S s : |
vea wiows_voa i )i — —_— I
g e A\ =
Suent myparen) - o ot 7D
Had o o wd / \ 4 [ =
@)} =
[ P —— \ s
L 4 H —
) & e o &
poppR ey Buning ,u p i/
) @ suuow wd W, W e

78

ponoues 2q 0y e bugaeg |/

poueioi v 4 s Buwrm

venseo

Ao o B Sk

Stuppng pesodoid _H_
Buppna Supua l

Ampunog uonearicy  mem
ES)

2v D 005’} 8ledg

TOzOKE 9B 1o pRLIGY B

SLOZ WaD

SuomepusL02
SHBINUI B YA IUPIITN U AILES
951 330} 08 sianpoud pue sRUeR Amjoudoid by »

“SRIARDUBLS SR 19919) O pLB SLOLE Y Guphng
@i 3UERIG3R U AR % o by o

waig o1 poidns unid 83
10 Aweda e SIS 0 AORUNGIR B 10 MIQELOTER) Q.
ouses iy onwepus weoreRl e S perpord

8 Y0vR 100 G s e Aaban abL
M3V Way vossiused URun.

9.0 1t pROTAICRISQ 10 LR BUNRR 1+
*Auo SUSUSWID FRINGY D) XIOM “SUSIBIID.

AUR UIALAOTE 01 DI1RTS 9 10U MBS Buuelp SIu) »
S0 wom Kup 90590

1901510 04 0 paodel 53,1 4 seuRGRDED Ay +

DT p———

0220d1M3Y S3ALON

g

S

HOLLINS BROOK WAY

i
i

(0150-V-UQ-1S-XX-MIV-Z0ELL 7
Buimeip MY - uejd sisjaweled o) 18)a1)
10id uowdojaasg saning

$00eds HQISSEAIL UG -
$80LdS pIEpUR)S ‘oUge -
sadeds AJ pJepue)s "ouz| -
seceds A3 DRd "OUG -
sa%eds DRd "OUpZ -

-.§90edS "oupg = Bupped Yeis ar

Bunjied ays21a

(umam Je3s "ougz -

g

HdWoE QvoY I._.w_°>>m.=m

PILSWORTH WAY




0L8r ¥LZ 1910

-

S0S0-V-UTISXX-MIV-Z0ELL

vod

2

S18)Iu0Ie M3

et 1uma, Aiepunog pesadord
mtomer

(a5 Juelgey smuiod)
QnH sndwied $pods ar

weiont

dneis g

-

Ieroiddy Jog s
semue sevdng e

~sapeena -ka e A3

-
E & B (B
i
H
£

1641 S e
s wouy oquiy posodorg 5. m 118
o1 OF 0 urousy ysewpe Buispg * =
\nous se Sulnoutgeg 0y sz
o 35134 o YE '), ~Jo pusurdojansp
iy 1 Suoues Aieioduiet pesodoig <

2oz apancoa 1squn pepieaq

95010 Bl 't - Sove; woue ekl pesodoig

2usy 3o lequiy pepiseq
99080 By W g - 929} e Aed pasodoig =

sousy
Lrsowpie UB g - eous; istouried pesodoid s
psureier oq o seeiy Bupsiry

ueNEED

stuping posodoi D

S6urpgng Sugerry .

$30.130 110U PaNPOICR] 6 10U (Rt Bume ) »

Ao SuosusLD Dby 0} oM SuoisudLID
9 vreLseo32 o} Psje3s q Tou Weus Bume:p Bz +

IURLIED YoM K@ 95019
1BSINEI0 31 0L PRI G 0} 0 190LRCODER ity o

845 U9 PEET 06 01 018 S18AD} AU SUOUSLID Y +

DLT04IM3IV S3LON

Aepmy

101UBRy JNANd puE BAIBSN
— aInjEN (2207 0) UOIIBULOD

(0150-V-4Q-IS-XX-MIV-Z0ELL
Buimesp A3y - ue(d sisjewesed o) 1ajeu)
104 Yuswdojeraq) ainjng

i |
i
j

{ '
L“ﬁ - e I -
A

et

anannn

—

g

el el ]

il
A
L™

ail:

—

/|w3mnw Jels "ougz -
T

émnm A3 piepuejs "oug| -
#hggads A3 0%d "0ug -

Saoeds 394 oupz -

saoeds ‘ouQg = bunied yeis ar

Bunpjiey ayasiy

PILSWORTH WAY —




&

08v ¥1Z 1910
spelyoIe mae

WO0D'S10BNDIEMBR MMM
0LSO-Y-BAISNX-MIV-Z0ELL

vod

T w0gi Tv@eme
ay we zzzmen o

fepmy
ueld SisimuEIEd Pasodoid = 10 JuBry Oliand pue anlasay
e P - 8INEN [e207 0] UCHOBUUOD

(o) JuElg-y 1eusiod)

anH sndwed suods ar
aind
dnatn gr
wnp
BUINUBLD s gima
fesouddy 304 B3
srsse vesang o
- fapown < meg ma s
s g
. B . R
Guand ofparss).
e
Cunsiep mjparss o
Hag o aouweo s -
omkt ) paras)
Hag a8 czoemuso ved
soa Bunsg
wewse
Aemjowbyoang

shuping posodoid _H_
sBughng Surrs -

9571 peusdoyeaep pioudopiue pesodosd | saoeds jqISSITIB "OUg -
$a0EdS pIRpUR)S "OUGE -
saoeds A3 psepueis “ouz} -
s8aeds AZ OBd "0UG -
seoeds DRd ‘OUQDZ ~

Atepunog uoyenicy  mm—m
£

HOLLINS BROOK WAY

2V @ 005!} 21805

/mgmaw ‘oupg = Buijied yeis ar
S~ s30eds yeys "ougy -

wsz s . = 7 i Buppied aysaiy

ooy 3ene jo peLsou D

SL0Z Na2

SO G 9090550 AR
POSR 600} 610 5NPOI P SHUORI AOU0Id Iy +

“SPUBLS USTU 99191 sul pum SuoR GG Gupin
\hn 02L80,0330 ) UHOLPUN 40 ) O SHOA I +

" Soabnoa S e e

£
@
ié
14
3]
PILSWORTH WAY —--——

M3 Woy wossiuIed ueljun,
SS90 1oLy POIPOIGS 0Q10U RE4S BUMED S

“Apuo susesuaunp peinby o) pom SuoIUS 3
AL USRS 0} pOR5 8Q 10U JAUS SUMBID UL

eanueuIos Yo Ae 920j0
PoNgIE oy 0} palodel 99 ) 10 seRURdRIP Ky +

343 L0 PRELR 90 01 028 3level pu8 SUSRUOWIR I+

L2043V S3LON




WO0D'SJaa}YDIEMDE MMM
0LEY #LZ 1910

LLSO- V@IS XX-M3V-ZoE L L

i0d

i

S103)140IE MOE

{Auo snpesnsyl) uekisisew pasodold
msman

(Y Juely-y sauniod)
qny sndwed spods ar
oot

dnoag ar
onn
BRI g urmay
aneasnil o4 =

srasiin sosang e

- saperany - daman wa 3y

st B

Hed o zouuz wd

poispen e

Had oy wouswe wd

o

Hed o rmuswes cod

pa1enan toas pancusa pue pavany

Kad N o we

ool 03 prswes yoms Buumy

Hed M tromsomt sed

s 1 panssy

Hed & fowouo sd

G ol ponss|

Hag @ e w4
ATINO sAsodind

ELUR TR R L E)

PouE 9q 0} 3991 Buy ¢

e <80

Anjonsyang

stuping pesodoid D
swarpasm [

Aepunog uoyesipicy  mmm e

Bumer o
BB LBy SPIRZE LAOLY IR ‘WORA PRIOG SSHY

o suBaq pdousd
M_ﬁ:i.,uu.as.!.ﬁ_iu

SH0Z Nad

]
LMY A R BUORG39 ) NS
PaSN 8.0} b8 8apad pUS SRUDIE Kioudoad By

"SRIPUBIS USALR 15019 513 DR SUOI6e BuBING
LI 831810208 Ul UBHELORUD 900} 310 SXOM Ry &

umg o et sl s

o Senad o P SRS Aot o+

i3V W0y uomsIuLeG BT
‘55010XP 100AAM PAATGIGR 00 10U I0LS Bulme) Sy »

A0 SUDSUSLIR PN O} Wions Susuo;
Aum um1I6223 of Delas 96U FRUS BUMER UL

]
%3333?3....2-335.

318 U0 PR $40) 818 3ASS B SuSTIUTLIR B+

DL20dIM3Y S3LON
1

h.
.1\

\ i fepm

\ 03By o

HANG pue enlesey
— BJNJEN 907 0] UOHOBULOD

_ e
54 oy vone pusiod

Bzejdq
‘padeaspue

e

(s

¥

...7,.4.....

@

(598 x 522}
Yold Jeyjeem
IIv esodind-ninpg

AN

ous Somun

R RREE R A

_ seoeds AJ "oug) -
seoeds aiqissa00e oug -
s90edS PJEpUE]S "0UGE = ——

saseds ‘ouls = w:.._._am qny
[ ——)

saoeds AJ "oup -

2|qISSa00R "OUp -
ssoeds

=Bupied sqopsipy

seoeds pJepue)s ‘ouz| - ‘M

] —— A
1 t . - = 3 ~
R — 1 s -
l»kl!l’@ vvvvvvvvv — —
i . G — —

~.§eoeds ‘oupg = Bunjed yeis ar

/’mgmnm 3e18 "ougg -

s90BdS 8|qISSA00E 'OUG -
saoeds piepue)s “ougg -
sa0eds A7 piepue)s ‘ouzl -
saoeds A3 DBd OUG -
$80edS QB OUHZ -

Buppied syasin

i

L IAS;\N\% FRERTE

g

HINOE GYOY HLEOMST

PESWORTR WAY




vod vV ® 00S'L

ot e R S S

“ON "AOY 2leos oL e o [

plriienes )
LOL-1-¥a-49-XX-smo-¢0zz - mmen | S0 et | | i e, — ey phkaine I
-oN Buimesq ey earievpen]

Buiuue|d 2202 1290100 =R (O]
I —
10§ panss| eeg oo [
ue|d Sl sAlesipu| —

sjesodoldq adeaspue e

R
sndwe) syedg ar Edvteips] g cpeaecn v
welosg ooy s SRS  m—
o S—
A0l LW 1eiseyouepy . Ao
P

N 00-01PN}SMIDIQjU)
S68E YOV 1910 8L

20T HA-4O-XX-SMO-902Z
Guimesp o sejen]
veld usudojeAag aimnd

“UGRONASUOD
84084 PoYYo.e sdeospue] au) 0) pepoda. 8q o} s
10 1UBuAdo? By) UjEwes SUBISBP PalEIIOSS!

ssodind Aue ioj peanpo.das aq jou isnl
51 4ol Joj esodind oy 4o pes

,_.._
641 810499 SUCSUBWIP |2 394D O] FRISBNbE S| ORIl
“Ajuo suoisuswip peindy esn "ITVIS LON OG




2
<
|

OLEV PIT 19LD
$)ONYIIE MaE

WOD'SJORYYIIBMBE MMM

0290-v-40-00-20-M3V-Z0EL |

§0d

Had  paseeur TR T
> e 250 -

UBld 10014 RUNOI PasodoId - AUIRIS

QoL : L B efecs
o0 Bumasp.

UB|d 100]4 punois pasodold

{ays eld-y
awiog) any sndwe spods ar

pabi

oning

cousliug e
dnois ar ~
. 2 [ v — u

PIBES e s

esnjey

[eaoxidy 104 zs
smae woting sners

-
o uweig witowa  wea  seu
e au s S m_EEvoist V03

e aw Wees oIS TpeR e ZTvORE Zba

sopfo

e

P
P o i bl Zzo od

£ i G oy 201G 508

= 71
]

~y

poaysono seinorjs b
Jootog-aid #douaa jo juajxe
Sejousp ouf pyseq wosey wezol
el 1 e
g et S o a ¥ 7
— A H = — A _ w0y JejppoL 1 w00y 16PPaL

MYTEOL 1210} puesD
vzl (ro el 20
. 1 —" L

M Lez9] 100]4 PUnOIS €0

PeayIoAD SemIONIS
Adoues jo wewe
¥ selousp euj payseq

voiy | 5]
VIO

Brpesp 0 L0 PHUBB
120G GATY GRIGZEY LGLY 19 MOIRA PIOU SSEMIN N

[ — i o
Zzozioms  veun o BauRoU D i

wsn

UepIoD PO

S10Z WA

OODERKK KX MIV TR
~-49N [9pal o) 04p auImI00 Euranip SML -

“SuOyEPSLLIOII
HIONEANEL 51 Y 90ED;0328 Ul AgoIaE

@ _ &)
Pown 60,0} o1m anpoxt pus eEe Kietspdoxl By - Cle () 70 )
SPITRUTS WSO 1T W PG UOOGR Buipkng L N Arl\

i 4311201030 U] UBYELIPUN Q.G 1T ERIOA BY — —

W 0 iojdne suogd eseq

| Rl
MY WO UOrSHLG LS il
‘Sx0idx6 110U PSoNRaIdel 8q Jou et BUMEIR ERL  «

/10 SUSISUBLI PAINGY O3 WO Suorsuewp
A U008 o) Pajes 8 10 s DuEPSHL -

‘SeNIBUAICT Yo Aue 91040
1EE %) 41 RaOGal 20 0 018 SoNTRINP Ay«

S8 40 £349BD 50 9118 813G U SO NY -

Page 43




2
<

0LLP ¥1Z 19LD

WOD SJOAIYIIEMIE MMM
S102Y21R MEE

1290-V-4Q-10-T0-M3IV-Z0E L)

$0d

o

~y

Had  parw il Wwows
> e 2zsomo =

uBld 100 1511 PIEOdoid - 3Y9IrD

wa s

(ous weld-y
1awiod) anH snduies spodg g

Pt

dnoig ar

7368 ou comesp

Toroxddy 104 s
areis wodina s
L
v meia webewa oma  my
ey S B R ZELE 00
s wvey_zzmone_zod
ey

Wia oy wawmes s oisenden 22802 04
e — SR Sl v 7R ¥
Tid i o ey 20180504
A vze0L o) pusin.
4201 |
T T o1 1832 10
1629 10014 punois 00

T ey T e

VIS
Bupneip 04 uo PoBNGY
Uses aARy EpETR o 18 ok B SO
Py Jeudsseq BaUd
T sow o Py Aty
5102 NAO
1000V ENXXCMIVZ0EL |
~ con 19pac Bumoles ou cimud

“SPICRUSIS S JSOH O PuS SUOTORGEY BUPINE

L 93UEDIO3% U] LOYSLIELI 8Q G &iE B Ry +

I8 SUBINGG DUSIUMD PUE SEUMEID ASHRAO SWL  +

Ay wou uorssiuusd o

oot Viagun poorpaIde oq 10U INUE BUMER B
/140 walsuwp pNBY G WoM WolsUSWP

B UIGED2 0 POIEE 00 100 S BUMEPEL <

S8ouaLILIOa ow A8 Biogeq
TRIIE w4 0 payiodas 89 o ere swuedorp Ky

B8 10 DA 90 ) e MOAS] PUE RITIKGUDRY

PO 4
sofeq s
L hdowso soy puncigy

0oL 1 @ sless

ue|d 100|4 }sii4 pasodold

s100p Buiporg

H

i

s

woo) _E“ _é._z

woos peg

e [BWiOI 0} pung

tofeq sainomIS
Adoues ool punoig)

)

#0j9q sampna
- Adoued joof punci

molq
[P ——

15)

@

o)
Nt

Page 44




WOD'S)ITY|YIIBMA MMM

2
<

Had  peoeus 0Ll WO
28 e asa -
33
bl &
i
" = uvld Jooy pasadold - RIS
B
wd " Bummrip
{3HS Weld-y
4swind) anH sndwed suods ar
il
-
=
g m dnoip ar
¥ v,
M PBUS  oup turaer
&S feacddy 103 zs
w-c 8310 ssomsag nelg
x &
ko [LEREO N wedorea _wea
7 [T s Borens R CNOILE 103
[~] [ — awn oleipesred CANOSE  Tod
? T R
P Wl au  emnbansppeney Zz0iS0 30d
©
o
N
1)
o
a7
o~

W pZ6aL o1} puess
1 i feren ueid 2o,
weige 10014 1543 10
= A 1979 Jnol punol9) 0
T eay I a1
o
Bupnaip 014 U0 POMBINGIY.

188 8By SEuEzEY U 18 MOkQ RSO BEBIN

e s00tiseq Mg
P ———

§10Z Wad

100D BN AN MIV-Z0E1 1

= 910 9pON BUMCROl 315 UG Bumasd L
BP0
SINHIEIL 3G G S2UBDI03E Uy BT

D51 50 01 are ynpoud pus sjeumew Ligeudox fY -

“apspuziS yeIg Ieie] ) pus suogelay Suplng
L3t SMEPICI28 Ut UYEEPUD ¥ S 81E BRIV -

weap 0 puicns suept oseq
10 Aoudeizsp 6166 6 ADBINE W4 I SGIOLEY] 9T
10UES M $I0KE06D SREuaRER) e urin pesrpaxd
U SoUBRUNGG duSINID PUE SBWALIP ASYONO SBL -
M3V we uoresuied e
5RXID F1oUIRA PEIMPIGE] 00 10 S BAEID SNL

/o suaisuBLD penBy o} KoM SucisueLIp.
A IG1025 of RO(R35 89 10U HEUS B SIL  +

‘SOBUNIGD Yo AU esojen
TR ) 51 paiode: 9 o) sie sauederp Auy o

“2u8 U0 PEYoaND 0 0) 018 810AS| U SUCKIGWIP RY  +

Moqaq seimanls
Adoueo 100} punoss

@

oo

(eary pd)
100y sae)

mojoq NS
Adovea ool jaid

Joori8td

olq saunions
Idowod o0} punosS

N
&

)

&

e 00L:L Bojeos
UE|4 Jooy pasodoid

Lt sk g ea) i sseade ool 10}
amuopug pekd S e

Moleq saimonis
#douea ooy punarD

&

419)

Page 45




2
2

0LEV YLZ L9LO
ESTTEICPACE

WO2°S}03)YDIEMOL MMM
0€50-V-MQ-XX-Z0-M3AV-Z0ELL

S0d

on g

a0y

HEd  pewsuwo  paopuisy  zv Do
i wep ZzIsom0 orp

uoyeadly
3sap Ypop pasodoid - ayaaly

ofp Bumeip

(ons ueid-y
a3wio04) qni sndueg spods Qe

weford

dnoig ar

Juogo

¥ eBrig abors Gumeip

feaciddy Jog Fay
anss| jo esoding snRig
fg A
PeXosyO  umeig uopduoseq  eleq A%y
HEd  dy __onssjbueiqeny| Z2p0/2Z 10d
HEd oM isep jserel o) poNOY  ZZWO/ET  20d

== Suewwos
Hed  dY  juesnsuco Sumueid o) pelEpdn ZTSORL  €0d
Had o onss: Buiuueyd pesiney ZZ/0L/90  ¥Od

HBd  dy  Buluer o) penssies suoieAeid ZZOLLO  S0d

:Buelp ayj uo paiyBiBiy
U990 SABY SPIEZEY WACK |[E 'MOq P3JOU SSAJUn)

PRV Jsubiseq jedioulid
TZOZIOIEL  SIP o paysiou JusIKD
SL0Z A0

H000-YEW-XX-XX-MIV-Z0EL b

- :sajy [ppow Bumolio) au) sujejuoa Bupaelp siu)
“SuojRPURWWOOaL
S12INORJNURW BU) L 2OUEPI0OIE U ARDUIS
paan aq o} ate sjanpoid pue sieusiew Kiejaudord iy

“SpIRpURIS Usg Isele] 84 pue sucyenbey Bulping
i 30UBRIGZ0E Ul USYEUSPUR 3G O) BJE SHIGM [y +

“wieyy 0 peijddns sueld eseq

10 fouedaiosip ajess ko A9BINGOR BU) Jo} JlqIsuodsa) 3G

JouUED MIY ‘SIoABIPUS dJqRUCSES j|B Bussh paonpoid
21e SeLEPUNOG dIYSISUMO pUE SBUIMEP ABUSA0 BRI -

‘MY oy uoissiuuiad Uapm
ssaidxa Jnoyjw peanpoxdel e jou [feys Bumep sl -

“Ajuo SUOISUBWIP PeInBij O} HIOM "SUOISUBWIP
Aue UIeY3088 0} P39S 8 jou [[BYS Bumelp SI1

$I2UBLLWI0D Hom Aue 2J0jaq
JaNydIe ay) o) payiodal oq 0} are sajpuedaisp AUy -

"BYIS UD PAISLD 3 Of B8 SIPAB| PUB SUOISURWIP [IY  +

Buippep yopw o} jeued paianol Ddd 5L

1830w 4016 yiep ypm Yiud 3OuQ ORlE i

i o ofgna) sCeufiy Eb
‘52018 ke 0} 0U8) J}SNA3E J6qUY) PERIE] 250
4018 ysep L speRsnfEq 1Bq oy WINLKUNES OdL
sojfuys keib pax)

9L 1nofos - sewie Aexd o) serdoues

30140} JGOP1BAD Y 2U0OP RUIOK® [PalS Aoif 11eq
DL N0 - Sta) BAEA BINBaS

SOUILJ Y2640 U SMOPU / B USIND
Seures) YITq Yam eouUe UIBw 0) Bufem uepnD
pueq Buppep einres) / Suddes jedesed xoelg
SIuof Girieo) yum BppeR [jow pauds EaNiEN
fasb 316 U use108 jueld pesand] kI Ddd
Siu0f ainyee) U BUPPEKO oW Aos6 yraq

e S

Aoyt

143

00l : | © ejess

uoieas|3 1se\\ YLON pasodold

)

300]4 punciS 00 4
W 05g°28 134

W 008’46 dd

uroge's6 144

Uas10g JUE|d Jo do] M
W £51'66 T4

~—Page 46




2
k:

oLeY vLZ L9LO
$)99)IYdJe MOR

WOD'S10YIIEMIE MMM
oN g

1€S0-V-HA-XX-20-M3V-Z0ELL

0d

S

HEd  Peysayo powopuI sy Zv Defess
™ wneip, zzisomo oiep

uoneAsjy
3se3 yuoN pesodoid - 9Ysaiy

ofi fumeip

(ous Jueid-y
1suuo4} qny sndwe spodg gr

1oofosd

dnoig gr

uego

P OBIS e sumern

- 00} L © sleos
Prouddyiod 7S uoijens|J jse3 YuoN pasodoid
enes| Jo ssoding snieig
L) fq
PORBYD  WAEK] vopduoseq  eleq ey
Had ) ~enssjBusamiq [e|22A0/LTL0d
Hed oM wbjsop 1S9l OV PRIAY _Z2/h06e20d
wwsiaiso
Had dy  wemsuo Bujuueid o) perepdn 22150121 €0d

HEd o enssi Buuueid potinoy 2010 KO : : = n | |
HBd  dy  Buuueyd Joj penssiel suoieAsi3 ZZOLLO  SOd

| 10013 puNIs) 00
L ’ B wse/ 144

& (A AN A

@ : ) S | — | = —
Ve r = w "
Bumesp ay) uo payBIBlYy R
usaq aAey spiezey wwouy (je ‘mojeq palou ssajun RN
(N7 euBisaq Jediouig J/\L\J\ = — _— = ] — | - XX b0
TTOZLOIEL  SRUNP O paOU ueIlD ' LI
5102 NGO W/

L]

lene el

-~ Page 47

LOOOYEW-XX-XX-MIV-Z0EL L
- 53|} fopow Bummoljo) 2u) Sulelued Bumelp SIUL y
*suoEpUaWWOos)
SIBINIIEHNUBW U} YIVA SOUSPIOITE Ul Ajjouls 6 \\z1 9 L 9 L € 1 6 oL
pasn aq o} eJe spnposd pue sjeusiew Kiejeudord |ly - T

*SpiepuElS Ysqug 1sele] ey) pue suonenBey Buiping
Ui 30UBPICOAR Ul USHELIBPUN 3 O} 12 SHIOH Il -

“way 0 paliddns suejd sseq 7
10 Aouedaiosip 90 1o AoRINO0E By} 40} elqisucdses oq ) .VQ
Jouueo 3 "s10Aeapue 2jqeuoses: |je Buisn peonposd ? -
51 SALEPUNOY dIYSISUMO PUE SEUMEIP ACOA0 DL -

IV Wolj uoissiwed UM
ssaidxa oy paonpoidal aq jou fieys Bumesp sy

*AJUO SUCISUBLIP PRINBl O} YIOA “SLOISUAWIP

Aue ujBLRSSE 0} PajRds ag jou {isus Bumep sy - CW—M}MV_

JELOW A6 Yep upm Liud YOG ¥oBa b 7
saouson o Aus e10jaq

{uoeaydde ajasedes o} |aefqns) eBsubs pajsurLng
aUyoIe ay) 0} papodal aq 0} ale sajouedaosip AUy « ‘seai Agid o] 89U} j3N00B 18QUI PEPIES] BSOLD

£24B 12p 1f BpPEASNIE J8q IOy WINUINE Ddd

*S)18 U0 paxale aq 0) 212 S[EAS] PuB SUCISURWIR [y + _ P lend o b

= = S9IAMIO] 100D-12A0 WA S400P [eUISIXE RIS AuB e
1 sl mﬂm 0@L IN0joa ~siay fEANOA ITGRRY
1 i SGUEY O] U IO / Bl UEUND

b

s

puBq Buippe ainjee) / Suddeo jedesed yorlg |
Siuol GIryes) Y BUIPPER el peuo) KRuNieN
A@16 2P 1 ueaias jueid peinc) BleW Ddd
S1U0] BnyBey Y Buppeto fmeus Aas8 yeg

Aoy




3
X4

0LEY PLZ LOLO

WO $)J3931Y2IBMIB MMM

2€50-V-¥a-XX-20-M3V-20ELL

S0d

oofoid

ON Bmng

dnoig ar

1uog>

VOBEIS g0 bumern

[eaciddy Jo4 by

oy

Bupaelp sy uo pawBiIuby
U33q 3ABY SPIEZEY UMOUY l|B 'MOfRG PaloU ssejun

pHY usuBisaq fedioud
TT02ULOIBL  TSAUNP 1O PaOM MBI

G102 WAD

LOOGYEA-XX-XX-MIVCOEL L

- 53 [PPOW BUMO]|0) 2y} SUIEJUOD BupEIp St

“SuojepuBLILIbIa)
SIBINPRINUBU BU] LW BOUBPIOOTE Ul AIOUIS

pasn aq o} aie sjonpoid pue sieusiew Ketaiideid iy

"SprEpURlS Ysiug isele| ey; pue suonemBey Butping

I BOUBPICITE Uy USHEBPUN 34 0] 318 SHIM Iy

‘wiay) o) payddns sued aseq

Had  Poweuw  paeojpuisy 2V Bems
H o e 2S00 ewp
£
M
]
o
ES uopesig
@ 1583 yinog pasododd - 8yasiy
7
opn Buerp
(a8 Juejd-y : 9jeo!
13un04) qnH sndwen syodg gr 00l L © sjeos

uoneAs|J 1seJ yinog pesodold

143

anss] jo ssading snRIg
5 T
poyooun umelq uoydioseq  wieQ  A%Y.
Had  dy  onss|buwmigjean) ZZA0/iZ L0d =
HB8d  dd  UDIs9pisele| o posinoM ZziQiez  20d | W 0go4e T4

Suewwos ! |

HEBd o Jueysuod Guued o) pelepdn ZZS0RL  €0d
Had Q. onsst Buaieid posiney 22/01/20_b0d
Hid  dd  Buuued o) penssies suoeA3 2200 50d

i

Page 48—

Jo hourdaizsip sjeas Jo Aorinooe sy Jo) slgisuadsal ag o
jouuRo MY “SsI0AB9pUS lqeucses [je Bugsn paonpoid
318 SUBPUNOG dUSISLMO PUE SBUMEID ASHIA0 SRIL  +

M3V Woy uoissiwiad UsHim

S501dx8 NOUIYA PeaNpoidel d 10U EYS BUMEP SNL  +
Guippep (o ol fued painnof odd 'Sk

sepow Aeib usp Y Yiapd oug xorig m"

“Ajuo SUOISUBWIP PaINGY 0} HIOM 'SUOISUBWID
AU UBp9OSE 0 Pa[RoS 3¢ Jou [laLs Buwelp SNL

‘seele Az 0} 69U0) ASNOIE JaqUA) PAPIEDY BS
4018 yiEp U epERBNIEq J2q 18y WNLLNE D
sejuys Ao pan

081 Incto0 - seese Aed o) sedoued

381AN] 1001BAD Y SIGOP [eWep [o0rs Aeib 1ioG
QR N0 - S FEAeA GurEey

SOy 0] Ul SWOPU / BN UELIND
‘Seuiey OB UM SOULIUS WEW o) BUIfOM BIEUND
pueq Buppep ainjea)  budded jedesed xoelg
‘sjuiof @injes) yuw Buippep [ejew pouot e
foaB o W use10s |ueid peiano] W Ddd
S1uiof 21nyes) yw BuPpeto Flew Aei xieq)

S30USWWOD Yo Aue aicjeq
o3)YIe y) 0} psjioda) o o) ale sajouedasp AUy -

‘a)S U0 PaX0aYD 3 O} BIE SIPAS] PUR SUCISUAWIP Iy

R R

Aoy




2
(T

olev viZ Lolo
sioayole moe

WOo9'S3a3}IYIIEMIB MMM

oN Bma

€€£50-V-4A-XX-20-MIV-20¢i}

S0d

Had  peweus pojolpuI sy 2y Deeas _
[} wep 2SO0 ewep ,
uoneai3
Js9pA ynog pasodoagd - ayaaln
48 n_..;ni
(oy1s welg-y
1suuoy) gnH sndwe) syods ar
etosd - 001 : L © afess
uoneAs|J 1Sep\ Yinog pasodold _
dnoig ar
wogo

¥ OBEIS  opers pumep

|eaciddy 104 s

anssyjo osoding snEis

A Aq
PORND  uneiq uoydioseg  ejeq A%y
Had oy enss| Buweig [ea) ZZH0/LZ L0
Had  dd UBisop 15010} O} POSINOY ZZ0/6Z  Z0d
Suogs oy paspon 22501504 2 g 2L
HEd  dd  eynsuoo buy
HEd gy enssiBuwsid pesinoy Z7/0MSO  bOd e ] 8 € L 8 b s 9 z
HEd <Y Buuerd 10 penssiel susenof3 22010 SOd _ _ _

5 sod |
A 100]4 punois oo T : : T -
W 0se'/8 144 | a5 |8 ! | A 3 I : _ _ _

.’. / I 5 o 7 \
puysq Bupus) B 1 I Q7 I
12jeWpsd p— - . mm——

10 8ur] 2 OPE B e e [ B BN DU D B TEE GO D O e S NN D N e S g CEENSGR (RIS MY LRSS EESE S R e

'

:Bumesp ayj uo payBiyBiy e R
U88q BARY SPIEZEY UMOUX I[E 'MOjOq Pejou Ssalun

By usubisaq jedpuug o
zzoziLoieL S9N Jo paILIOU JUBIY

S10C a0

HOOOVEN-XX-XX-M3V-ZOEL L wesl'es

- 159[l [5pOW BUIMO]I0] 3L} SUIRIUCS BUBAEIP SILL
‘SUOYEPUAWIWOS!
SISINPRIUEW U} Yjtk 23URPICITE Ul AOLIS 6
pasn aq o) ate sjnposd pue sieyeiew Aiejoudord Iy - 4 4 sk ¥ 3 L 78 6 v ¢

“spiepuRlS ysiug Isele) 8y pue suoiepBey BulpiNg
LIIWA 85UBPIODIE U] USYRHIPUN 34 0) 318 SHIOM iy «

“wiey o} paijddns sueid sseq @ -~ falall =

1o Aourdaiosip ajeos o AorInsae sy} 10} s(qisuodsel aq ~ ) 9

JouURD ATV "SI0AB3PUS B|qEUCSES! |[B Butsn psonpoid - — 5
218 Sa/BPUNOd dIJSIBUMO PUB SBUMEID ACUIA0 3L  +

M3V woi uorssied usy ue|d Ay

sseidxe Jnouw pasnpoldel o Jou [jels SUMEIp Sk -

®
®)

“Ajuo SuoISUBWIP PRNBY O] YIOA ‘SUOISUAWIP
fue uayianse o] pajeas aq JoU [[eys BUKKRIP SNL

Buppep Yajew o) feusd painol Odd 'St
Jepows AsiB wep Uim ulogd Youq oug pi
(uonaoidds sjeredes o} joefqns) eSeubls pejsuung ‘ch
‘58618 ke 0} 0us) AYINDL 10GU POPIE] BSOLD ‘Z)
A216 yiep W Bpessnieq Jeq joh wLINE Ddd L1
‘sefiuys 4aib paxiq 0L
QL Inojo - seere keyd 0] saidoue

SAIAN0] S00-1GAD U SI00P FEUIGIXD [PRIS K915 Y1
081, 1000 - Suy opeA eIEa4
S3ILON ‘SOLURY YOI LM SMOPLIM 7 Bulfes wELND
‘Sawe) Horl Ui S0URIUS UjBLU O} Bugem weunD.
pusq Buppe einiee; / Buddes jedaied xoug
‘siuol aanjsay ywwm BuPpEl fejew poud RINEN
Koi Ep Wt ueas0s Jueid paiano) ERW Ddd
a0l ainyse) L Buppeo few 4eiB yreq

$30USWIWI0D Yiom Aug 210j0q
wRUYse 8y} 0} pajiodal oq o} sle saouedalsp AUy

"3)IS Uo poaLa 2q o) B8 SjeAR] PUE SuAISLAWIP [y

S EEN G

A

IONVANDSY ANO QN ITOL  +4eg 3feds




snB

e e sort auva
aoueUT 3G ABNA %00ug SU|OH WO M3IA - L0 MIAIA IAILYHLSNTT
_ ATINO S3ASOdHNd IAILLYHLSATII HO4

sndwe) dr ‘anH - ZogLL

Page 50




~g BUOZ) o 10 enneasnTL0a-TS-20S 0 =A X X- 20 MET-ZCE L

¢z507231va
gml—\ YoHd 8pis-e-G ss0I0. M3IA - 20 MAIA IAILYHLSNTII

_ ATNO S3S0OdHNd FAILVHLSNTTI 404 sndwe) ar ‘anH - Zogli




u0Z) = Qe AHRLSNE L0 STZ0S0 =ARK-20-MIY-20E 1L

2Z6CvZ 31vA

(Juoid) MaIA [elRY - €0 MIIA SAILYYELSNTI
_ ATNO S3S0d¥Nd AILYHLSNTI 04

sndwe) ar ‘anH - Zoell




17 BUOZ} SMAIA OE BAKBASNAI L0d-Z8-050-3AXK-Z0MIV-Z0E LY

(leay) maiA [BlURY - #0 MIIA IAILYHLSNTTI

_ ATNO S3S0ddNd JAILYHLSNT 04

sndwed ar ‘anH - ZoglLh




|

0LEY ¥1Z 1910

WOD'SIIBIIIEMBE MMM g

0L50-V-4A-00-LO-M3V-20ELL

$0d

0/20d1M3Y ~ s3iON

S10BHYDIE MOE

2

onaer

Hes P coer vems
@y wee ez o

uelg 1004 punain pasodaid
~any
pisems

(&N weld-y sauiod)
any 3ndused spads ar
et

anasp ar
o

Z9BIS o puman
uoyzing 04 s
arasi o swoding womss

- aprrom - g wa nau

sessi it
H3d ay oo o

ALLVELISNTII BOd

2V @ 00Z:1 jeas

N
B alg w0 pBINBL
1367 84D SPI9Z84 oL B "A0RQ PRIOL SSERN
P11 w3 W pnva Saubseg REpULY
Zzonoe s jo pasou e
5102 W2

SuopuUswLILOIH

SN B i $3UBPI339 Ul RIS
PaSN 6Q 01 02 sjonpoud pur spURIRW Lmeudold by «
“SPJBDURIS USQUE 15A18) U} puB SUOERNERY Buiphng

Gl 351470558 U UOAELSPLR 5001058 SHOM Ry +
w0 poddrs susid ozwa
10 AOuBdesani S{E08 10 FORNIDY 04} 205 SITBLOTREI 9
larS M3V 4s0nEepue BISG0rss B Bl peanposd

078 SBUIPUNOG JIFSIOUMO PUN SELIMEID LEPenD INL o
3w o s usjun

S344D INOUNM PRONP0IDR) 89 OV IS Bumesp SIUL &
440 U DRI O WORA TUOBAD

AU URLIEISY O DADIS 94 10U IRUS SUINED L ¢
Seumw0 o (4 91059

112 Up of petsode] 3G 0} 919 seiouedesmp Ay o

9 U0 PIRELD 50 01 918 1WAV PUS SUCRURLID By +

| A1INO s3sodund

gE

eaue bugem
U

_
3

dous
FOO0W / dOuS JeIs ar

(amn 9
ouns bunesi
pus wooy piEog

—
i ]
A

FiREtRilany
L]

IJELIHIH

i

zv -7

LA
LN

&

 Page 54




&

WOT"S100HYIIEMBE MMM

LLS0-V-4arLOo-Lo-MIV-Z0ELL

s0d

0¥ ¥1T 1910
5198)U2JE MOE

onawr

Had P P
a e ozuse 3

ueld 10013 3544 pasodosd
-anH
st

(0315 jurid~y 10usio )
Qny sndwisg sy0ds gr
oot

dnoso ar
e
T966IS e bemas
ueiessnlll 105 (43
P

~hapepasd - damng wa nau

orsst w1
ey ¥ zeomswor wd

| AINO 3330d¥Nd

JALLVYLSNTTI ¥Od

2v D 00Z'L eleas

N
“Bume o vo perEEN
S0 819U SpISTaL Un T WOBA PAOU SEEPIY
P - sosbsq Kdoug
e s Ko A
$10Z WaD
‘suouspuewoon

SL0mRMAN 91 Wk BNGRIOD0R U KNS

PN 84101 S330posd PUS SRR ARLGOI Y +

EPDUAS S Seiv S 0t stoTe SN BUDHG
41N 83URDICD30 4 UBHEI0LT 430} 00 S B+

10 hausdeiosp sfeos o Aoeunoae o) o skgauodias

o SaUNpUNOQ s R1M0 DU SOUMLLD fabero B

qQ
]
d
W2y wai vormd vagum

‘350,000 1ok PIINPOICG 00 10U IBYS BUNED S =

(U0 SLOISUSWP POINDY 3} XN SUOBUIWD
A UIRROSE 0) PRE2A 3 0 IRUS BuARIP UL+

‘soousuy am ke wopeq
POUBIN 914 o poj0GY) 3 0} 88 SIRUSISRP Ky o

998 U0 PRI 80) 038 3RAS PUS OISR B
D.20d M3V S310N

v8

Y

L ueis

1l

L

LN

T

T

&
| g
g
&

PIOA Wiy

g sy
R o™

-—?5—»
Tl
o .

1

“d

Wi ag et
Swooy Bueepy / eomdg
Bupyopy SfixaLd g anjeeyL noe

:

Py
*h

i
T 33'_'

PR AT

L

3

av

Page 55




H

08V $12 1910
198114018 MR

WOI'SIIEHYIEMOE MMM

onar

ZLS0°V-UA-20LO-M3V-Z0ELL

sod
"y

Hod  peprw wz1 TR %]
@ e s e
Ve
utlg 10013 PUOISE Posodosd
-anH
ameman

(BUS UB14-Y Ju0d)
qny sndweg suads Qr

et

dnosp ar
s

ZOBHS e puman
woriexsni 03 =

anustyo sssdng s
-daperanss - avmug wa
srsiRyl

) o Rosew v

2d

158

PIOA WnLy

Briqm”k

bamis

ATINO S3S0dtind
JALLVHLSATII ¥Od

T

LIIIHII[IH
1]

2v @ 00Z'1 8le0s

reruaz

UGNEPOUANGITY GIO

Bumasp 13 ve PG
9SG wAy SFUBZE UNGLY 1R ‘MO PRGSO

Pr l6ez W o 9uB RUY
TR0k sere o poyseu eIy Wy = e e _ E—

$10Z Wad

UL i
SRR 0L G SNPRIR W NS o : fad
RSN 461 $13700K PUe SRUBIEW Aljaudaid Ry + L A A kS

“SRIRDUBLS USIIUG SO 013 PuB SLORINGR Buphg
UK B3LEP.398 Ul LGKGLSDUN 8301 88 XM By &

we o poydire susld oeng

10 Aauegeronp #eas 10 aRiNaoe B 10) SlqEUOSIR) 9G

1OULES MY “SOMERUS S1WUo383 I8 Busn peanpoud.
10 epUnG RN P SELARER 184 2B *

VA o UormsIued Vosun

85900 0L PRONPOIGR 99100 IBUS CUMRID SKIL ©
‘Ao SUGUBLIP DONBY O WM SUDRUSLSR

AR LIELIO238 01 POFRE 9 100 IPUS GUBID UL o

]
198412 04§ 0f PEYOde1 9 6) 3.8 escradonp Auy

B8 U0 PHRIU2 901 919 SRAR] PUS SUOrUBIP By
0220d1M3IY S3LON

Page 56




0Ler PIZ L1910

W0D'S|I))YDIEMBE" MMM

£250-V-UC-£0-LO-MIV-ZOELE

Lod

w
2

S198)10IE MBE

HEd e o0zi ZvOewes
ay —p 2253 o
uelg 0004 PilUL posadold
~anH
s

{3415 1usid-y Jawsiod)
AnH sndwe) spods ar

dnoio ap

>.-=°| MW“EE:& ]
SALVELSATY 404

W

Z90ES s ey

uonessnly 104 s
ey st

| e wa e
[

Lorea e o

wemeq ubaq RopuLy
Zoznoes  semne o peRiouRID
5102 Wao

“SuoyspuRwLOIN
SRYAHTUIA 81 (o 30Sp036 Ut Kpoias
Pasn 0q 0} & sianpeud U smvelewl Aioudosd By «

‘SHIRDUGIS USUE 1SWRE 04} BU SLOQeRGS BUPKTE

“waig of poyddns susjd axeq
10 Kousdaromp 91w0s 10 KowNEos g ) SfaaLRded 9q
J0UATES A3y “$:0183PUS aIgeLOYW 8 Buisn peangoid

MY wy vorssured vein
o suarususo paInbl o wom SusurLR

seusuL0> 30w s xjoq

B4 217251005 U} UOHRLSPLN 0 01 O THOM Y +

o1 salimpunoq ciusewe pun sSumup Aujen spL
350,009 119 PASNAGIOR) 09 10U RS BUARP KLY +
U UIRIBSE 0} PEIS 9 ou GRS BARID 31U«

10INRI0 540} PEAIade) 390 97 BORURERSEP Ay o

918 40 BN 9901 110 SRS pus SuOTsUID By

D/Z04IM3Y S3LON

1523
Ve
]
€8
vE .
€
--' g
93 -—-— o——n—
—\w.
T o
e%E «.., o
597 «\\
\\\ 38
\\
0
—
ot
i i
N wooy
cg Bupesi '
| & PloA wnuny
: _
— s
I\ = av
(L0
HEe [FT- |
IS=1== ol i
=_=Es 7
S =00 ee .
O
I g
_ UOIZPOWIO0Y SO
I
I
|
— e P —— B o
(134 = Bl sV fad i

A




This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - ltem
Ramsbottom

Applicant: Bury Council

Location: Peel Tower, Holcombe Hill, Holcombe, BL8 4NR

Proposal: Camera on top of a flag pole at the top of Peel Tower

Application Ref: 68983/Full Target Date: 16/01/2023
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The application subject involves the Grade Il Listed stone built tower constructed 1851-1852
near to the highest point of Holcombe Hill. It is sited at vertical elevation of approximately
340 metres in tribute to Sir Robert Peel in effecting the repeal of the Corn Laws. The tower
was designed by the members of the Monument Committee. The tower stands at a height
of approximately 40 metres and is accessed predominantly on foot via footpaths from
various points in and around Holcombe and Ramsbottom.

The tower is sited on the edge of the north west boundary of the Holcombe Conservation
Area.

This application seeks full planning permission for the siting -

Of a single camera affixed to a replacement demountable flagpole at the top of the tower.
The flagpole has a height of 2.50 metres and the camera is affixed approximately half way
up the pole. The camera will not restrict the hoisting of flags on the flagpole.

The body of the camera and its fixing bracket to the flagpole has the overall dimensions of a
depth and width of 208 mm (20 cm).

The camera has a 360 degree panning capability and an optical zoom of x18. The camera
does not tilt. Its view is to be limited to distance views of the horizon. There will be no
collection or storage of images or streaming and the views will not be live streamed to the
internet and will only be able to be viewed on a single screen at Bury Tourist Information
Centre located at the Fusilier's Museum.

A Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) submitted to the Information Governance and
Risk Strategic Advisor was submitted as part of the application. It is to be noted that the
camera is already in situ.

An application for listed building consent, 68985, has also been submitted which assesses
the impact of the proposal on the architectural and historic interest of the tower.

Relevant Planning History
None.

Publicity

Press Notice on 08/12/2022.

Site Notice on 10/12/2022.

1 address notified by letter on 23/11/2023.

7 objections, 2 comments and 1 support received and are summarised below.
Page 59

02



Objections

Su

Will the camera be unable to zoom in to nearby residential buildings? This is a matter of
privacy and | would like to be reassured that this has been taken into account.

The cameras and flagpole are clearly visible from various houses and gardens in
Holcombe and the surrounding area and as such there may be problems with loss of
privacy and unintentional surveillance. It is not clear whether the cameras are compliant
with General Data Protection Regulation. This needs to be addressed as a priority.

The camera would be out of place and harmful to the character and appearance of the
Holcombe conservation area and to the listed building including harm to its heritage
significance.

Such cameras are unsightly and not in keeping with the look of Peel Tower. In order to
achieve the desired outcome they will have to be placed in an elevated position and will
be clearly visible. They are also intrusive to neighbouring properties and raise real and
serious risks regarding security and privacy.

Peel Tower is a historic structure and as such should be considered a heritage asset.
Adding a camera is not going to add to the value of the Tower. The camera will provide
views of the surrounding area but also local residencies, an intrusion, which we as
residents, will have no control over what is being broadcast publicly. This matter must
be addressed before approval.

pport

These cameras will give many more people an opportunity to view the area. Those who
are unable to climb the steps to the tower will significantly benefit. | would have thought
under the numerous disability acts that the approval of this camera must be seen as
being in the public interest, they are very small and do not affect the appearance of the
building at all. I'm aware of other cameras attached to listed buildings locally. Cameras
are common in the area, mainly cctv on the surrounding properties. The CCTv cameras
installed on the tower are facing over public land and presumably not applicable to
private GDPR regulations. No different to google earth?

Comments

To live stream views from Peel Tower is a great initiative for those unable to climb the
Holcombe hill or climb the steps inside the Tower. Kind of the private individual to
donate. The views are spectacular from the top of the tower, including the moorland
behind. | am reassured that the live stream is not recorded and only on display in the
Tourist Information Office . However, what is the future intention? Will this live stream be
accessed on line, for example, Visit Bury web site, Twitter, Facebook or Trip Advisor? |
am thinking of the privacy of those living close to the Tower? Also thinking of riders,
include vulnerable young children and/or those with a disability, who often ride to the
Tower and back from Margaret Haes Riding Centre. | see the joy when those who are
unable to climb the hill, see the view for the first time from horseback. | do understand.
Please consider appropriate controls on the use of the camera and authorisations on
recording and publishing images.

How will the cameras alter/affect the aesthetics of the actual tower, being an iconic local
landmark, this is an important aspect. Privacy concerning the potential use of the
cameras as they could literally zoom into my garden, front room and or bedroom if
powerful enough. Who will have access to the cameras and for what purpose?

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations
Listed buildings - National Amenity Societies - No Comments received.

Council Information Governance Officer responded as follows:

Response from the Information Governance and Risk Strategic Advisor to the submitted
Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) for applications 68983 & 68985.

As the DPIA advises no processing of personal data, | see no reason for the

Page 60



Initiative not to proceed. The continuous live stream, with recording
functionality disabled is an added safeguard that supports compliance to the
data protection legislation and avoids having to respond to Subject Access
Requests.

Pre-start Conditions - None.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas
EN2/2 Conservation Area Control

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Policies

Section 72(1) of The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires
local planning authorities to give special attention to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.

Paragraph 202 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states where a
development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a
designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the
proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.

EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design - The Council will give favourable consideration to
proposals which do not have an unacceptable adverse effect on the particular character and
townscape of the Borough's towns, villages and other settlements. Factors to be considered
when assessing proposals will include:

» the external appearance and design of the proposal in relation to its height, scale,
density and layout;

» the relationship of the proposal to the surrounding area;

» the choice and use of materials;

» access and other design features for the mobility impaired;

» the design and appearance of access, parking and service provision;

* landscaping, including the use of natural landscape features, and open space
provision;

» the use of lighting.

Assessment
To clarify the parameters of the planning application, the proposal to retain the camera
relates to the impact of the camera on residential amenity and the character and

appearance of the conservation area.
Page 61



The impact of the retention of the camera on the Grade Il listed Peel Tower will be assessed
under listed building consent application reference 68985 and which is concurrently before
the Planning Control Committee.

Residential Amenity

There is no specific policy for the control of the use of cctv cameras, however it is
considered that the second bullet point of EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design - the
relationship of the proposal to the surrounding area is the most appropriate with regard to
residential amenity, specifically privacy.

The operation of the camera is restricted to 360 degree panning of the horizon only with a
limit of x18 optical zoom to the horizon. The will be no tilting of the camera and therefore
no ability to point the camera towards residential properties nearer the site. Therefore
there will be no inadvertent surveillance that would impact on the privacy of nearby
properties.

An appropriate condition would be added to any consent to control the operation of the
camera.

As such the proposal would comply with adopted UDP policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built
Design.

Conservation Area

Section 72(1) of The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires
local planning authorities to give special attention to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.

Paragraph 202 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states where a
development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a
designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the
proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.

The camera would represent a very small feature when viewed from closer distances within
the conservation area and would be barely discernible from longer distances outside it. As
such it is considered that the camera would have a neutral impact which would not
represent less than substantial harm and would therefore at least preserve the character
and appearance of the conservation area.

The proposal would comply with adopted UDP policies EN2/1 - Character of Conservation
Areas and EN2/2 - Conservation Area Control.

Data Protection

The camera has been restricted to the operations previously described. No data will be
collected or stored and the camera stream will not be available generally online. The
Information Governance and Risk Strategic Advisor is satisfied that its operation supports
compliance to the data protection legislation and avoids having to respond to Subject
Access Requests.

Response to objections Raised

The report has addressed the concerns raised.

It is considered there would be benefit to the wider public for those with mobility issues who
would be unable to acess views from the tower.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social
Page 62



and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. This decision relates to drawings and documents: Statement for Installation of
Camera dated 26th January 2023, Elevation of Tower and Camera ELO1,
Demountable Flagpole Details CY/1/06, Data Protection Impact Assessment dated
March 2022 and the camera hereby given consent for its retention shall be
operated and maintained in accordance with the documents and drawings hereby
approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure satisfactory operation of the
camera pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

2. The operation of the camera hereby approved shall not include the tilt facility or
store or record any image or streaming from the camera or stream to the internet
and shall be viewable only via the single screen in the Bury Tourist Information
Centre.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure satisfactory operation of the
camera pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

For further information on the application please contact Mark Kilby on 0161 253 7639

Page 63



Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - ltem 03
Ramsbottom

Applicant: Bury Council
Location: Peel Tower, Holcombe Hill, Holcombe, BL8 4NR
Proposal: Listed building consent for a camera on top of a flag pole at the top of Peel Tower

Application Ref: 68985/Listed Building Target Date: 16/01/2023
Consent

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The application subject involves the Grade Il Listed stone built tower constructed 1851-1852
near to the highest point of Holcombe Hill. It is sited at vertical elevation of approximately
340 metres in tribute to Sir Robert Peel in effecting the repeal of the Corn Laws. The tower
was designed by the members of the Monument Committee. The tower stands at a height
of approximately 40 metres and is accessed predominantly on foot via footpaths from
various points in and around Holcombe and Ramsbottom.

The tower is sited on the edge of the north west boundary of the Holcombe Conservation
Area.

This application seeks listed building consent for the siting -

Of a single camera affixed to a replacement demountable flagpole at the top of the tower.
The flagpole has a height of 2.50 metres and the camera is affixed approximately half way
up the pole. The camera will not restrict the hoisting of flags on the flagpole.

The body of the camera and its fixing bracket to the flagpole has the overall dimensions of a
depth and width of 208 mm (20 cm).

The camera has a 360 degree panning capability and an optical zoom of x18. The camer
does not tilt. Its view is to be limited to distance views of the horizon. There will be no
collection or storage of images or streaming and the views will not be live streamed to the
internet and will only be able to be viewed on a single screen at Bury Tourist Information
Centre located at the Fusilier's Museum.

An application for planning permission, 68983, has also been submitted which assesses the
impact of the proposal on residential amenity and the character and appearance of the
conservation area.

Relevant Planning History
None.

Publicity

Press Notice on 08/12/2022.

Site Notice on 10/12/2022.

1 address notified by letter on 23/11/2023.

2 objections received which are summarised below.

Objections
Page 64



» The submitted photos are totally misleading - | shall submit truly representative photos
separately. The cameras are noticeable physical attachments and significantly detract
from the rugged 19th C stone structure. They contaminate the visual historic and
aesthetic appearance of the tower with obviously modern high tech features. In turn the
development harms the Holcombe Conservation Area. If cameras are desired - surely
one wld be enough - the positioning could discretely utilise an existing window opening
at the top of the tower and thereby potentially be made un-noticeable and not harmful to
the character and appearance and historic significance.

» Our home, our property and gardens are situated directly below Peel Tower and will be
in plain sight of the proposed web cam. We are extremely concerned with an invasion of
our privacy and security problems which may arise from public surveillance.

*  We have CCTV at home and we have to comply with strict rules to ensure that only our
private land and buildings are monitored. What will the installed cameras be able to see
and what will be broadcast to the public? This is unclear. Under the Data Protection
Act 2018, we have the right to find out what and how the information the web cam
operators will obtain will be used. The documentation submitted in the application does
not address this matter.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations
Listed buildings - National Amenity Societies - No comments received.

Pre-start Conditions - None.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
EN2/3 Listed Buildings
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Policies

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires
Local Planning Authorities in the exercise of their planning functions to have regard to the
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest which it possesses.

Paragraph 199 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states when considering
the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset,
great weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the more important the asset,
the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm
amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance.

Paragraph 200 of the NPPF states any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated
heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting),
should require clear and convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of:

a) grade Il listed buildings, or grade |l registered parks or gardens, should be exceptional;

b) assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments, protected wreck sites,
registered battlefields, grade | and II* listed buildings, grade | and II* registered parks and
gardens, and World Heritage Sites, should be wholly exceptional.

Page 65



Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing
its optimum viable use.

EN2/3 - Listed Buildings - The Council will actively safeguard the character and setting of
Listed Buildings by not permitting works, alterations or changes of use which would have a
detrimental effect on their historical or architectural character and features. Proposals for
demolition will be opposed and will only be considered where it is demonstrated
conclusively that the building(s) cannot be retained.

In considering applications for Listed Building Consent, the Council will have regard to the
following criteria:

» the impact of the proposal on the historic fabric of the building;

» the relationship of any extension to the Listed Building in terms of its height, size,
design, and roofscape;

» the need to protect the setting of the Listed Building;

» the impact of associated ancillary facilities and infrastructure works.

Assessment

Buildings of Special Architectural or Historic interest are "listed" by the Secretary of State for
the Environment. The listing of a building provides statutory protection against its alteration
or demolition. The Borough's valuable heritage is reflected in the large number of Listed
Buildings in the area (316 in June 1996) and the Council is mindful of the desirability to
preserve them and enhance their setting and appearance.

New uses for Listed Buildings may often be the key to their preservation especially for
buildings which have become wholly or partly redundant. However, new uses must not
adversely affect the architectural or historic features and character or appearance of such
buildings.

The setting of a Listed Building is often an essential feature of its character; unsympathetic
development in close proximity to a Listed Building can mar its appearance, make its future
use unattractive or untenable, or physically damage its structure. It is therefore important to
consider the effect that a proposed development may have on such buildings.

Proposals

The heritage significance of the tower can be distilled down into its architectural aesthetic,
its contribution to the Holcombe Conservation Area and the tower's association with Sir
Robert Peel.

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires
Local Planning Authorities in the exercise of their planning functions to have regard to the
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest which it possesses.

Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing
its optimum viable use.

The camera and replacement flagpole would represent a small feature when viewed from
closer distances to the listed building and would be barely discernible from further distances
from it. The proposal is reversible and as such does not represent a permanent alteration to
the listed building.

By virtue of its size, scale and siting it would not represent harm to its architectural interest,
Page 66



the contribution it makes to the character and appearance of the conservation area or its
association with Sir Robert Peel. As such the proposal to retain the camera and flagpole is
not considered to represent less than substantial harm within the terms of paragraph 202 of
the NPPF and as such does not require a public benefit justification in planning policy terms,
although that benefit does exist in allowing those with mobility issues access to the views
provided by the camera.

As such the proposal would not cause a loss of heritage significance of the listed Peel
Tower. The proposal would therefore comply with paragraphs 194, 195, 199, 200 and 202
of the NPPF and adopted UDP policy EN2/3 - Listed Buildings.

Response to objections raised
The issues raised have been addressed in this report and the report for planning application
for 68983.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

2. This decision relates to drawings and documents: Statement for Installation of
Camera dated 26th January 2023, Elevation of Tower and Camera ELO1,
Demountable Flagpole Details CY/1/06, Data Protection Impact Assessment dated
March 2022 and the camera hereby given consent for its retention shall be
operated and maintained in accordance with the documents and drawings hereby
approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure satisfactory operation of the
camera pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. The operation of the camera hereby approved shall not include a tilt facility or store
or record any image or streaming from the camera or stream to the internet and
shall be viewable only via the single screen in the Bury Tourist Information Centre.
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure satisfactory operation of the
camera pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

For further information on the application please contact Mark Kilby on 0161 253 7639

Page 67



Viewpoints

/

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N
APP. NO 68983 / D
4+ ST
ADDRESS: Peel Tower Holcombe Hill /

S COUNCIL

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 68




68983 & 68985

Photo 1

Page 69



Images of Peel Tower with new Flagpole and Camera

November 2022

These photos were taken in November 2022 and show the flagpole in relation to the tower, as viewed from
all 4 sides

Page 70



Image taken in the summer
of 2022 showing the size,
shape and height of the
camera in relation to the
flagpole

Summer photo showing the
flagpole in relation to the
tower (on a clear day).

Page 71



new flagpole approx. 2500mm
<  high total above apex of centre
of tower (see image below for
details of cameras)

Notes

1) Figured dimensions to be taken.
Do not scale dimensions. Contractors
must verify all dimensions on site
before preparing shop drawings or
commencing any work.

2) Copyright@ This drawing must not
be reproduced without the permission
of Proffitts CIC

3) Reproduced from 1998 Ordnance
Survey mapping with permission of
the controller of HMSO.

DATE

REVISION NOTES

ISSUE

CHKD

PLANNING

T

COl

CT

CLIENT
. Bury MBC
Proffitts PROJECT
Investing in Peel Tower
communities TITLE

PROFFITTS - INVESTING IN COMMUNITIES

Elevation of Cameras

email: communities@proffittscic.com SCALE

twitter: @proffittscic 11 25@A3

DRAWING NO.

ELO1

www.proffittscic.com

RG

DRAWN BY |CHECKEDBY |

PROJECT CODE ISSUE
Peel

Page 72




0

SCALE LIABLE TO DISTORTION IF PHOTOCOPIED OR SCANNED

PLAN REFERRED TO

&
((//77)

.

Peel
Monument

Top o' th' Moor
Cottage

Peel Monument
Business, Growth & Infrastructure

PLAN

Moorbottom Road
Ramsbottom BL8 4NR
1 :1 250 Land & Pi’OQeI’Lz

SCALE m 3 Knowsley Place CIOIGINECIITE

k
DRAWN BY 02/09/2022 gllllr;, %tie; t(;EJ Tel. 0161 253 5995
Page 73

DATE
(C) Crown Copyright and database right 2022 Ordnance Survey 100023063



v/ abed

/Sbinless sleel %Pcta

IR\

= xcs H%j

-~

Pec. l TQ& ~
De mownbuble f laj pode.

sEtainl
>1// Sofk:‘fss shel

2No Mio g5 ot

Screws al 90°
eccc b OB\er

_ Spigpls kacﬁ%odw&ﬁscr@_s
) é7/ 2 We MiDsssel
SCrews ak q0°
1

L b ecein othen—

)LQ.—:‘__-—- 900d C{[’ on Pok.

B

Pm sec]

To nmw 'LI//M‘



Statement for installation of cameras on top of Peel Tower

26t January 2023

The camera specification is available to view below

The camera is to be fitted to the flagpole on top of the Tower but will not
obstruct the raising of the flag

The intended use of the cameras is not to view anything other than the
view from the top of Peel Tower, to show those that cannot for whatever
reason climb to the top of the Holcombe Hill or the Tower itself what
everyone else can see

The camera, although has tilt and panning capabilities it will only be used
in a restricted way to show the whole view from the Tower

We have no objections to having a planning condition requirement to
restrict the operation of the camera to a single static view with no zoom,
tilt or pan

It will not record any data just live stream the view to the Tourist
information centre as this facility can and is switched off and will not be
used on the internet

There are no intentions to live stream or to zoom into people’s faces or
into nearby homes

Page 75



Camera Specification

1.38 kg

Image Sensor

1/2.8 Sony CMOS

Image

Flip / Mirror

Scanning System

Progressive scanning

Resolution

1920 x 1080

Electronic Shutter

1/25 ~ 1/10,000s

Minimum Colour: 0.05 Lux / F2,
[lluminatio BW: 0.005 Lux / F2, 0 Lux (IR)
Optical Zoom 18x

S / N Ratio 50dB (AGC Off)

Exposure Mode  [Auto
2D DNR Supports
BLC On / Off

Page 76




Synchronous

Internal synchronisation

Day / Night Mode

Supports IR-CUT colour to black

Focus Mode

Auto / Manual

Gain Control

Auto / Manual

Lens Initialisation

Built-in

Focus Range

4.7 ~ 84.6mm (Wide-Tele)

Pan Angle 54.8 ~ 3.4 (Wide Tele)

IR Distance 60m (in ideal conditions)

IR Angle 3 angle adjustable with zoom in/out
Pan Speed 0.6 ~ 180/S

Tilt Speed 3.5~ 30/S

Tilt Range 0 ~ 90, Auto flip 180

Manual Speed

High / Middle / Low for adjustable

Proportional Zoom

Supports

Page 77




Preset 220
Patrol 4, each patrol can add 32 preset
Pattern 4, total record time more than 10mins

A.B Preset Scan

Supports

Park Function

Supports, can select preset, patrol, pattern, A.B scan, pan auto running

BNC Output

AHD / CVI / TVI/ CVBS (1Vp-p 75, PAL / NTSC, BNC

Communication

Protocols

PELCO-D/P

1-255

Baud Rate (RS485)

2400/4800/9600bps/auto identify

Ingress Protection

IP66

Lightnin
J -g TVS3000V lightning protection, surge protection and voltage transient protection
Protection
Power Supply DC12V/2A
Power

Consumption

Max. 20W (Not including the heat)

Working

Environment

-20C~-60C, 90%RH (Frostless)

Page 78




Dimensions

208 x 251.1 x 136.1 mm

Weight

4 Kg

Page 79




Data Protection Impact
Assessment Template

Author: Information Governance Manager

Date: March 2022

Version: V0.1

Title Data Protection Impact
Assessment Template

Author Information Governance Manager

Owner Information Governance Manager

Subject DPIA Template

Created Marcus Connor and Jacqueline Williams

Approved by

Information Governance Steering
Group

Date of Approval

7 March 2022

Review Date

7 March 2024

Bury DPIA FINAL

Page 80



1. Document Version Control

Document Version Control

Issue Number

Date

1.0

March 2022 (Bury Council)

This is a live document effective from the issue date. It supersedes any previous
versions of this document, which are now withdrawn.

Page 81

Bury DPIA FINAL



Data Protection Impact Assessment

Introduction

The Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) process is an important means of
evidencing our compliance with the requirements of Data Protection. This should be
used when introducing new or amending existing systems or processes which involve
personal data. To support with identifying when a DPIA needs to be completed the
DPIA Screening Questionnaire can help indicate when it is needed.

The DPIA will capture:
e How data protections principles are met
e What risks there may be to non-compliance
e What mitigation is in place to address risks identified
e Processes in place to notify any data breaches

Completed DPIAs ensure services document their activity and provide assurance that
they comply with our statutory data protection responsibilities.

Our Data Protection Policy sets out the requirement for changes to be reviewed and
this process to be followed where the relevant criteria are met, referring to the Data
Protection Privacy Impact Assessment (DPIA) Policy and associated guidance.

How to use this DPIA

Each section of the DPIA should be completed to provide a full overview of the
proposal, the information being collected and/or processed and how the data
protection principles have been considered and demonstrate that these can be upheld.

The supporting DPIA Policy and guidance document has been created to run alongside
the DPIA and provide:

e Further guidance and clarification on the information that is required within the
DPIA
e Additional information on what should be in place to meet the data protection

principles
e Prompt questions that should be considered when completing the DPIA

Bury DPIA FINAL

Page 82



2. The Proposal

About this Assessment

Cameras on top of Peel Tower

A member of the public approached the Council as he wanted to put something
back into the local area of Ramsbottom. He would like to install a camera on
top of the flagpole at Peel Tower to stream the view live to the Tourist
Information Centre on a screen for everyone to get an idea of and see the
view, including disabled people who cannot traverse the steep path to the
tower.

There is no intention of filming people just the view and as the tower is a
Grade 1 listed building a Heritage Statement has been requested to accompany
this Impact assessment, please see the attached.

As it is being live streamed and the facility to record removed there will be no
personal data collected

The company who fitted the cameras deliberately took out the recording of the
cctv cams and if you try to record it says you are not authorised

Stakeholders

Have stakeholders been consulted/contributed to the assessment of
the project

Yes [ No

Parks & Countryside, Mike m.bent@bury.gov.uk Data controller
Bent 0161 253 5917

Grounds Maintenance k.dickinson@bury.gov.uk

Manager, Kevin Dickinson 0161 253 5905

Page 83


mailto:m.bent@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.dickinson@bury.gov.uk

Assistant Director n.s.long@bury.gov.uk
Operations Neil Long 0161 253 7928

3. Information collected

Personal Data

Name [] | Telephone/contact numbers U
Date of Birth/Age [0 | Email address |
Gender [] | Location data U]
Personal representative / next of kin | [ | Financial information |
S et T =
Address [] | Other Unique identifier (please state) | [
Postcode 1 | Images/CCTV and/or audio recordings | [

Special (Sensitive) Personal Data

Physical or mental health Religious beliefs or similar

Health/social care Political opinions

Genetic data Sexual life/orientation

Biometric Data

Oooio

Trade union membership

Ooooo

Racial or ethnic group

Crime data

Bury DPIA FINAL

Page 84


mailto:n.s.long@bury.gov.uk

Is any category of data used for law enforcement purposes

Categories of data subject

Complainants (and

Personal Data ] Yes No
Special Personal Data O Yes No
Crime Data ] Yes No

Customers their reps) Suspected offenders
Suppliers Advisors/consultants License/permit holders
Offenders Benefits recipients Inspected persons
Claimants Carers Captured on CCTV

Students/Pupils

Incident witnesses

Employees of other
orgs

Landlords

O Oooojola

Employees/contractors

O o|goog)o

Holders of public office

O Ooooola

Page 85

Bury DPIA FINAL




Bury DPIA FINAL

Page 86



)8 abed

4. Information flows

This table summarises the type of data, the source of the data, recipient organisations for each distinct data flow, the
protective method of exchange and expected frequency. Data flow maps /information architecture diagrams may be added
to section 8 to illustrate.

DEVCRIE

02
03

04

05

Bury DPIA FINAL



5. The Principles

A. Processed lawfully, fairly and in a transparent manner
i. Legal basis for processing

Conditions for Processing
Tick all relevant conditions which identify a lawful basis for the processing of personal

and special category data.

Outline any applicable legislation and
6(1)(a) | Consent [l | explain how this supports the
processing
6(1)(b) | Contracts ]
6(1)(c) | Legal obligation O
6(1)(d) | Vital interests [
Public Interest/ Official ]
6(1)(e) Authority
6(1)(f) | Legitimate interests ]
Outline any applicable legislation and
9(2)(a) | Explicit Consent 1 | explain how this supports the
processing
Employment, Social
9(2)(b) | Security, Social Protection | []
law
9(2)(c) | Vital interests |
9(2)(d) | Not-for-profit body O
9(2)(e) | Made public |
9(2)(f) | Legal claims / Judicial ]
9(2)(g) | Public Interest |
Medicine, Employee
capacity, Medical
9(2)(h) Diagnosis, Health or Social O
Care
9(2)(i) | Public Health O
Archiving, Scientific and
9(2)(j) | Historical Research or ]
Statistical Purposes

Bury DPIA FINAL

Page 88



1(3)(29 Outline any applicable legislation and
) Consent [1 | explain how this supports the
processing
)1(3)(30 Vital Interests Ol
1(3)(31 | Processed by not-for- .
) profits
1(3)(32 | Manifestly made public by .
) data subject
1(3) Legal Claims or Judicial .
(33-34) | Acts
Administration of accounts
)1(3)(35 used to commit indecency | [
offences involving children
)1(3)(36 Substantial Public Interest | []
3(35)(2 Outline any applicable legislation and
a) Consent [] | explain how this supports the
processing
3535)(2 Public Interest U]
3(35)(4 Outline any applicable legislation and
a) Consent [] | explain how this supports the
processing
Statutory purpose (legal
8(1) obligation or public O
interest)
8(2) Administration of justice O
Protecting individuals vital
8(3) interests U
Safeguarding of children
8(4) and individuals at risk U
Personal data already in
8(5) public domain O
8(6) Legal claims |

Bury DPIA FINAL

Page 89




8(7) Judicial acts O
8(8) Preventing fraud O
Archiving, scientific or
8(9) historical research, or O

statistical

Evidence that an individual data subject has consented to the O O
processing ves No
Processes in place to manage the withdrawal of consent ] Yes [ No
Capability to manage data processed pre- and post- withdrawal of
consent 1 Yes [ No
Consent is freely given L Yes [ No
For data subjects under 13 years old, parental consent/ authorisation
i in Dl L] Yes [ No
place
ii. Rights
Does the processing support an individual’s rights
Right to be informed (what privacy notices are in place?) Yes [ No
Right to access Yes [ No
Right to rectification Yes [l No
Right to erasure Yes [ No
Right to restrict processing Yes [ No
Right to data portability Yes [ No
Right to object Yes [ No
Rights relating to automated decision making and profiling Yes [ No

top of the flag pole.

Notices will be installed around the Tower to inform people that there are cameras on

Page 90

Bury DPIA FINAL



iii. Data Subject consultation

Consultation with data subjects

Has any consultation been undertaken with data subjects over
appropriate processing of personal data?

O Yes No

B. Collected for specified, explicit and legitimate purposes

Legitimate purposes

Does your project plan cover all of the purposes for processing

personal data? 0 yes T No
Have potential new/secondary purposes been identified as the scope

of the project expands? L yes LI No
Do the purposes include scientific, historical or statistical purposes, or

archiving in the public interest? L yes L No

N

(Add additional lines as required)

C. Adequate, Relevant and Limited

Minimising personal data

Is there any personal data that could not be used, without
compromising the needs of the project?

Are there any data minimisation techniques being used? (eg,
anonymisation, pseudonymisation, redaction)

1 Yes No

1 Yes No

Bury DPIA FINAL

Page 91



D. Accurate and, where necessary, kept up to date

If you are procuring new software does it allow you to amend data
when necessary?

Are there processes in place for ensuring that personal data is
accurate and is reviewed where necessary?

[ Yes [ No

O Yes [ No

E. Kept no longer than is necessary
Retention and destruction

If you are procuring new software does it allow you to delete data O 0
when necessary? Yes No
Are retention periods suitable for the personal data you will be

i ) . : L] Yes [ No
processing? (Please outline the retention periods below)
Are processes in place to ensure information can be securely 0O 0
deleted/destroyed in relation to both paper and electronic files Yes No

F. Appropriate Security
i. Organisational Controls

Contractual controls

Is there a contract in place with any third party for the purpose
outlined in section 5B

If yes, does the contract contains the organisation’s standard contract
schedule relating to Information Governance requirements

O Yes [ No

d Yes [ No

Start Date End Date
Optional extension period (years):

Additional processing assurances

Is a Data Processing Agreement and/or Data Sharing Agreement
required to specify the processing involved and appropriate O Yes [ No
information governance requirements

Bury DPIA FINAL

Page 92



Third party accreditations

Has evidence of appropriate industry accreditations from third parties
been collated

O Yes [ No

Training in how to securely process the data

Confirm that employees (and users where relevant) of the system will
receive appropriate training

Confirm that comprehensive written guidance will be available to
employees and users

O Yes [ No

d Yes [ No

Capture issues impacting on Organisational Policy

Does the proposal impact on any current organisational policy in a

way that requires an update to ensure the adequacy of the policy? Ll yes LI No

ii. Technical Controls

Access controls

Are access controls in place that ensures only those with a valid need

to access the data can do so L) Yes [ No
Is a process in place which assigns and reviews appropriate

permissions to view, create, amend and delete data L] Yes [ No
Process in place to ensure notification of any data breaches by any

party involved [ yes LI No

Security in transit - when data transferred from one system to another

Bury DPIA FINAL

Page 93



Confirm that appropriate security processes is in place to protect the
data in transit from threats

[ Yes L[ No

Security at rest - data within a system

Are appropriate technical security processes is in place to protect the

data at rest from threats ] yes [ No

Cloud security

Does the project involve cloud computing ] Yes [ No

Is the processing compliant with the National Cyber Security (NCSC)
Cloud Security Principles

[ Yes [ No

G. Demonstrate Compliance

Records of Processing Activity (ROPA)

Does the council’s ROPA need to be updated to reflect any change

resulting from this processing? L) yes [ No

6. International transfers

Transfer of personal data to third countries

Personal data will stay within the UK only ] Yes [ No

Personal data may be transferred within the EEA 1 Yes [ No

Personal data may be transferred outside of the EEA (please detail O 0
how secured) Yes No

Bury DPIA FINAL

Page 94



Bury DPIA FINAL

Page 95




96 abed

7. Risk Management
Risk Register

01

02

03

04

05

* The level is calculated by multiplying the probability and impact scores and plotting on the risk matrix, see section 6B of the guidance.

High risk assessment

Are there any High Level risks that have been accepted

] Yes [ No

Are there any High Level risks that cannot be significantly reduced following mitigation O Yes [ No

processing cannot begin until the ICO have been consulted.

Date submitted to ICO

In any cases where there are high level risks that cannot be adequately addressed through mitigation then the

Any DPIA that needs to be referred to the ICO must be reviewed by the DPO prior to being sent to the ICO.

Date ICO feedback received

ICO feedback

Bury DPIA FINAL



8.Supporting documentation

Please embed relevant documents below.
This section and the documents within will not be routinely published with the

DPIA.

Document

Title/Summary

[Embed Doc]

[Embed Doc]

[Embed Doc]

[Embed Doc]

[Embed Doc]

[Embed Doc]

[Embed Doc]

[Embed Doc]

Page 97

Bury DPIA FINAL




9.Actions

Action plan

Please outline any residual actions identified as part of the DPIA that are required to be
completed as part of the project or business as usual processes.

10. Approvals

Approved by Senior Responsible Officer / project board

Reviewed by Data Protection Officer

Have all recommendations from the Data Protection Officer been Yes No
implemented

Approved by SIRO (if required)

Bury DPIA FINAL

Page 98



11. Reviews

Regularity of Reviews
A timetable for reviewing the processing has been identified, taking

into account the intended length of the activity and the risk rating

Date Review Undertaken

Processing as initially defined in this assessment remains unchanged O Yes [ No
All mitigations remain in place and are effective and appropriate to the

level of risk L) Yes Ll No
Residual actions have been completed [ Yes [ No
No further action is required as a result of the review O Yes [ No

Date Review Undertaken

Processing as initially defined in this assessment remains unchanged [ Yes [ No
All mitigations remain in place and are effective and appropriate to the | [ ves [ No
level of risk

Residual actions have been completed O Yes [ No
No further action is required as a result of the review [J Yes [ No

(Add additional sections for further reviews)

Page 99

Bury DPIA FINAL



This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: Bury East - Redvales ltem 04

Applicant: Mrs Shakila Karami

Location: 17 Pembroke Drive, Bury, BL9 9LF

Proposal: Part single/Part two storey rear extension

Application Ref: 69093/Full Target Date: 06/02/2023
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

This application is a householder development and would normally be dealt with
under delegated powers. It is presented to the committee as the applicant is related
to a member of staff.

Description

The site is a semi detached house with garden and drive to the front. To the rear is a single
storey extension across part of the elevation and there are patio doors to the party wall side
which lead on to a decked area. The rear garden is lengthy and fenced. There are no
properties directly at the rear. The adjoining property No.19 is extended single storey
along the shared boundary and then with a conservatory set further across. To the
opposite side the unattached No.15 is extended single storey at the rear.

The application proposes an extension to the rear. It would project 3.5m deep from the
original rear elevation as two storey, across the width of the property. The ground floor
would project out a further 2.5m deep to the party wall side, for 2m across, where it would
then be project a further 2m deeper for the remainder of the width. The extension would
form a kitchen and living room with an additional bedroom at first floor.

Relevant Planning History
None.

Publicity
2 notification letters were sent on 22/12/22 to 15 & 19 Pembroke Drive. No responses
have been received.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations
None required.

Pre-start Conditions - Not relevant.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
H2/3 Extensions and Alterations
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
Page 101



specifically mentioned.

SPD 6 and UDP Policy H2/3 seek to achieve a high standard of design that compliments
the original building, and does not have a detrimental impact on the character and
appearance of neighbouring properties and the general street scene.

Visual amenity and design - The proposed first floor extension would have a dual pitched
roof forming a rear gable and the single storey where deeper would have a monopitch roof
with roof light. Materials for the extension would be brickwork and slate tiles to match the
existing.

The proposal is considered acceptable and in keeping with the existing property and would
not have a detrimental impact on the visual amenity of the area.

Parking - The proposal would not increase the number of bedrooms it would remain a 3
bed with an existing bedroom becoming an office. SPD6 requires parking spaces as set
out in SPD 11 Parking Standards to be considered. This can then require the proposal to
provide a maximum of 2 parking spaces. The site as existing has a drive at the front for
one vehicle. With a street cabinet directly outside on the footpath there would be no scope
for the creation of additional parking in the garden. The area has on street parking and
there is public transport available. In this instance then the parking arrangements are
considered sufficient.

Residential amenity - SPD6 states that for two storey rear extensions, where the extension
would be on or adjacent to the boundary of another dwelling, it should not normally project
in excess of 1 metre from the rear wall of the neighbouring property. Beyond the 1 metre
point, the extension should not encroach beyond a 45° angle taken from the boundary at the
1 metre point.

The 45°%/25° rule is designed to ensure that proposals for extensions do not have
detrimental impact on a neighbouring properties right to light or outlook, by
avoiding unacceptable levels of overshadowing or unneighbourly relationships.

In relation to the adjoining No.19 the proposed two storey would project as blank wall 1m
beyond the rear elevation of this neighbouring property as extended at ground floor. In
consideration of its first floor rear window then the proposal would encroach the 45 degree
line from the mid point of the window. No.19 is located to the south of the site and as such
there would be no significant loss of light or over shadowing. The proposed single storey
would project out from the two storey along the boundary for a further 2.5m. At this point it
would set in from the boundary with no development within a 45 degree angle. This would
then see a total length of two and single storey development where adjacent the boundary
of 6m. A material consideration is permitted development and the larger homes scheme
which allows single storey extensions up to 6m deep where there are no neighbour
objections. None have been received in this case.

To the opposite side the unattached No.15 is extended single storey at the rear. Its first
floor has one window and the proposal, where the two storey part would be located, would
not encroach the 45 degree line from the mid point of this window. The proposed single
storey would project deeper and would encroach the 45 degree line taken from the closest
rear ground floor window to No.15 but would not exceed the upward 25 degree line. There
would be no windows proposed to the first floor side elevation of the proposed extension to
cause overlooking to No.15 and with only a door to a utility at ground floor.

Given the above, there would then be no serious impact on the amenity of any adjacent
neighbouring properties and the proposal complies with UDP Policy H2/3 and SPD6 -
Alterations and Extensions to Residential Properties.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

Page 102



The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 22/SHO1 existing elevations, 22/SHO01
existing and proposed ground floor plans, proposed elevations and proposed
section received 17/01/23 and the development shall not be carried out except in
accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

For further information on the application please contact Jane Langan on 0161 253 5316

Page 103



Viewpoints

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N
APP. NO 69093 / D
-+ [Bur
ADDRESS: 17 Pembroke Drive, Bury, BL9 9LF

COUNCIL

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 104



69093

Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 105



69093

Photo 3

Page 106



|

Proposed side elevation

Proposed rear elevation

Proposed side elevation

Project:
17 Pembroke Drive
Bury BLY 9LF

Drawing Title:Proposed Name
2 Story rear extension 225H01 | Date
Az 141122 KK Design Solution
Client: Mrs S Karami& Mr K Karam KK [1an122|Chartered Building
Surveyors.
KK
K/22/01  16/01/23

Scale: Do not Scale

Address: Unit2 Manchester Rd BL9 9Q8
Email: shakila420@yahoo.com

Mob: 07731868560

Tel 016127628682




Decking

80T abed

Kitchen

J

utility Living room

Sg\

N

Bedroom 3

Existing ground floor

="

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 1

Existing first floor

Scale Bars 1:100 M e

o =

(]

[ 1

Proposed ground floor

™ 1 Om

Bedroom 3

Bedroom 2

Y.
Il

Bedroom 1

Proposed first floor

141122l KK Design Solution

1411/22|Chartered Building
Surveyors.

Address: Unit2 Manchester Rd BL9 9Q8
Email: shakila420@yahoo.com

Mob: 07731868560

Tel 016127628682

Drawing Title:Proposed Rev/ Drawings ~ Name

2 Story rear extension Drawing No 2258H01 | Date
Drawn/Designed AZ

Client: Mrs S Karami& Mr K Karam( Checked KK
Drawing Status: KK

) For Approval

Project: Revision A/B K201 160123

17 Pembroke Drive Sheet Size A3

Bury BLY 9LF Scale: Do not Scale




Agenda Ite

REPORT FOR NOTING

Buliny,

Agenda
Item 5

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

21 February 2023

SUBJECT:

DELEGATED DECISIONS

REPORT FROM:

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

CONTACT OFFICER:

DAVID MARNO

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: The report lists:

Recent delegated planning decisions since the last PCC
OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy

Do the proposals accord with the Policy

Framework: Framework? Yes
Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk Executive Director of Resources to advise

Considerations:

regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A

of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications: No

Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A

Wards Affected:

All listed

Scrutiny Interest:

N/A
Page 109




TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/ Executive Ward Members Partners
Strategic Leadership Member/Chair
Team
Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is a monthly report to the Planning Control Committee of the delegated planning
decisions made by the officers of the Council.

2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-None

Contact Details:-

David Marno, Head of Development Management

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation
3 Knowsley Place

Bury BLS OEJ]

Tel: 0161 253 5291
Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk

Page 110



Planning applications decided using Delegated Powers
Between 16/01/2023 and 12/02/2023 D g

Ward: Bury East

Application No.: 68987 App. Type: FUL 20/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 67 Craven Street, Bury, BL9 7PP
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey rear and side extension
Application No.: 68993 App. Type: FUL 16/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. Wallwork Heat Treatment Ltd, Land off Parker Street/Lord Street, Bury, BL9 ORE
Location:
Proposal: Erection of ancillary plant equipment comprising of 2 no. storage tanks and fan array with
concrete base
Application No.: 69032 App. Type: LDCP 17/01/2023 Lawful Development
. 12 Holden Avenue, Bury, BL9 7TJ
Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed loft conversion with rear dormer and rooflights
Application No.: 69068 App. Type: FUL 01/02/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 32 Kershaw Street, Pimhole, Bury, BL9 7HH
Location:
Proposal:  Conversion of party venue to 2no. commercial units (Class E) at ground floor and 2no. studio
flats (Class C3) at first floor.
Application No.: 69114 App. Type: FUL 27/01/2023 Refused
L . 88 Rochdale Road, Bury, BL9 7AY
ocation:
Proposal: Two storey rear extension with mansard roof at rear and front/rear dormers to form 3 no.

additional flats to 1st/2nd floors

Ward: Bury East - Moorside

Application No.: 69116 App. Type: FUL 18/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

. 42 Cateaton Street, Bury, BL9 5AW
Location:

Proposal: Loft conversion with front and rear dormers

Ward: Bury East - Redvales

Application No.: 68925 App. Type: FUL 24/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 19 Meadway, Bury, BL9 9TY

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side extension with bay window to the side; Single storey front & rear extensions;
Garage conversion; Juliet balcony at rear; Retention of existing balcony at rear; Replacement
first floor window to front elevation with new apex to roof

Application No.: 69015 App. Type: FUL 19/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

. Land adjacent to 8 Haslam Brow, Bury, BL9O 0TS
Location:
Proposal:  Erection of 1no. dormer bungalow with altered access along Haslam Brow

Page 111

Page 1 of 8 13/02/2023



Application No.: 69071 App. Type: FUL 20/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
5 Hampson Mill Lane, Bury, BL9 9UA

Location:
Proposal: Single storey front extension and Part single/Part two storey rear extension
Application No.: 69130 App. Type: FUL 09/02/2023 Approve with Conditions
Location: 42 Wellington Road, Bury, BL9 9BQ
Proposal:  Single storey extension at rear and loft conversion with rear dormer
Application No.: 69168 App. Type: FUL 25/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. Land at Bury Football Club Co Ltd, Gigg Lane, Bury, BL9 9HR
Location:
Proposal:  Proposed Rooftop upgrade to the existing telecommunications installation: Proposed removal

and replacement of 3No. Antennas with 6No. Antennas and 1No. Replacement Cabinet;
Proposed installation of 1No. GPS Module, 15No. ERS's and associated ancillary works

Ward: Bury West - Elton

Application No.: 69153 App. Type: FUL 24/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

. 294 Brandlesholme Road, Bury, BL8 1ER
Location:

Proposal: Front and rear first floor extensions above existing ground floor extensions

Ward: Bury West - West

Application No.: 68981 App. Type: LDCP 25/01/2023 Lawful Development
. 32 Freckleton Drive, Bury, BL8 2JA
Location:
Proposal: Proposed demolition of existing conservatory and erection of of single storey rear extension.
Application No.: 69014 App. Type: FUL 17/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 2 Pleasington Drive, Bury, BL8 2ET
Location:
Proposal: Roof extension at side with side and rear dormers to form first floor living accommodation;
Extension to existing garage at front
Application No.: 69069 App. Type: LDCP 17/01/2023 Lawful Development
Location: 6 Eagley Drive, Bury, BL8 2NF
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed rear dormer extension
Application No.: 69098 App. Type: LDCP 17/01/2023 Lawful Development
. 5 Whitby Close, Bury, BL8 2TX
Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed demolition of existing conservatory and erection of
single storey rear extension.
Application No.: 69146 App. Type: FUL 20/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 77 Haig Road, Bury, BL8 2LG
Location:
Proposal: Two storey side extension with front and rear dormers; Single storey rear extension;

Additional windows to front elevation; Existing flat roof to front porch replaced with a hipped
roof; Extension to existing vehicular access
Page 112

Page 2 of 8 13/02/2023



Ward: North Manor

Application No.: 69040 App. Type: FUL 06/02/2023 Approve with Conditions

. 50 Robin Road, Summerseat, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL9 5QP
Location:

Proposal: Demolition of existing rear conservatory and erection of single storey rear extension

Application No.: 69043 App. Type: FUL 25/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

Location: 20 Longsight Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9TD

Proposal: Single storey side and rear extensions; New pitched roof over existing two storey flat roofed
extension; Alterations to existing windows; Render to new and existing walls

Application No.: 69166 App. Type: LDCP 08/02/2023 Lawful Development
. 125 Walmersley Old Road, Bury, BL9 6SB

Location:

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed dormer to rear

Ward: Prestwich - Holyrood

Application No.: 69061 App. Type: FUL 06/02/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 15 Maple Grove, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3DQ

Location:

Proposal: Demolition and reconstruction of single storey rear extension

Application No.: 69129 App. Type: FUL 20/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
— 131 Heywood Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1LF

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey extension at rear

Application No.: 69193 App. Type: FUL 03/02/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 8 Barnard Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6TY

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension

Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley

Application No.: 68596 App. Type: FUL 24/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 39 and 40 Sheepfoot Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 ODL
Location:
Proposal: No. 39 - Single storey extension at front; Dormer extensions at front and rear; Two storey
extensions at side and rear with Single storey canopy at rear.
No. 40 - Single storey extension at front ; Dormer extensions at front and rear; Two storey
extensions at side and rear
Application No.: 69027 App. Type: FUL 24/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 305 Middleton Road, Manchester, M8 4LY
Location:
Proposal: Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) of planning permission 67944 - Amend the footprint

of the dwelling with rear conservatory removed and front bays amended.

Page 113

Page 3 of 8 13/02/2023



Application No.: 69033 App. Type: FUL 18/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
99 Kings Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JS

Location:

Proposal: Loft conversion with front and rear dormers

Application No.: 69036 App. Type: LDCP 26/01/2023 Lawful Development

. 69 Richmond Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OLW

Location:

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed hip to gable, loft conversion and rear dormer

Application No.: 69080 App. Type: FUL 19/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

. 4 Castle Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OFR

Location:

Proposal: Two storey extension at front with alterations to existing front elevation and entrance/front
porch; New bay window to right of front elevation, modify roof line above existing bay windows
with new pitched roofs

Application No.: 69090 App. Type: FUL 30/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

. 38 Fairway, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JH

Location:

Proposal: Two storey extension at side; Part single/Part two storey extension at rear; Single storey
extension at front; Widening of existing vehicular access

Application No.: 69120 App. Type: FUL 09/02/2023 Approve with Conditions

. 43 Bland Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9WG

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side/rear extension; Single storey front extension; Single storey rear extension

Application No.: 69131 App. Type: FUL 25/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

. 142-144 Albert Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OHE

Location:

Proposal: Basement extension at rear; single storey / two storey extension at rear; juliette balcony at
rear; Hip to gable roof extensions; 2 no. dormers at front and 1 no. dormer at rear; raised
decking with handrail and steps to rear garden and external alterations including new 2nd floor
window to right hand side elevation

Application No.: 69174 App. Type: FUL 01/02/2023 Approve with Conditions

. Mikvah, 102-104 Albert Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OLU

Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension

Application No.: 69196 App. Type: FUL 06/02/2023 Approve with Conditions

. 41 Brooklands Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OFB

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension; Rear basement extension and Loft conversion with front and rear
dormers

Application No.: 69211 App. Type: FUL 09/02/2023 Approve with Conditions

. 61 Meade Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M8 4L W

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side/rear extension; Single storey rear extension

Ward: Prestwich - St Mary's

Page 114

Page 4 of 8 13/02/2023



Application No.: 69097 App. Type: FUL 27/01/2023 Refused
27 Rainsough Brow, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9XW

Location:
Proposal: Single storey extension at side / rear; basement level extension at rear and erection of 1.8
metres high fencing

Application No.: 69143 App. Type: FUL 24/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 14 Harold Street, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3HY

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension

Application No.: 69155 App. Type: FUL 06/02/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 20 Swarbrick Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9TD

Location:

Proposal: Replacement of existing conservatory with single storey rear extension

Ward: Radcliffe - East

Application No.: 69076 App. Type: FUL 27/01/2023 Refused
. 6 Sandford Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2PT
Location:
Proposal: Change of use from mixed use; public house and 8 self-contained flats to 13 bed (maximum
20 person) HMO (sui generis); demolition of existing conservatory; formation of parking space
/ cycle store, entrance / exit at rear and alterations to ground floor window at rear
Application No.: 69084 App. Type: FUL 01/02/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 1 Martingale Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4YA
Location:
Proposal: First floor extension at rear and Installation of first floor windows to side elevations
Application No.: 69185 App. Type: GPDE 10/02/2023 Prior Approval Required & Granted - Ext
. 62 Starling Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4LN
Location:
Proposal:  Application for prior approval of a proposed enlargement of a dwellinghouse by construction of

additional storeys - Proposed addition of one storey to create a two storey house (maximum
height 9.5 metres)

Ward: Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth

Application No.: 68948 App. Type: FUL 18/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

. 33 Browns Road, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 6RQ
Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension and conversion of garage to habitable room

Application No.: 69085 App. Type: FUL 27/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
— 63 Stanley Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4HG

Location:

Proposal: Single storey front extension with pitched roof

Application No.: 69123 App. Type: FUL 24/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 8 Tintagel Court, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3TY

Location:

Proposal: Two storey rear extension

Page 115

Page 5 of 8 13/02/2023



Application No.: 69144 App. Type: LDCP 25/01/2023 Lawful Development
8 Broomfield Close, Ainsworth, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 5QY

Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed rear dormer roof extension for loft conversion
Application No.: 69189 App. Type: FUL 08/02/2023 Refused
. 22 Cockey Moor Road, Bury, BL8 2HB
Location:
Proposal: Variation of condition no. 1 (approved plans) of planning permission 68038 for erection of

detached dwelling: Increase the size and height of the second floor and External alterations

Ward: Radcliffe - West

Application No.: 69149 App. Type: FUL 03/02/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 44 Grosvenor Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4BQ
Location:
Proposal: Single storey extension at rear
Application No.: 69170 App. Type: GPDE 18/01/2023 Prior Approval Not Required - Extension
Location: 23 Hawthorn Avenue, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1BX

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

Ward: Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington

Application No.: 68991 App. Type: FUL 19/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 10 Sandybrook Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3LB
Location:
Proposal: Two storey side extension; Single storey rear extension; Front porch
Application No.: 69057 App. Type: FUL 19/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 23 Cotswold Crescent, Bury, BL8 1QJ
Location:
Proposal:  Front dormer to existing first floor; Repositioning of side door; Rear bi-fold doors
Application No.: 69083 App. Type: FUL 25/01/2023 Refused
. Toto Ristorante, High Street, Walshaw, Bury, BL8 3AG
Location:
Proposal: Single storey side extension
Application No.: 69105 App. Type: FUL 16/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 23 Alcester Close, Bury, BL8 1QE
Location:
Proposal: Extension to existing front dormer
Application No.: 69110 App. Type: FUL 30/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
Location: Christ Church Church Of England Primary School, Church Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3AX
Proposal: Retention of single storey Portakabin building for a period of 5 years from the date of expiry on

original planning application (ref no. 57546)

Page 116

Page 6 of 8 13/02/2023



Application No.: 69140 App. Type: FUL 25/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
2 Booth Hall Drive, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3HQ

Location:
Proposal: Two storey front extension
Application No.: 69182 App. Type: FUL 01/02/2023 Approve with Conditions
— Grassington Court, Walshaw, Bury, BL8 3AW
Location:
Proposal:  Demolition of existing communal bin store and Erection of fence line to form new bin store with

associated hard standing.

Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - Ramsbottom

Application No.: 68593 App. Type: FUL 06/02/2023 Approve with Conditions
. Bast House, Manchester Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL9 5LZ

Location:

Proposal: Variation of condition 2 following approval of planning permission ref. 68336 - The addition of
PV panels to the roof, a reduction in the window cill height of kitchen window and the inclusion
of a glazed lean to south elevation.

Application No.: 68974 App. Type: FUL 19/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

. Heather Cottage, 22-24 Cross Lane, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4LY

Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension

Application No.: 69118 App. Type: FUL 18/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

— 27 Bridge Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9AD
Location:
Proposal: Part change of use of second floor storage (Class E) to include 1 no. apartment (Class C3)

Vertical extension to existing stairwell to allow access to the existing second floor; New second
floor rear pitched roof

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses

Application No.: 69188 App. Type: FUL 27/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 2 Hazel Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8EU

Location:

Proposal: Single storey side extension

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington Park

Application No.: 69016 App. Type: FUL 02/02/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 36 Ringley Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7LE

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear; Modification to front entrance with replacement double height
window; First floor balcony rear elevation; internal and external alterations along with
landscaping.

Application No.: 69066 App. Type: FUL 19/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

. 40 Ferndale Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7QP
Location:
Proposal: Two storey extension at front; Pitched roof alteration to single storey front extension, Single

storey extension at rear with lantern and rooflights, Loft conversion with dormer at rear.

Page 117

Page 7 of 8 13/02/2023



Application No.: 69077 App. Type: FUL 20/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
6 Pinfold Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7]S

Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension with pergola

Application No.: 69117 App. Type: FUL 26/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. 6 Higher Croft, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7LY

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side extension; Two storey front extension; Single storey rear extension;

Alterations to existing window and elevation arrangements

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth

Application No.: 68897 App. Type: FUL 18/01/2023 Approve with Conditions
. Unit 3, Roach Bank Road, Bury, BL9 8RY

Location:

Proposal: Proposed extension to existing warehouse with external alterations to the existing building and
use of the building for Class E(g) and / or Class B2 and / or Class B8 purposes with associated
works

Application No.: 68940 App. Type: FUL 16/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

. 13 Blenheim Close, Bury, BL9 8BY

Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension

Application No.: 69001 App. Type: FUL 18/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

— 33 Sunny Bank Road, Bury, BL9 8HE

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension and raised decking at rear

Application No.: 69107 App. Type: FUL 25/01/2023 Approve with Conditions

. 71 Hillsborough Drive, Bury, BL9 8LF

Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension

Total Number of Applications Decided: 66

Page 118

Page 8 of 8 13/02/2023



Agenda Ite

REPORT FOR NOTING

Buiny,

Agenda
Item 6

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

21 February 2023

SUBJECT:

PLANNING APPEALS

REPORT FROM:

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

CONTACT OFFICER:

DAVID MARNO

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: Planning Appeals:

- Lodged

- Determined

Enforcement Appeals

- Lodged

- Determined
OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy

Do the proposals accord with the Policy

Framework: Framework? Yes
Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk Executive Director of Resources to advise

Considerations:

regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A

of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications: No

Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A




Wards Affected: All listed
Scrutiny Interest: N/A
TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership
Team

Executive

Member/Chair

Ward Members

Partners

Scrutiny Committee

Committee

Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is a monthly report to the Committee of the Planning Appeals lodged against
decisions of the authority and against Enforcement Notices served and those that
have been subsequently determined by the Planning Inspectorate.

Attached to the report are the Inspectors Decisions and a verbal report will be
presented to the Committee on the implications of the decisions on the Appeals that

were upheld.
2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-

Contact Details:-

David Marno, Head of Development Management
Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation,

3 Knowsley Place ,Bury
Tel: 0161 253 5291

BL9 OEJ

Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk

Page 120




Planning Appeals Decided
between 16/01/2023 and 12/02/2023 [U;Eﬁy

COUNCIL

Application No.: 68103/FUL Appeal Decision: Dismissed
Decision level: DEL Date: 26/01/2023
Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: Mr Howarth

Appeal type: Written Representations

Location: 29 Chestnut Avenue, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3EE

Proposal: Two storey extension at rear; First floor extension at side

Page 121



' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 9 January 2023

by L Wilson BA (Hons) MA MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 26 January 2023

Appeal Ref: APP/T4210/D/22/3306984

29 Chestnut Avenue, Tottington, Bury BL8 3EE

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr Andrew Howarth against the decision of Bury Metropolitan
Borough Council.

e The application Ref 68103, dated 16 February 2022, was refused by notice dated
24 June 2022.

e The development proposed was originally described as a 2 storey rear extension to
existing property, with the addition of a second floor on top of a side single storey
elevation.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Preliminary Matters

2. The appellant has submitted an alternative scheme with their appeal
submission to address the reasons for refusal. Generally, proposals cannot be
amended through the appeal process. The appeal process should not be used
to evolve a scheme and it is important that what is considered by myself is
essentially what was considered by the local planning authority, and on which
interested people’s views were sought. Where an appeal is made it is made
against the decision of the Council and based on the plans submitted at the
application stage.

3. The proposed amendments have not been subject to any public consultation
and are not insignificant. Furthermore, as is discussed in more detail below, the
drawings submitted with the planning application are of poor quality and
inconsistent. As a result, neighbouring occupiers may have found it difficult to
fully understand what was being proposed.

4. To consider an appeal on the basis of the amended proposal without the ability
to undertake a revised consultation exercise would be unfair and could
prejudice the position of those who may wish to comment. Consequently,
having regard to the Wheatcroft Principles, I have determined the appeal on
the basis of the plans originally submitted to the Council. Any amended
proposal would be a matter for the Council to consider.

Main Issues
5. The main issues are the effect of the proposed extension on:

e the living conditions of the occupants of 27 Chestnut Avenue, with
particular reference to outlook; and

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 122



Appeal Decision APP/T4210/D/22/3306984

e the character and appearance of the host dwelling and surrounding area.

Reasons

Living conditions

6.

10.

11.

No 29 is a two-storey dwelling situated within a residential area. The dwelling
has a single storey element to the side and there is a large outbuilding situated
at the rear of the garden. The appellant highlights that the Council has not
raised concern in relation to privacy, loss of light, overlooking, No 31 or the 45
degree line.

No 27 is adjacent to the appeal site and is sited forward of the host dwelling.
No 27 has a single storey garage directly adjacent to No 29’s single storey
element, as well as two outbuildings adjacent to No 29’s garden which occupy
a large proportion of the garden. The boundary treatment between Nos 27 and
29 is low which enables direct views between the gardens.

The drawings are inconsistent and of poor quality with little detail which makes
it difficult to fully assess the proposal’s impact. In any event, the proposed site
plan shows that the two-storey extension would have a large projection along
the shared boundary beyond the rear elevation of No 27. The Council state in
their officer’s report that the proposed site plan shows that the projection
would be 9 metres.

The existing buildings within No 27’s garden would to a degree screen the
proposed extension. However, there is no guarantee that the outbuildings
would be retained. Nonetheless, the extension would be clearly visible as it
would be two-storey in height. It would be a dominant addition which would
have an overbearing effect on the outlook from particularly the garden of No 27
because of the proposed depth and height of the extension which would be
adjacent to the common boundary. The gardens are not of a size to
accommodate the proposed extension without causing harm to the occupiers of
No 27.

For these reasons, the proposed extension would have an unacceptable effect
on the living conditions of the occupants of 27 Chestnut Avenue, with particular
reference to outlook. Consequently, it would conflict with Policy H2/3 of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan (1997) (UDP). This states that applications for
house extensions will be considered with regard to the amenity of adjacent
properties.

The scheme would also conflict with the Supplementary Planning Document 6:
Alterations and Extensions to Residential Properties (2004, updated 2010)
(SPD). This states that the separation between aspects of dwellings is an
important consideration in order to avoid overbearing relationships.

Character and appearance

12.

The second reason for refusal does not specifically refer to the character and
appearance of the host dwelling and surrounding area. However, it is clear
from reading the officer’s report that this reason for refusal relates to concerns
relating to visual amenity.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1232



Appeal Decision APP/T4210/D/22/3306984

13.

14.

15.

16.

The proposed extension would not result in the appearance of uncharacteristic
terracing. This is because No 29 is set back from No 27, and I recognise that
the Council has not specifically raised concern in this regard.

As stated above, the drawings are inconsistent and of poor quality with little
detail. Therefore, it is not possible to fully assess the proposal’s effect on the
character and appearance of the host building and surrounding area. The
drawings are inadequate to ensure that the proposed extension complements
the original building and does not have a detrimental impact on the character
and appearance of the street scene. I am also mindful that if planning
permission was granted then there could be enforcement issues as it is not
wholly clear what is being proposed in order to ensure that the development is
carried out entirely in accordance with the approved plans.

For these reasons, I am not satisfied that the proposed development would
have an acceptable effect on the character and appearance of the host dwelling
and surrounding area. Consequently, it would conflict with Policy H2/3 of the
UDP which states that applications for house extensions and alterations will be
considered with regard to the size, shape, design and external appearance of
the proposal, as well as the character of the property in question and the
surrounding area.

The scheme would also conflict with the SPD which states the plans and
drawings are a very important part of any application and are needed so that
the Council understands the proposal. In addition, any application for a
domestic extension will not normally be permitted unless the proposal achieves
a high standard of design and complements the original building and does not
have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of neighbouring
properties and general street-scene.

Other Matters

17.

18.

The appellant has highlighted a number of other matters. These include that
side extensions and alteration are not uncommon in the local area, the
extension would provide additional accommodation to meet the appellant’s
needs, no objection from the occupiers of No 27, compliance with parts of the
National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and benefits of the
proposal. In addition, they consider that limited weight should be given to
policies contained within the UDP because it is out of date.

A lack of objection and compliance with parts of the Framework do not amount
to a positive factor in favour of the scheme. In my view, Policy H2/3 of the UDP
is broadly consistent with the Framework which promotes good design and
seeks to ensure developments are sympathetic to local character and create
places with a high standard of amenity. Accordingly, I find no significant
conflict between Policy H2/3 and the Framework. The other matters raised, and
benefits of the proposal, do not outweigh the harm identified above.

Conclusion

19.

For the reasons given above, having considered the development plan as a
whole, and all other material considerations, the appeal does not succeed.

L, Wilson

INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1243



BliRy

COuUNCIL

Agenda Item 7

Item Number Item No.
7

Meeting:

Planning Control Committee

Meeting date:

21st February 2023

Title of report:

Appeal against Non-Determination:-
Planning Application: 67658

Applicant: Westchurch Homes Limited & Wyresdale
Amateur Football Club

Location: Land to west of Radcliffe Moor Road/Bury
New Road, Radcliffe

Proposal: Change of use of the land for use as outdoor
sports pitches including engineering operations to form
4 pitches, the construction of a clubhouse,

ancillary storage structures, creation of access from
Radcliffe Moor Road,parking, landscaping, drainage and
associated works.

Report by:

Head of Development Management

Decision Type:

Planning Control Committee

Ward(s) to which
report relates

Radcliffe — North and Ainsworth

Page 125




Background

1. On 30™ August 2022 a report from the Development Manager was submitted
to the Planning Control Committee in relation to the following planning
application:-

Planning Application: 67658

Location: Land to west of Radcliffe Moor Road/Bury New Road, Radcliffe
Applicant: Westchurch Homes Limited & Wyresdale Amateur Football Club
Proposal: Change of use of the land for use as outdoor sports pitches
including

engineering operations to form 4 pitches, the construction of a clubhouse,
ancillary storage structures, creation of access from Radcliffe Moor Road,
parking, landscaping, drainage and associated works.

2. The report recommended that the application be approved subject to
conditions. The Committee heard representations from the applicant, an
objector and Ward Councillors. The Committee resolved to defer consideration
of the application pending further information in relation to the ecology of the
site which included impact of surface water run-off into nearby wetlands and
fishing lodges which are a Site of Biological Importance (SBI).

3. Officers sought to work with the Applicant to secure the further information for
the Committee in a timely manner. However, on the 12t October 2022 the
Council received notification that the Applicant had lodged an appeal with the
Planning Inspectorate for “non-determination”. Where an application has not
been determined within the relevant statutory period (or such other period as
has been agreed in writing between the Council and the Applicant), the
Applicant has a right to appeal against nhon-determination.

4. The Planning Inspectorate has now confirmed that the appeal is valid and has
started. This means that the Council no longer has jurisdiction to determine
the application and the decision will instead be made by a Planning Inspector
appointed by the Secretary of State.

5. All comments the Council previously received on the application will be
forwarded to the Inspectorate and will form part of the appointed Planning
Inspector’s considerations. In addition, all those persons who were notified or
consulted about the application and any other interested persons who made
representations on the application have been notified of the appeal and will
have the opportunity to make any additional comments directly to the
Inspectorate by 14% March 2023.

6. The Planning Inspector has determined that the appeal will be determined
using the written representations procedure. By the 14% March 2023 the

Page 126



Council is required to submit a Statement of Case which will need to set out
the decision the Council would have made if the power to determine the
application remained with the Council. Consequently, it important that
members of the Planning Committee provide views on what decision they
would have made so that officers are able to properly respond to the appeal.

Officer Report / Update

7. The Officer Report to the Planning Control Committee on 30% August 2022 is
attached as Appendix 1 and the Supplementary Report with further details on
the application is attached as Appendix 2.

8. In relation to the reason for deferral (for further information in relation to the
ecology of the site which included impact on water run off into nearby
wetlands and fishing lodges), no further information has been received and so
there is nothing further to report.

9. It is acknowledged that the condition is undoubtably complex. The aim of the
condition was to allow the project to proceed on the basis that any adverse
findings from the required further investigations would lead to suspension of
any works pending an amended proposal or acceptable mitigation. The
difficulty here is that due to the relatively unknown nature of the hydrology
within the site and its relationship to the water bodies and SBI, mitigation may
or may not be required and it was considered that the scheme would require
close monitoring during implementation. The NPPG considers that when used
properly, conditions can enhance the quality of development and enable
development to proceed where it would otherwise have been necessary to
refuse planning permission, by mitigating the adverse effects. The objectives
of planning are best served when the power to attach conditions to a planning
permission is exercised in a way that is clearly seen to be fair, reasonable and
practicable. It is important to ensure that conditions are tailored to tackle
specific problems, rather than standardised or used to impose broad
unnecessary controls.

10.The view of members was that these investigations should be undertaken prior
to consideration of the planning application. Officers remain of the view that
proposed Condition 7 in the Supplementary Report adequately controls the
potential for surface water contaminated with nutrient or other contamination
from entering the adjacent water bodies and the potential for disruption to the
aquafers having an adverse effect on the quality or quantity of water entering
the adjacent water bodies and consequently biodiversity of the SBI.

11.The Officer Recommendation remains that the planning application be
approved subject to the conditions as set out in the Officer Report and the
Supplementary Report.

12.Local planning authorities must review cases promptly following the lodging of
an appeal and are at risk of an award of costs if they behave unreasonably
with respect to a matter under appeal, for example, by unreasonably
defending appeals.

Page 127



Recommendation

Members are being asked to provide their view on the application, so officers are
able to defend the appeal in accordance with their wishes.

The Officer recommendation remains that the planning application be approved

subject to the conditions set out in the Officer Report and the Supplementary
Report.

Page 128



APPENDIX 1

The Officer Report to the Planning Control Committee on 30" August 2022

Ward: Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth ltem 02

Applicant: Westchurch Homes Limited & Wyresdale Amateur Football Club
Location: Land to west of Radcliffe Moor Road/Bury New Road, Radcliffe

Proposal: Change of use of the land for use as outdoor sports pitches including engineering
operations to form 4 pitches, the construction of a clubhouse, ancillary storage
structures, creation of access from Radcliffe Moor Road, parking, landscaping,
drainage and associated works.

Application Ref: 67658/Full Target Date: 10/01/2022
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

The Development manager suggests that a site visit be carried out by the Planning
Control Committee Meeting

Description

The application site comprises 2 rectangular parcels of grassed land of 6 hectares in size.
The site is located to the west of Radcliffe Moor Road and to the south of Bury New Road.
The land slopes downwards from Bury New Road to Browns Road. The site was last used
as agricultural land and there are hedgerows on the perimeter of and crossing the site.

Bury New Road forms the boundary to the north with residential properties beyond. There is
a car sales dealer and a Public Right of Way on the north west corner. There are 4 lodges
to the south of the site, with industrial building beyond. There is an open field to the west
with residential properties beyond. Radcliffe Moor Road forms the boundary to the ease with
open fields beyond.

The proposed development involves the change of use of the land including operational
development to form 4 football pitches with associated engineering works, the construction
of a clubhouse, creation of an access from Radcliffe Moor Road and works to parking,
landscaping and drainage.

The proposed pitches would be formed in the north and south of the site and 'cut and fill'
would be used to create a level playing area. The proposed clubhouse would be single
storey and would be located centrally in the site.

Access would be taken from Radcliffe New Road and a parking area for 78 cars and a cycle
store for 24 cycles.

The application is submitted to provide a compensatory loss of open space within Bolton at
Inverbeg Drive, where the site is currently intended to be redeveloped for housing.

Relevant Planning History
None relevant.

Page 129



Publicity

The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 28 October 2021 and a
press notice was published in the Bury Times on 25 November 2021. Site notices were
posted on 12 November 2021.

1 letter in favour was received and raised the following issues:

» This will give a local club a fantastic up to date facility so they can continue to provide
opportunities for hundreds of young people to play football on a weekly basis.

» The field is currently unused and will change very little with the addition of a parking
area and two buildings.

* Most of the area will remain grass for wildlife to use.

» | am sure the council will look careful at appropriate traffic measures.

* People moan there is nothing for youngsters to do.... Here is a perfect opportunity to
help.

2 comments and 79 letters were received, which have raised the following issues:

» The existing site of the football club should be improved.

» Traffic on Radcliffe Moor Road is already an issue and cars are unable to turn right onto
Bury New Road.

» The increase in traffic would increase danger and pollution

» This site has been encouraged to enable further housing applications

» The proposal is located on Green Belt land which should be preserved

» The applicant cannot maintain their current pitches and this site would fall into disrepair.

» The developer will continue and put homes on the Green Belt land

» The proposal is an overdevelopment as the club does not have enough members to
warrant such large facilities

» The area around the lodges is a haven for wildlife.

» The noise and light pollution would cause distress to wildlife in the surrounding area

» Problems already exist with Browns Road - this road is classified as unsuitable for
heavy vehicles but isn't managed and the small road is blocked daily by HGVs,
preventing access to Boundary Drive. If cars attending sports events also attempt to
park here, there will be chaos.

» The development is not required in that particular area - there are other developed
sports facilities within 2km of this site and it therefore this represents a duplication

» The extra parking that will inevitably overflow onto Browns Rd and other nearby
residential roads

» the noise from matches would be audible in this otherwise quiet area

» We need to keep natural habitat and green spaces to stop climate change and
encourage biodiversity. This is greenbelt and as such should be protected

» Lack of consideration given to the existing mine shaft entry point highlighted in the
objection by the Coal Authority.

* Twenty-seven spaces for spectators is inadequate.

» Safe access for those with limited mobility and / or a disability not considered.

» The existing land is a natural drain to the lodges. The development will again cause
more localised flooding.

« Why destroy greenbelt and subsequent wildlife habitats in Bury when the football
pitches in question have been sold for profit under another council.

* Why does a Bolton football club have to relocate into Radcliffe, why don't they go to
Bolton council for greenbelt land to relocate to.

» The area is widely used by local people.

Page 130



* Once again the greed of Bury Council to increase revenue on green land has now
extended to allowing a very small Bolton FC to apply for permission to build a new
complex.

» By approving this application, the council would be setting a president for other
applications on Green Belt. Bury's Green Belt should not be sacrificed for Bolton's gain.

» The low intensity managed grassland provides capture and drainage of rainwater.
Replacing this with intensively managed drained pitches can impact local flood
resilience. The water drains into Starmount Lodges and then Blackshaw Brook. If
installed drainage is permitted to have same outflow then | have concerns about
pollution or eutrophication resulting from pesticides and fertilizers used in pitch
maintenance.

» Security & devaluation of properties is another concern

* Footballs being jettisoned onto a main road will be dangerous

* Most of the other football pitches in the area have problems with yobs and druggies

*  Our properties were built in 1912 and enjoy splendid unobstructed panoramic views
towards the Cheshire Hills. Any change of the vista would be an eyesore and totally out
of character.

» As alife long residents here and Council Tax (or equivalent) payers of over 50 years we
were somewhat dismayed and disappointed to receive less than 3 weeks notice to reply
to this proposal which evidently has been carefully assembled over an 18 month period.

» Bolton should first utilise their own brownfield sites for a development of this nature.

» We are bewildered if a struggling football club who needs to sell their site would be
worthy of such a dramatic and out of context extension in a borough to which they do
not belong.

* We believe that for the vast majority of the week the site and car-park would be
redundant (Sporadic use) Especially given the seasonal nature of the sport and games
at the weekend. Can it’'s development be justified when the fields lay idle for 3 months a
year (Summer)?

»  Would Bolton Council be willing to allow an amateur football club from Bury to build on
their greenbelt land?

The objectors and supporter have been notified of the Planning Control Committee
meeting.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations

Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to highway
improvements, construction traffic management plan, turning facilities, parking and bin
storage facilities.

Drainage Section - Comments to be reported in the Supplementary Report.
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of
conditions relating to contaminated land.

Environmental Health - Air Quality - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition
relating to an electric vehicle charging point.

Public Rights of Way Officer - No objections.

GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to nesting
birds, invasive species, method statement, disposal of surface water and landscaping and
informatives relating to bats.

Sport England - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to a
management and maintenance scheme.

Cadent Gas Ltd - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to the gas
pipeline.

The Coal Authority - No objections, subject to the inclusion of an informative relating to
coal mining.

Page 131



Lancashire Wildlife Trust - No response received.
Transport for GM - No objections.

Pre-start Conditions - Applicant has agreed with pre-start conditions

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

EN1/1 Visual Amenity

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN1/3 Landscaping Provision

EN1/11 Public Utility Infrastructure

EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk

ENG6 Conservation of the Natural Environment
EN6/2 Sites of Nature Conservation Interest LNR's
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value

EN7 Pollution Control

EN7/2 Noise Pollution

EN7/4 Groundwater Protection

EN7/5 Waste Water Management

ENS8 Woodland and Trees

EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting

OoL1/2 New Buildings in the Green Belt

OL1/5 Mineral Extraction and Other Development in the Green Belt
OoL4/1 Agricultural Land Quality

RT2/1 Provision of New Recreation Sites

RT3/4 Recreational Routes

RT3/5 Noisy Sport

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development
HT4 New Development

HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict

SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Principle - Green Belt - The application site is located in the Green Belt and as such,
paragraph 149 and 150 are relevant.

Paragraph 149 of the NPPF states that the construction of new buildings would be

inappropriate in the Green Belt. Exceptions to this are:

a. buildings for agriculture and forestry;

b. the provision of appropriate facilities (in connection with the existing use of land or a
change of use) for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation, cemeteries and burial grounds and
allotments; as long as the facilities preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do not
conflict with the purposes of including land within it;

Page 132



the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in

disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building;

the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not

materially larger than the one it replaces;

limited infilling in villages;

limited affordable housing for local community needs under policies set out in the

development plan (including policies for rural exception sites); and

limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed land,

whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would:

* not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing
development; or

* not cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt, where the
development would re-use previously developed land and contribute to meeting an
identified affordable housing need within the area of the local planning authority.

Paragraph 150 of the NPPF states that certain other forms of development are also not
inappropriate in the Green Belt provided they preserve its openness and do not conflict with
the purposes of including land within it. These are:

mineral extraction;

engineering operations;

local transport infrastructure which can demonstrate a requirement or a Green Belt
location;

the re-use of buildings provided that the buildings are of permanent and substantial
construction;

material changes in the use of land (such as changes of use for outdoor sport or
recreation, or for cemeteries and burial grounds); and

development, including buildings, brought forward under a Community Right to Build
Order or Neighbourhood Development Order.

Policy OL1/2 states that the construction of new buildings in the Green Belt is inappropriate
development, unless it is for one of more of the following purposes:

agriculture and forestry

essential facilities for outdoor sport and outdoor recreation, for cemeteries, and for other
uses of land which preserve the openness of the Green Belt and which do not conflict
with the purposes of including land within it;

limited extension, alteration or replacement of existing dwellings, provided that this
would not result in a disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original
dwelling, or, in the case of replacement existing dwellings, the new dwelling is not
materially larger than the one it replaces;

limited infilling in existing villages.

Policy OL1/5 states that within the Green Belt other development, not including buildings,
will be inappropriate unless:

it maintains openness and does not conflict with the purposes of including land in the
Green Belt;

in the case of mineral extraction, it does not conflict with the purposes of including land
in the Green Belt, and high environmental standards will be maintained and the site well
restored.

Proposals for other development not falling into one of the above categories is inappropriate
development and is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt. Any development proposal
considered to involve inappropriate development will only be permitted in very special
circumstances.

Page 133



One of the main issues to be considered in respect of the proposal is the impact of the
proposed development on the Green Belt. This can be broken down into the following
areas:

A. Whether the proposed use as a football club (outdoor recreation) is an appropriate
use within the Green Belt.

B. Whether the details of the scheme would make the proposal inappropriate
development within the Green Belt.

C. Would the proposed development result in additional harm to the openness of the
Green Belt.

D. Are there any very special circumstances, which would outweigh any inappropriateness
or harm to the openness of the Green Belt.

The proposed development involves the change of use of the land to form 4 sports pitches,
including engineering operations and the construction of a clubhouse. The proposed change
of use and associated engineering works would be appropriate development under
paragraph 150 of the NPPF.

The proposed clubhouse would contain changing rooms for the teams and officials, plant,
disabled changing facilities, toilets, an office, a kitchen and a coaching/meeting room. All of
which would be essential facilities for outdoor recreation. The proposed clubhouse would be
single storey structure with a pitched roof and would be located towards the middle of the
site. The site slopes steeply and cut and fill would be used to create three level areas for 4
pitches and for the clubhouse and associated parking. The proposed clubhouse would be
lower than Radcliffe Moor Road and the hedgerow would be maintained and would act as a
screen.

It is acknowledged that some of the associated development, such as the proposed
clubhouse and car park would have an impact upon the openness of the Green Belt.
However, the principle of the recreational use is acceptable and the associated users would
require parking. The proposed clubhouse would be relatively compact and the proposed
parking provision is adequate for the proposed use - i.e. parking has not been over-
provided. As such, bearing in mind the planning balance, the proposed development would
invariably bring change but the change would be of such a scale that it would maintain the
openness and character of the Green Belt.

As such, it is considered that the proposed development would be appropriate development
and would not have a significant adverse impact upon the openness and character of the
Green Belt. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies
OL1/2 and OL1/5 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF.

Principle - Recreation - Policy RT2/1 states that the Council will give favourable
consideration to proposals involving the provision of additional recreational facilities
throughout the borough.

The proposed development would provide 4 sports pitches and an associated clubhouse.
As such, the proposed development would provide additional recreational facilities.
Therefore, the proposed development would be acceptable in principle and would be in
accordance with Policy RT2/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Design and layout - The proposed football pitches would be positioned on the perimeter of
the site and would be of varying sizes for use by different age groups. The sloping site
would be cut and filled to provide a level playing surface. Additional landscaping would be
provided to supplement the existing hedgerows, which would act as a screen. As such, the

Page 134



proposed pitches would not be a prominent feature in the streetscene or Green Belt
location.

The proposed clubhouse and car park would be located broadly centrally within the site.
The proposed clubhouse would be constructed in 2 phases as the club expands. The first
phase of the proposed clubhouse would involve a rectangular, single storey building, which
would be constructed from brick with a tile roof. The second phase of the proposed
clubhouse would add two single storey extensions to the north and east, creating a L
shaped building. The proposed development would incorporate pike details and brick
headers, which would add visual interest. As such, the proposed development would not be
a prominent feature in the streetscene.

A storage container would be located adjacent to the proposed clubhouse for storage of
equipment required for maintenance of the pitches and would be viewed against the
proposed clubhouse. The agent has confirmed that the proposed container would be clad in
timber and the area around it would be landscaped. As such, given the landscaping and the
cladding proposed, the proposed container would not be a prominent feature in the
streetscene.

Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies EN1/1 and
EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Agricultural land - Paragraph 174 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions

should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by:

» protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value
and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in
the development plan);

* recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider benefits
from natural capital and ecosystem services — including the economic and other benefits
of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and woodland;

* maintaining the character of the undeveloped coast, while improving public access to it
where appropriate;

* minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing
coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures;

» preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, air,
water or noise pollution or land instability. Development should, wherever possible, help
to improve local environmental conditions such as air and water quality, taking into
account relevant information such as river basin management plans; and

» remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and unstable
land, where appropriate.

The Agricultural Land Classification grades land, with the best and most versatile being
grades 1 and 2 and 3a being low quality. There is no grade 1 or 2 agricultural land within the
borough and there are small pockets of Grade 3a land in the Unsworth, Pilsworth and
Simister area and Grades 3b and 3c in the north west and south west parts of the borough.
The site of the proposed club is classified as Grade 4, which is poor quality. Therefore, its
loss would not be contrary to the requirements of Policies OL4 and OL4/1 of the adopted
Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF.

Drainage - A Flood Risk Assessment was submitted as part of the application and identified
a bedrock aquifer and secondary source within the site. It is understood that Stormont

Page 135



Lodges and its associated ponds, which are located to the south of the site, are fed via
natural springs/aquifers from the application site.

Policy EN7/4 states that the Council will not permit development proposals which would
have an unacceptable adverse effect on groundwater resources particularly in terms of their
quality and/or supply.

The Drainage Strategy submitted with the application confirms that the proposed car park
and football pitches would be constructed using a cut and fill method. As such, the proposed
cut and fill method of construction could disrupt the water flow from the springs to the lodges
and ponds. In addition, this could lead to cross contamination from maintenance and usage
of the pitches and potentially decrease the flow of supply to the lodge and pond. This then
could impact upon the nearby Site of Biological Interest (SBI).

Further information has been submitted which has confirmed that the proposed drainage
works would be acceptable. In addition, the report confirms that the deeper aquifer feeds
the existing lodge and reservoir and would not be affected by the proposed works. As such,
the water level would be maintained. In addition, the applicant has agreed to a monitoring
point being provided, which would allow for regular testing to highlight any potential issues
in terms of water quality. The Drainage Section has no objections in principle and the
conditions would be reported in the Supplementary Report.

Ecology - An ecological survey was submitted as part of the application and identified no
significant issues.

Bats - No buildings or trees with potential bat roosting features are present on the site. Bat
foraging/commuting is likely to be restricted to using linear features to reach the Site of
Biological Interest (SBI) where foraging habitat is of significantly higher value. These linear
features are primarily retained and the hedgerow to be removed is the least structurally
developed. GM Ecology Unit states that the proposed development is unlikely to impact
upon bats.

There is no mention of flood lighting and a statement that external lighting would be LED
and on a timer to prevent use prior to dawn and after dusk. GM Ecology Unit states that
there would not no likely indirect impacts from the proposed lighting and that any future
phases that propose flood lighting should submit bat activity surveys. Therefore, the
proposed development would not cause harm to a protected species and would be in
accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Great Crested Newts - It is unlikely that Great Crested Newts (GCN) would be present in
this area as the ponds and lodges have been surveyed previously and are sufficiently
isolated from known meta populations at Coggra Fold and Darcey Lever. As such,
colonisation is extremely unlikely. GM Ecology Unit agrees with the findings and has no
objections, subject to a condition relating to reasonable avoidance measures being
implemented. Therefore, the proposed development would not cause harm to a protected
species and would be in accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan.

Nesting Birds - The central hedgerow would be lost as well as a section of hedgerow along
Radcliffe Moor Road. The hedgerows would provide potential bird nesting habitat and there
a chance that ground nesting birds, such as lapwing use the fields. GM Ecology Unit has no
objections, subject to the inclusion of condition relating to nesting birds. Therefore, the
proposed development would not cause harm to a protected species and would be in
accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Page 136



Invasive Species - Japanese Knotweed and Himalayan Balsam are present along
boundaries of the site. Both species are included within schedule 9 part 2 of the Wildlife &
Countryside Act 1981, as amended and it is an offence to introduce or cause to grow wild
either of these plants.

Both would appear to be largely avoidable, given the boundary hedges where both plants
occur are to be retained. However, earthworks for pitch 3 do appear to encroach on the
hedgerow, with the roots of Japanese knotweed potentially extending in to the zone of the
earthworks and similarly seed from balsam potentially impacted upon. GM Ecology Unit has
no objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to invasive species. Therefore,
the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan

Protection of Bradley Fold SBI and Blackshaw Brook - The site drains towards Bradley Fold
SBIl and it is proposed to discharge primarily to Blackshaw Brook with some drainage
leading to the SBI via a swale. GM Ecology Unit has no objections in principle, but require a
condition to ensure that any surface water draining into either the Brook or the mill ponds is
the same or better in terms of nutrient levels, pollutants and discharge volumes to ensure no
negative impacts occur on either water body both during construction and operations. This
is discussed above and relates to this concern directly.

Therefore, the proposed development with conditional controls, would not cause harm to a
protected species and would be in accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

Contributing to and Enhancing the Natural Environment - Section 170 of the NPPF states
that the planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and
local environment.

The proposed development will result in the loss of a small part of the low ecological value
grassland to hardstanding and buildings and around 90 metres of hedgerow to low value
grassland. The proposed development includes tree and shrub planting around the
boundaries of the site and there are significant areas of grassland that would be retained as
amenity grassland with annual cuts. As such, the proposed development would be able to
provide adequate mitigation on site and additional mitigation for the loss of bird nesting
habitat should be provided.

No flood lighting is proposed.

GM Ecology Unit has no objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to
landscaping, including hawthorn hedges, native tree and shrub planting and ornamental
planting around the car park and clubhouse. Therefore, the proposed development would
be in accordance with Policies EN1/3, EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury Unitary Development
Plan.

Impact upon residential amenity/noise - The proposed development would provide 4
football pitches, a clubhouse and car park on site. There are 4 elements of the proposed
development which may affect residential amenity:

* Noise directly associated with the use of the pitches for playing football;

* Noise associated from the clubhouse;

* Noise from the car park.

Page 137



The proposed pitches would be 78.6 metres from the dwellings on Bury New Road; 211
metres from the dwellings on Somerton Road and 179.8 metres from the dwellings on
Browns Road.

The proposed clubhouse would be 245 metres from the dwellings on Bury New Road; 360
metres from the dwellings on Somerton Road and 287.5 metres from the dwellings on
Browns Road.

Given these significant distances, it is considered that the proposed development would not
have a significant adverse impact upon the amenity of the neighbouring properties through
noise.

Therefore, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the
amenity of the neighbouring residents, subject to conditional control and would be in
accordance with Policies EN7 and EN7/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Highways issues - The proposed development would be accessed from Radcliffe Moor
Road and a new junction would be formed. The proposed access would be 6.3 metres wide
and there would be appropriate levels of visibility. Turning facilities would be provided in the
proposed car park.

The Traffic Section has no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to
highway improvements, construction traffic management plan, turning facilities, parking
provision and bin storage facilities.

Therefore, the proposed development would not be detrimental to highway safety and would
be in accordance with Policies EN1/2 and HT4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Public right of way - A Public Right of Way passes near the north west corner of the site
and would be unaffected by the proposals. The Public Rights of Way Officer has no
objections to the proposed development. Therefore, the proposed development would be in
accordance with Policy RT3/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Parking - With regard to parking provision, there is no maximum standard with SPD11 and
the parking provision should be determined on the individual merits of the proposal.

The proposed development would provide 78 spaces for cars and 24 spaces for cycle
storage.

This would reflect the likely maximum demand, based on a tournament with a number of
teams playing on all courts. The proposed level of parking would also ensure that there
would be no parking on Radcliffe Moor Road. The site is located in a high access area and
there is a regular bus service on Bury New Road, which is within walking distance and
shared transport would also be expected to be used. As such, the level of parking provision
would be acceptable in this instance and would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the
adopted Unitary Development Plan and SPD11.

Access issues - The provision of the disabled parking bays, level access to the clubhouse
and the disabled toilet/changing facilities is welcomed. As such, the proposed development
would be fully accessible and would be in accordance with Policy HT5/1 of the adopted
Unitary Development Plan.

Response to objectors

Page 138



» The issues relating to impact upon wildlife, noise and light pollution, traffic generation
and access for persons with disabilities have been addressed in the main report.

» The proposed development would be appropriate development within the Green Belt
and would maintain openness.

* No applications have been submitted for housing on this land.

* No precedent would be set as each application is assessed on its own merits.

» The proposed development would not impact upon access to the wider area.

» The proposed development would be accessed from Radcliffe Moor Road and not
Browns Road.

» The Coal Authority has no objections to the proposed development.

» Impact upon property prices and the loss of a view are not material planning
considerations.

» The existing hedgerows surrounding the site would be retained and supplemented and
would prevent footballs from passing onto Radcliffe Moor Road.

» The Council has complied with the statutory requirements for the publicity of the
application.

» Bury Council is determining the application and does not own the land or have any
connection to the applicant.

» A brownfield site is unlikely to be suitable for use for grassed football pitches.

* As aresult of the development, the borough would gain additional sport pitch facilities to
contribute to the overall recreation provision within the Radcliffe area.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to
identify various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal
comprised sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and
environmental conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan.
These were incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning
condition. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement
in Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 2102-GTA-00-00-DR-A-1000, 2102-
GTA-00-00-DR-A-1001 A, 2102-GTA-00-00-DR-A-1002 C, 2102-GTA-00-00-DR-
A-1003 C, 2102-GTA-00-00-DR-A-1004 C, 2102-GTA-00-00-DR-A-1005 A, ISO
A4 - Proposed layout, ISO A4 - Cross Section A - AA, ISO A4 - Cross Section B -
BB, ISO A4 - Cross Section C - CC, ISO A4 - Cross Section D - DD, ISO A4 -
Cross Section E - EE and the development shall not be carried out except in
accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

Page 139



Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks/cladding/paint finishes) to be used in the
external elevations of the clubhouse and storage facility, together with details of
their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is commenced.
Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for the construction of the
development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity.

No development shall commence unless and until:-

* A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;

» Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

* Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination and

subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory development

of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas and the wider
environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 15 -

Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Prior to occupation the applicant shall provide one dual head fast capability electric
vehicle (EV) charging point.

Reason. In accordance with the NPPF, to encourage the uptake of ultra-low
emission vehicles and ensure the development is sustainable. To safeguard
residential amenity, public health and quality of life.

Before the drainage system associated with the club house, playing pitches and
car park is brought into use, a Management and Maintenance Scheme for the
playing pitches and other facilities hereby approved including management and
maintenance responsibilities, a maintenance schedule, a monitoring regime (after
first establishing a baseline for quantity and quality) including the monitoring of
water quantity and quantity discharged from the proposed reed bed, and a
mechanism for review, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Page 140



10.

The scheme shall include details of any fertiliser to be used on the site, including
its type, chemical composition, method and density of application, as well as the
timing of application.

The Management and Maintenance of the site including the playing surfaces,
swale and reed bed shall thereafter be strictly in accordance with the approved
scheme.

No fertiliser, pesticides, conditioning agents, or other chemicals shall be used on
the site other than that expressly identified in the Maintenance and Management
Scheme.

Should the monitoring and maintenance regime not be followed then use of the
facility (pitches, clubhouse and car park) must cease immediately until the breach
is investigated and rectified. No fertiliser, pesticides, conditioning agents, or other
chemicals shall be applied until the swale and reed bed are established and
functioning as intended.

Reason. To ensure that a new facility is capable of being managed and
maintained to deliver a facility which is fit for purpose, sustainable and to ensure
sufficient benefit of the development to sport and to accord with paragraph 99 of
the NPPF whilst preventing any adverse effect on quality or quantity of water
entering the adjacent water bodies due to surface water contaminated with nutrient
or other contaminants or disruption of aquafers which would otherwise have an
adverse effect on water quantity or quality and consequently biodiversity.

No works to trees, shrubs or hedgerow occur or earthworks commence between
the 1st March and 31st August in any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a
suitably experienced ecologist has been carried out immediately prior to clearance
and written confirmation provided that no active bird nests are present which has
been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 -
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

No development shall commence until full details of a scheme for the eradication
and/or control of Japanese Knotweed (Fallonica Japonica, Rouse Decraene,
Polygonum Cuspidatum) and Himalayan Balsam (Impatiens Glandulifera) is
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved management plan shall include a timetable for implementation. Should a
delay of more than one year occur between the date of approval of the
management scheme and either the date of implementation of the management
scheme or the date of development commencing, a further site survey must be
undertaken and submitted to the Local Planning Authority.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual extent of
Japanese Knotweed and Himalayan Balsam in the interest of UDP Policy EN9 -
Landscape and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 15 -
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

No earth moving shall take place or material or machinery brought on site until a
method statement to protect the ponds at Bradley Fold and the Blackshaw Brook
from accidental spillages, dust and debris has been supplied to and agreed by the
LPA. All measure will be implemented and maintained for the duration of the
construction period in accordance with the approved detalils.

Reason. To protect the Site of Biological Interest from harm pursuant to Policies
ENG6/2 - Sites of Nature Conservation Interest and EN6/3 - Features of Ecological

Page 141



11.

12.

13.

Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 15 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

No development shall take place until it can be demonstrated that there will be no
negative impacts on the ecological potential of the ponds at Bradley Fold and
Blackshaw Brook resulting from the disposal of surface water post-development
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details,
as approved, shall be implemented in full in accordance with a timetable which has
first been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason. To protect the Site of Biological Interest from harm pursuant to Policies
ENG6/2 - Sites of Nature Conservation Interest and EN6/3 - Features of Ecological
Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 15 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

A landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The contents
of the landscaping scheme should include wildflower grassland, hawthorn hedges,
native tree and shrub planting and the provision of bat bricks/tubes within the new
development and bat and bird boxes. The approved scheme shall thereafter be
implemented not later than 12 months from the date the clubhouse is first
occupied or within the first available tree planting season; and any trees or shrubs
removed, dying or becoming severely damaged or becoming severely diseased
within five years of planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or
species to those originally required to be planted.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential
Development, EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 - Woodland and
Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving
and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.

Notwithstanding the details indicated in different forms on approved plan
references B026883 TTE 00 XX PL D 001 Revision P01 & 2102-GTA-00-00-DR-A-
1003 Revision C, no development shall commence unless and until full details of
the following have been submitted on a topographical based survey of the site and
adjacent adopted highways to the Local Planning Authority:

» Provision of a swept path analysis of the proposed junction onto Radcliffe Moor
Road to determine adequate access road width and kerb radii;

» Provision of a swept path analysis of the proposed refuse collection/site
servicing arrangements;

» Formation of the site access onto Radcliffe Moor Road, incorporating the
provision of adequate arrangements at the interface with the adopted highway
to form a maximum 1 in 20 plateau, 2.0m wide (minimum) footways tying into
existing footways at positions to be agreed, provision of visibility splays at the
junction of the site access with Radcliffe Moor Road for an appropriate design
speed based on speed surveys to be undertaken on the classified road,
alterations to the adjacent site boundaries in order to ensure that there will be
no obstructions within the splays above a height of 0.6m, demarcation of the
limits of the adopted highway, tactile paved crossing points in positions to be
agreed including, if necessary, of revised limits of adoption required to ensure
that the crossing point is located on the adopted highway, give-way markings
and alterations to the existing road markings on Radcliffe Moor Road to
provide a right turn pocket into the development, and all associated highway
and highway drainage remedial works;

Page 142



14.

» Measures to prevent the discharge of surface water from the proposed car
park hardstanding areas and site access onto the adjacent adopted highway

» Provision of a street lighting assessment to a scope and specification to be
agreed for the junction of the site access with Radcliffe Moor Road and, where
necessary, a scheme of improvements;

» Proposals for the introduction of waiting restrictions at the junction of the site
access with Radcliffe Moor Road, including all necessary road markings and
signage.

The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to an agreed programme
and to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway
safety, ensure good highway design, ensure the intervisibility of the users of the
site and the adjacent highways and maintain the integrity of the adopted highway,
all in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and
Built Design and Policy H4 - New Development of the Bury Unitary Development
Plan.

No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following:

» Photographic dilapidation survey of the footways and carriageways leading to
and abutting the site access in the event that subsequent remedial works are
required following construction of and statutory undertakers connections to the
development;

» Access route for vehicles from the highway network;

» Access point(s) to the site for each phase of the development, including any
temporary works and measures required to protect highway users and facilitate
vehicular access;

» Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements;

» Proposed site hoarding/gate positions clear of appropriate visibility splays onto
Radcliffe Moor Road;

» A scheme of appropriate warning/speed limit signage in the vicinity of the
construction site access(es);

» Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage
of the site;

» Parking on site of operatives' and construction vehicles together with storage
on site of construction materials;

» Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not spread onto
the adjacent adopted highways as a result of the groundworks operations or
carried on the wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site and
measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the operations.

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the demolition/construction
period and the measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended
purpose for the duration of the demolition and construction periods. The areas
identified shall not be used for any other purposes other than the turning/parking of
vehicles and storage of demolition/construction materials.

Reason. Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of
the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and that

Page 143



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works
operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary
Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 -
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

The turning facilities indicated on the approved plans (or as required to satisfy a
separate condition) shall be provided before the development hereby approved is
brought into use and the areas used for the manoeuvring of vehicles shall
subsequently be maintained free of obstruction at all times.

Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and
Built Design of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

The car and cycle parking spaces indicated on the approved plans shall be
surfaced/implemented and made available for use prior to the development hereby
approved being brought into use and thereafter maintained at all times.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

The bin storage facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be implemented to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority prior to the development hereby
approved being brought into use and maintained thereafter.

Reason. To ensure adequate provision for the storage and disposal of refuse
within the curtilage of the site, clear of the adopted highway pursuant to Policy
EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Prior to the commencement of development a detailed drainage design, broadly in
accordance with the principles established in the Hydrological Assessment (July
2022) (ref. HYD633) and Preliminary Drainage Strategy (ref. HYD633.633.BET.1
Rev. A) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The detailed scheme shall include the detailed design and construction
of the swale (to include the detailed design of the reed bed, wet and dry portions of
the swale, as well as the flow control mechanisms to deliver the required
attenuation and flows to ensure the integrity and functionality of the reed bed as
well as the provision of facilities to allow the monitoring off water quality from the
reed bed) as well as all other proposed drainage features on the site. The detailed
design calculations shall be submitted for the approved scheme, including
attenuation design to accommodate a 1 in 100 year storm event, plus a minimum
allowance of 75% for climate change. The drainage scheme shall be implemented
strictly in accordance with the approved details in its entirety prior to the pitches
hereby approved being brought into use and shall thereafter be retained, and
managed and maintained in accordance with the Management and Maintenance
Scheme required by condition 7 above.

Reason. To ensure that the detail design of the scheme has proper regard to the
need to drain the site and safeguard both the fabric of the adjacent waterbodies as
well as the quantity and quality of the water discharging in accordance with the
following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan:

Policy EN5/1 - New Development and Flood Risk

Policy EN7/5 - Waste Water Management

Policy EN6/3 - Features of Ecological Value

Prior to the commencement of development a scheme of intrusive site drainage
investigations and preliminary engineering works to investigate ground water flows

Page 144



feeding Starmount reservoir and springs in the vicinity of the proposed swale,
including the timing of such works, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority.

A report of the findings of such investigations shall be submitted to the local
planning authority. Any such report should include where appropriate any
additional drainage works that are necessary to safeguard the functionality of the
swale and the water quality and ground water flows into the adjacent existing
waterbodies. Including detailed design that demonstrates that the proposed works
will safeguard the structural integrity of Starmount reservoir and the quantity and
quality of the water feeding the reservoir. Any such additional works shall be
approved in writing by the local planning authority and shall thereafter be
implemented prior to the completion of the drainage works to which they relate.
The additional works shall be implemented in full in accordance with the approved
details prior to the pitches hereby approved being brought into use and shall
thereafter be retained, and managed and maintained in accordance with the
Management and Maintenance Scheme required by condition 7 above.

Reason. To ensure that the detail design of the scheme has proper regard to the
need to drain the site and safeguard both the fabric of the adjacent waterbodies as
well as the quantity and quality of the water discharging in accordance with the
following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan:

Policy EN5/1 - New Development and Flood Risk

Policy EN7/5 - Waste Water Management

Policy EN6/3 - Features of Ecological Value.

For further information on the application please contact Helen Leach on 0161 253 5322

Page 145



APPENDIX 2

Supplementary Report to the Planning Control Committee on 30t August 2022

BURY COUNCIL
DEPARTMENT FOR BUSINESS, GROWTH AND INFRASTRUCTURE

PLANNING SERVICES

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE
30 August 2022

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Page 146



Item:02

Land to west of Radcliffe Moor Road/Bury New Road, Radcliffe
Application No. 67658

Change of use of the land for use as outdoor sports pitches including
engineering operations to form 4 pitches, the construction of a
clubhouse, ancillary storage structures, creation of access from Radcliffe
Moor Road, parking, landscaping, drainage and associated works.

Publicity

1 letter of support has been received, which has raised the following issues:

« Strongly support the application on one condition

» The postal address is Bradley Fold, Bolton, BL2 with 01204 numbers. It is
BOLTON not Radcliffe. The football club would still be geographically in Bolton.
Some objectors referring to Radcliffe are not locals. Besides Bolton Borough's
loss would be our gain.

» A football club will bring new much needed facilities for local kids - there are zero
other sports facilities in Bradley Fold. So this is a great opportunity.

» The particular piece of land is not open to the public and the objectors have no
idea of what wildlife on the site might be displaced. Currently it is unused
scrubland, an eyesore, not particularly attractive at all.

» The condition - yes traffic on Radcliffe Moor Rd can be busy (at peak times, not
football match times) so the club to fund a roundabout at the junction of Radcliffe
Moor Road and Bury New Road to both calm the 40mph traffic down and let traffic
out of Radcliffe Moor Rd.

44 letters have been received, which have raised the following issues:

» ltis really frustrating to see any applications that potentially use greenfield sites - it
is as if the climate changes aren't really happening? Once we have no more
brownfield sites left then the council shouldn't be allowing any greenfield
development before then. Time for the Council to adopt a responsible policy that
protects the environment rather than developers calling the shots.

» | oppose the fact that football pitches are being created on a wildlife corridor when
there are actual football pitches just down the road.

» The traffic will now be dangerous on the main road with cars turning into this
facility and there will be excess noise created in a quiet area.

» What will happen to the deers that currently reside in those fields?

» Bury already have a large amount of football pitches available.

* Why are you even contemplating building on this beautiful land. The area is
greenbelt and is home to an abundance of wildlife.

» Objection on grounds of loss of greenbelt to a Bolton club, whose council want to
relocate them to build houses. These facilities should be relocated in Bolton and
the greenbelt in Radcliffe and associated wildlife maintained.

» Object to this application on the strongest terms, especially as the plan has so far
been rejected by Bolton Council. Addressing that meeting, Clir Adele Warren said:
"l understand the need for new housing but that should not be to the detriment of
local residents, local sports provision or wildlife. Common sense! So why should it
be considered in Bury?

» The proposal will result in a loss of yet more greenbelt, which is here
fundamentally to protect urban sprawl from merging one town to another and to
encourage reuse of urban and derelict land keeping land permanently open for
the health of the residents and the wildlife. Do our Council not already tell us how
our use of green areas is good for our health?

Page 147



The proposal would destroy and damage wildlife and have an adverse effect on
local ecology, compounded by the effects of extra road traffic together with noise
and light pollution.

No building should take place on Green Belt land.

The proposed social club would lead to anti-social behaviour

Firstly it is wrong that Bury Council are even considering such an application on
Green Belt land when they have previously stated that they will protect the loss of
such land. The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by
keeping land permanently open.

A local planning authority should regard the construction of new buildings as
inappropriate in the greenbelt. Obviously there are exceptions for outdoor sport or
outdoor recreation, but | do NOT consider this application to fit the criteria of 'Very
Special Circumstances' and should NOT be considered by Bury council as a
reason for building on any greenbelt in Radcliffe.

There is no justification to make changes to this Green Belt and there is certainly
no exceptional circumstances to consider. There are more than sufficient 'suitable’
locations, even brown field sites within Bolton to accommodate the future needs of
Wyresdale football club, BOLTON.

Even the coal authority have stated that they have concerns regarding the land in
this area and building on it because of unmapped areas which are considered
unsafe of there are pollution concerns which have been expressed by
representatives of the wildlife organisation.

Drainage into the adjacent lodges, this would have a massive impact on the wild
life and surrounding properties.

Only yesterday, 24th August 2022, an accident happened at the top of Radcliffe
Moor Road, where a vehicle who's driver was trying to avoid a speeding car,
caught the kerb and the car overturned, the driver plus car ending up in the very
fields which they want to turn into a football pitch!

The masonic hall holds approximately 300 Masonic Meetings each year and there
are serious concerns at the high extra congestion that will be caused in and
around the entrance if this application is approved.

There are also concerns that cars from the football could be parked on Radcliffe
Moor Road restricting vision when leaving the Hall and that cars from the football
could park on the Hall Car Park if the gates were open for a Meeting or function.
Again this is absolutely disgusting - more houses built purely out of greed. The
constant destruction of out local outdoor space is becoming unbearable. You
wouldn't have to start having clean air zones if you didn't keep allowing more and
more houses to be built. No No NO!

Response to objectors

The proposed development involves the provision of grass football pitches and
associated changing facilities in a clubhouse, which is an appropriate
development in the Green Belt. As such, the applicant does not have to
demonstrate a case for very special circumstances.

The issues relating to noise, ecology and traffic have been addressed in the main
report.

It is not possible to refuse consent because the existing facilities are being
redeveloped in another borough.

It is unusual to develop grass football pitches on brownfield sites.

For the avoidance of any doubt, the application is for the creation of football
pitches and a clubhouse and not for housing or a social club.

Page 148



» The Coal Authority has no objections to the proposal, subject to an informative
relating to coal mining.

Issues

Principle - Green Belt - Paragraph 138 of the NPPF states that the Green Belt

serves five purposes:

h. to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;

i. to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;

j. to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;

k. to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and

[ to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other
urban land.

The proposed development would provide grassed football pitches, a clubhouse with
changing facilities and showers and parking. The majority of the application site would
remain open and grassed and as such, would still fulfill the purpose of a - ¢ in
paragraph 138. The site is not located near a historic town and is greenfield and as
such, purposes d and e are not relevant. Therefore, the proposed development would
comply with the purposes of the Green Belt and would be appropriate development.
The proposal would be in accordance with Policy OL1/2 of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan and the NPPF.

Pre-start conditions - The agent has agreed with pre-start conditions.

Conditions
Conditions 7 and 12 have been amended and conditions 18 and 19 have been added
in relation to drainage, groundwater supply and quality.

7. Before the drainage system associated with the club house, playing pitches and car
park is brought into use, a Management and Maintenance Scheme for the playing
pitches and other facilities hereby approved including management and maintenance
responsibilities, a maintenance schedule, a monitoring regime (after first establishing
a baseline for quantity and quality) including the monitoring of water quantity and
quantity discharged from the proposed reed bed, and a mechanism for review, shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The scheme shall include details of any fertiliser to be used on the site, including its
type, chemical composition, method and density of application, as well as the timing
of application.

The Management and Maintenance of the site including the playing surfaces, swale
and reed bed shall thereafter be strictly in accordance with the approved scheme.

No fertiliser, pesticides, conditioning agents, or other chemicals shall be used on the
site other than that expressly identified in the Maintenance and Management
Scheme.

Should the monitoring and maintenance regime not be followed then use of the facility
(pitches, clubhouse and car park) must cease immediately until the breach is
investigated and rectified. No fertiliser, pesticides, conditioning agents, or other
chemicals shall be applied until the swale and reed bed are established and
functioning as intended.

Reason. To ensure that a new facility is capable of being managed and maintained to
deliver a facility which is fit for purpose, sustainable and to ensure sufficient benefit of
the development to sport and to accord with paragraph 99 of the NPPF whilst
preventing any adverse effect on quality or quantity of water entering the adjacent
water bodies due to surface water contaminated with nutrient or other contaminants

Page 149



or disruption of aquafers which would otherwise have an adverse effect on water
quantity or quality and consequently biodiversity.

12. A landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The contents of
the landscaping scheme should include wildflower grassland, hawthorn hedges,
native tree and shrub planting and the provision of bat bricks/tubes within the new
development and bat and bird boxes. The approved scheme shall thereafter be
implemented not later than 12 months from the date the clubhouse is first occupied or
within the first available tree planting season; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying
or becoming severely damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of
planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those
originally required to be planted.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential
Development, EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 - Woodland and Tree
Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving and
enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.

18. Prior to the commencement of development a detailed drainage design, broadly in
accordance with the principles established in the Hydrological Assessment (July
2022) (ref. HYD633) and Preliminary Drainage Strategy (ref. HYD633.633.BET.1 Rev.
A) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
detailed scheme shall include the detailed design and construction of the swale (to
include the detailed design of the reed bed, wet and dry portions of the swale, as well
as the flow control mechanisms to deliver the required attenuation and flows to
ensure the integrity and functionality of the reed bed as well as the provision of
facilities to allow the monitoring off water quality from the reed bed) as well as all
other proposed drainage features on the site. The detailed design calculations shall
be submitted for the approved scheme, including attenuation design to accommodate
a 1in 100 year storm event, plus a minimum allowance of 75% for climate change.
The drainage scheme shall be implemented strictly in accordance with the approved
details in its entirety prior to the pitches hereby approved being brought into use and
shall thereafter be retained, and managed and maintained in accordance with the
Management and Maintenance Scheme required by condition 7 above.

Reason. To ensure that the detail design of the scheme has proper regard to the
need to drain the site and safeguard both the fabric of the adjacent waterbodies as
well as the quantity and quality of the water discharging in accordance with the
following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan:

Policy EN5/1 - New Development and Flood Risk

Policy EN7/5 - Waste Water Management

Policy EN6/3 - Features of Ecological Value

19. Prior to the commencement of development a scheme of intrusive site drainage
investigations and preliminary engineering works to investigate ground water flows
feeding Starmount reservoir and springs in the vicinity of the proposed swale,
including the timing of such works, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority.

A report of the findings of such investigations shall be submitted to the local planning
authority. Any such report should include where appropriate any additional drainage
works that are necessary to safeguard the functionality of the swale and the water
quality and ground water flows into the adjacent existing waterbodies. Including
detailed design that demonstrates that the proposed works will safeguard the
structural integrity of Starmount reservoir and the quantity and quality of the water

Page 150



feeding the reservoir. Any such additional works shall be approved in writing by the
local planning authority and shall thereafter be implemented prior to the completion of
the drainage works to which they relate. The additional works shall be implemented in
full in accordance with the approved details prior to the pitches hereby approved
being brought into use and shall thereafter be retained, and managed and maintained
in accordance with the Management and Maintenance Scheme required by condition
7 above.

Reason. To ensure that the detail design of the scheme has proper regard to the
need to drain the site and safeguard both the fabric of the adjacent waterbodies as
well as the quantity and quality of the water discharging in accordance with the
following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan:

Policy EN5/1 - New Development and Flood Risk

Policy EN7/5 - Waste Water Management

Policy EN6/3 - Features of Ecological Value.

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 24th January 2023
	Minutes

	4 PLANNING APPLICATIONS
	68530 Item 1 Report
	68530 Item 1 Plans
	Item 02 & 03 Final
	f7aeccaf-5ffa-44c1-a78d-e789afb5e2ef.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	e1f26265-a279-498d-842e-c2f494dcb605.pdf
	f7aeccaf-5ffa-44c1-a78d-e789afb5e2ef.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model




	Item 04 Final

	5 DELEGATED DECISIONS
	6 PLANNING APPEALS
	7 Appeal against Non-Determination

